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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

The Honorable Mayor, the Board of Aldermen, 
and the Corruni ssioner o f Finance and Revenue of 
Lebanon, Tennessee,andlne 

Director ofMunicipal Audit, State ofTennessee 

We have audited the accompanying fmancial statements of the governmental acti vities, the 
business-type activities, the aggregute discretely presented component unit, each major fund, the 
aggregate remaining fund infonnation and the budgetary comparison schedule for the General Fund 
of the City of Lebanon, Tennessee, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011 , which collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements, as listed in the tabJe of contents. These financial 
statements are the responsibili ty of the City of Lebanon, Tennessee's management. Our 
responsibil ity is 10 ex press opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted ou r audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
Slates of America and the standards applicable to financial aud its contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptro ller General of the United States . Those standards 
require that we p lan and perfonn the audit to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the 
fin ancial statements are fi'ce of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
ev idence supportjng the amounts and disclosures in the financi al statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and signi ficant estimates made by management , as well as 
evaluating the overall fLnancial statement presentation. We beli eve that our audit provides a 
reasonable basi s for our opinions . 

In our opin ion, U1e basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respec tive fmanciaJ position of the governmental activities, the business-twe 
3C1 iviti es, the aggregate d iscretely presented component unit, each major fund, the aggregate 
remaining fu nd infonnation and the budgetary comparjson for the General Fund of the City of 
Lebanon, Tennessee, as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position and cash 
flows, where appl icable, thereof for the year then ended in confol11lity wi th accounting principles 
generally accep ted in the United Stales of An,erica. 

In accordance with Govenunent Aud iting Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 
22, 2012 on Ollr consideration of the City of Lebanon's intema! control over financial reporting and 
our tests o f its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant 
agreements and other maners. The purpose of thaI report is 10 descri be rhe scope of our testing of 
intcmal control over financial repol1ing and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the inlemal control over fmancia l reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integra l part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Slandards and 
should be considered m assessing the results of our audit. 

I 
724 Wes! Main Street· l ebanon. Tennessee 37087 
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Am eri ca require that the 
management 's di scussion and analysis and schedule o f funding progress for pension and OPES 
on pages 3 through 10 and 45 be presented to supplement the basic financ ial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the bas ic financia l statements, is required by the 
Govenunental Accounting SlandClrds Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting [or placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational , economic, or 
rus(orica l contex t. We have applied cenain limited procedu res to the requi red supplementary 
infouna tion ill accordance with auditing standards generall y accepted in the United States of 
America, whi ch consisted of inqui ries of mal1agcmenl about the methods of preparing the 
in fonn ation and comparing the information for consistency wilh management' s responses to our 
inquiri es. the basic fin ancia l statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financia l statements. We do not exp ress an opinion or prov ide <lily assurance on the 
infonnation because the limited procedures do not provide us with suffici ent ev idence to express 
ao opinion o r prov ide any assurance. 

Our audit was conducted fo r the purpose of fo rming opin ions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City o f Lebanon, Tennessee's financial statements as a whole. The 
accompanying financial infonnation listed as supplementary in fo rmation and schedules in the table 
of contents are p resented fo r purposes o f additional analysis and are not a req uired part o f the basic 
fi nancia l statemenls. T he accompanying schedule o f expenditures or federal awards is presented 
for purposes o f additional analysis as required by U.S. Office o f Management and Budget Circular 
A·133, Audits o f State and Local Governmen ts and Non·Profit Organizations, and is also not a 
requi red pan of the basic financial statements. The supplementary information and schedules and 
the schedlde of expendirures o f federal awards are the responsibihty of managernent and were 
del; ved from and reJ<lte directly to the underlyi ng accounting and other records used to prepare the 
fi nancia l statements. Except for the supplementary schedules marked as " unaudited", the 
infonnation has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and cel1ain addi tional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
infom131ion directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financi al 
statements or to (he fi nancial statement themselves, and other additional procedu res in accordance 
wi th audit ing standards generally accepted in the United States o f Ameri ca. In our opinion, except 
for the supplemcntalY schedules marked as "unaudited", the information is fa irly stated in all 
materi al respects ill relation to the financial statements taken as a who le. The supplementary 
schedules marked as "unaudited" have not been subjected La the audi ting procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and , accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on them. 

Lebanon, Tennessee 
February 22, 20 12 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

June 30, 2011 

This SeCll o n of the City of Lebanon, Tennessee's report presents our discuss ion and 
analysis of the Cny's financia l perfonnance during the fi scal year ended June 30, 2011. 
Please read il conjuncti on with the City's financial statements, which fo llow 111is section . 

FINA NCI AL HIGHLIGHTS 

> The Cily's 101al nel assets increased $13.9 million or 13. 11 %. O flh i5 amount , 
$5.7 mil lion W<\!i due to currenl year operations and SS.2 million was due 10 
prior period adjustments, mainly [or infrastructure buill by developers. 

> The Cuy's governmental activities revenues from taxes and olher sources 
exceeded expense!: by $ 1.8 million. Last year, expenses exceeded revelmes 
by $710 thousand. Compared to last year revenues increased by I J.94% 
an d expenses were virrual ly the same. 

> Revenues from the City's business-type activities were $22.9 million, ilnd 
revenlles exceeded expenses by $3.9 million. Last year revenues exceeded 
expenses by $3. 1 million. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Thi s ilnlluill repo\1 cons ists of several parts: management's discussion and analysis (this section), 
basic financi al Sl atelllents, req uired supp leme ntary infOimation, schedule of federa l awards, 
supplemenlary sched ul es, statistical infonnallon, and internal control and cornpliance. The basic 
financia l statements include two kinds of statements that present different views o f the Chy. Tbe 
fi rsl two statementS are govemment-wide fi nancial statements that provide bot h long-term and 
shorterm infonnation about the City's overal! financial fi nancial status. TIle remaining statements are 
fu nd fi nancial s tatements that foc us on IOdividual pa rts of the City's operatiOJ1S, reporting the Cily's 
operations in more delail ti1an lhe government-wide financial statements. Included in Ihe fund 
fmanclal statelllClHS are govell1menta l funds and proprietary funds. The govenuncmal funds 
statements tell how Ihe general govenunental acti vities were financed in the short tenll as well as 
what remai ns for fut ure spending. Proprietary fu nd statements include both long and short-Ienn 
infonnation !hat the City operates like a business enterprise, such as the ulililies departmeills. The 
financial statements 3 11>0 include notes to the financial statements that exp lain some of the 
infonnation 111 the fl11 <1ncia l statements and provide more detail. The requi red supplementary 
infomlation further explains and supports the financial statements. In add ition to these required 
clemcnts, we have chosen to include statements that detail and combine th e oonmajor govemment 
fllnds. Other auth onues, inc ludmg OIv1B Circular A-l33 and the State of Tennessee, require the 
n:lllaining sched ul es in the repoli. The following further explains the basic financial statements: 
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Go,'crnment-Wide Sta tements 

The government -wide statements repoi1 infonnation about the City as a whole using accounting 
methods similar to those used by private-sector CQmpanies. The Statement of Net Assets includes 
all the government's assets and liabi lities. AI! of the current year's revenues and expenses arc 
accoullItd for in the Statement of Activities regard less of when tlle cas h is received or paid . These 
two statements repOL1 the City's net assets and how they have changed during the current fiscal 
year. This is one way to measure the City's overall fmancial health . increases in net assets indicate 
that the City's financ ial hea lth is improving, whereas decreases in net assets indicate that the Cily's 
financial health may be dete riorating. To accurately assess the City's overa ll financia l health. other 
non-financial fac tors, such as changes in the property tax base, must a lso be considered. The 
governme nt- wide fi nancial statements are divided into three categories: 

::> Govemmenta l Activities- most of the City's bas ic services are included he re, 
Such as police, fi re , public works, recreation and general administrat ion. 

> Busllless Type Activlties- the fees charged to customers for utility services. such as 
water and sewer are reported here. 

::> 	 Component Umt- the City mcludes the infonnation of the l eba non Senior Citizens 
Cf:nter in its repon . Although it is a lega lly separate enti ry, Ihe City is fi nancia lly 
accountable fo r 11. 

Fu.nd Fin all cia l S tatement s 

The fund fi nancial statements provide more detai led infonnation about the City's significant funds, 
not the Ci ty as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific 
resources of fundi ng and spending for particular purposes. Some funds are required by State law 
and bond covenants. Other fu nds are esta blished by the Council to cOl1trol and manage money for 
pal1i!;u lar PlllVOSes or to show disposition of certain taxes and grants. The City has two kinds of 
funds: 

> Govemmenta l funds - most of the City's basic services are inc luded in governmental 
fu nds . These fu nds foc us on cash and other assets that are readi ly convenible 
to cash and show: I) the cash flow in and out during the year and 2) the balances 
at year end that are readIly available for spending. As such, they provide detailed 
short-tcnn views that help to detennine what resources are 3vai\able in the near 
future to fund the City's programs. Because this infomlation does not encompass the 
addittonal long-teml focus of the government-wide financial statements, we provide 
addL1 lOl1al inrormatioll at the bottom oflhe fund financial statements, or on the following 
page. that explaIns the relationships or differences between the statements. 

::> 	 Propnetary funds- these funds account for the activity of the services for which the City 
charges its customers. Proprietary funds, like the goverrunent-wide financial 
statemcmls. provide both long and short-term information. These funds are reported ill 
the government-wide financial statements as bus iness-type activities. 

4 



FINA NCIAL ANA L YS IS OF'TH£ CITY AS A WHOLE 

Net Ass~ t s 

Th e Cl\y's combi lwd net :"Isse ts increased $13 17 1111111 011 dll1ing Ihe year ended June 30, 20 11 . 
Ofth is amou nt, $5.7 mi ll ion was due to current yea!" opelol tions :)nd $8 .2 ntillion was du e to prior 
period adjustment, due nl:linly 10 infrdst ruClUTe bu ilt by developers. 
In comparison, for the year ended June 30, 20 10, Ihe CII y'S net assels Increased $2.408 million 
The fol lowing table is a comparison o f net asselS of tile C ity during the fIscal years ended 

June 30, 20 11 and 2010: 

CITY Of LEBA NON, TENNESSEE NET ASSETS 

Governmental Activities Business T~ Activi ties 
2011 2010 20 11 2010 

Current and Other Assets $ 23,910,944 $ 23,443,390 .$ 10,254,570 $ 8,092,648 
Capital Assets, net 39,821 ,878 36,008,4 14 11 4,139,207 104,549,960 

Total Assets 63,732,822 59,45.1,80S 124,393,777 ] 12 ,642,609 
Long-Tenn Debt, net 10,874,902 12,546, 160 48,039,497 47, 139,66 1 
Other Liabiliti es 7,073.573 4,728,695 1,653,139 1, 163. 158 

Tota l Liabilities _. !.7,948,476 17.274,855 _.. ~49,692,636 48,302,819 
Net Assets 

Invested in Capital Assets, Net 
or Re lated Debt 28,946,975 25.008,333 66,099,7 10 57,852,763 

Restricted 3, 177 ,847 4,220,688 71,972 48,217 
Unrestric ted 13,659,524 12,947,929 8,529,459 6,43 8,809 
Total Net Assets $ 45, 784,346 $. 42, 176,~~9. . _S__~4,701,141 ~64,339,789 

Net assets of the Cit/s governmental activities illcreased $3. 6 million, 8.55%. Of this amount, S 1.9 
million was due 10 prior period adjusnnenls, mainly for infrastructure bmlt by developers. 

Over half of the govemmenlal activities net assets arc invested in capillil assets, net o f related debl 

The net assets oflhe businC"is-lype increased $9.56 olillion or 14.86%. Of this amount, $6.4 
milli on was due 10 pnor period adjustments, mainly for infrastructure bui lt by developers. 
Almost al l of these net asselS are invested in capital assets. 

5 

Total 
Percentage 

TOlal Cilan~e 

20 11 2010 2011 -20 10 
$ 34 ,165, 514 $ 3 1,536,038 8.34% 

153,96 1,084 140,558,375 9.54% 
188,126,599 172,094,413 9.32% 
58,9 14,399 59,685,82 1 -1.29% 

8,726,713 5,891,853 48.11% 
67,641,1l2 65,577,674 3.t5% 

95,046,685 82,86 1,095 14.7 1% 

3,249,818 4,268,905 -23.87% 

22, I 88,983 19,386,739 14.45% 

$ 120,485,487 $ 106,516,739 13.11% 



Ch'''~l'S in Net ",,,<Is 

Tlw fullo willS '"bk ,how~ 'h~ City's ~h Jn gcs in nc! ,,,cis for II" 1i",,1 yeo" ended June 30. 2011 

and 201O. 

CITY O F 1..E IlANON. TEl'-'N ESSEE ( IlANGE IN NET ASSeTS 
Toni 
Pc rc cnl :> gc: 

Gove rnmental A<I; "il i ~s O", jn. " Typ" ACliv ;li" Total O ,nge 
2011 2010 lOll 2010 2011 20 10 2011·2010 

R<::ve rl MS 
l'rogu ll\ Re"cnue" 

CMr~<s far S.,v;ce, , 2,%9.002 , ).408Aoo 21757.450 23.250.802 S 2~,726.452 , 26.659.202 -7.25% 

Op o ra l m ~ Gra nt; ond ContribulJ 2,2 24 .181 1376.4 29 1,224.181 1.376.429 61.59% 
C~pj lal Gram, and Con. , ibu, ion 1.997 ,623 1.108.442 1.445,155 92,530 3,442.778 1,200.972 I SG.G7~, 

~"" ra1 R~v~ n""" 

Propelly Tax 3,071.579 2,899.184 3,07 U79 2 , S ~ 9 , 1 84 5.95 '/, 

Sal" To.' 9.401.838 8,636.0(.7 9.401.838 8,636.066 8.87'1, 

lr..:onleTu 223.220 30 1.73 7 123,210 30 1.737 -26.02,/0 
O!her Mi",ellor.com TJ~ 2.654.535 2,37.l.n9 2.654,535 2.273,76'1 1 6.75~. 

Ta~ Equi'­aklli s 280.0 1) 273.710 280,0 15 27.1.730 2 .30"/0 
In vestm~n t Elm';n~ 10 1.916 Ig[.903 20.887 24,939 122.802 206.842 -406 3~. 

Miscel b ncoill 4.8 16 (6.648) 4.8 16 (6.648) . 112 45% 
Trln,fers 298,000 296,998 (298.000) (2%.998) 

Total Reve n"'" 23,226,726 10,75(1,012 22.925.492 23.071.273 46.IS2~117 -IJ,IU l.lS7 S.32°;;' 

E.~pen"'. 

Gene ral Governm~"1 2,(MI.978 3.189,254 2,(HI,ns 3,189,254 -3 5.97% 
Publi, Wor\; s 2,29l.S09 U76,34J 2,291 ,509 1.376.343 66.49% 
Police 7,738, 129 7,776,401 7,738. 129 7.776,401 ·O.49~, 

Rfe 3,279,99 1 3.283.357 3,219,991 3.233.357 ,010% 

SI!e-e1 2.lM.4B 2,442,674 2,664,453 2,4 H .674 9.08'10 
l'ul>lic Safcty 264.358 321,407 264.358 32[.407 .17.75~. 

Engi r;ecrill& 277 ,4 24 284,305 277.424 284,305 .242% 

Ceme.eT)' 73,051 98.465 73,051 98,465 .2581'1. 
Recfe;uion 81).:,063 792 ,862 804,068 792,862 141% 
Floyd Family Life Center U 85 ,5 29 1.3 29,802 1.38\529 1.329,802 4.19'/, 

Airpol1 324. 13 1 290.115 324.131 290,1 15 11-7)% 
Inlcrc,) on u-mg·Tt;1m DeN 260.8 10 274,908 260,810 274,908 -5 13% 
Water & Sewer 11.042,994 10,614,029 11,042.994 10.61 4,029 404~, 

Natural G~s 7.938,979 ~ .339 , 1 91 7.938,979 9.339.191 -14.';9% 
21.405,430 lJ,459,S93 18,981.973 19,953,220 40.387,403 41.4 13,112 .2.48~. 

Inc re.sc (Dccrcl.\c) in Net "'''Cl' , 1.821.195 S (109,881) , 3.943.519 S ],118,05J ....L......2..764,8J4 , 2,408,175 lJ9.19 ·/~ 

Tile Ci Iy', lot.1 reV,""",,s ,ocreased 52.33 millwn from 543.82 million '0 546.1 5 m illwn 

Th~ tOlal co", oflhe Cily'S pTognm' aoo ,er"';ce, <kCTe.",cl !594 ,"ousand fTOm .'>41 4 million 
to 540.8 m,lIlOll. 

, 




11\e followi ng shows the percentage of revenues and expenses by program fo r the year ended 

June 30, 2011. 

Re ven ues 

Charges for Services 

Operdllng GranlS & Contribution 

Capital Grants & Contributions 
Property Tax 
Sales T~1i 

lncome Tax 
Other MI Sc Ta x 
Tax Equ iva lents 
Investment Eam; ~lg~ 

Miscell aneous 
Trans fers 

I!.:\.pcnses 

Genera l Government 
Public Works 
Police 
Fire 
Strut 
Public SafelY 
Englll~ering 

Cemetcry 
Recreation 
Floyd F;ul1i1y Life Center 
Aiq)ort 
Interest 0 1\ Long-Tenn Debt 
Waler & Sewer 
NJturJi Gas 

54% 

5% 
7% 
6. 70% 
20% 
0.50% 
6% 
0.50% 

0.30% 
0% 

0% 

5% 

6% 
19% 
8% 
6% 
0.60% 
0.70% 
0.30% 
2% 
3% 

0.80%. 
0.60010 
28% 
20% 
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Go"ernmenl ~ 1 AC(ivilir~ 

The gO\'emlll¢lltal re" ~nues inel"C:1s<-d b}' 52.47 nJill ion El(pellsC$ decreased by 540 IhOIlS:lnd dlle 
to the (""o llncil 11I1d Depunllll.·111 !!ea(ts ~ ccl!i l1 g cost lhe sa rn.. <15 las l year as IIl()ch as they c~ n. 
Revenucs wele li p mJlIlI~ due to Ihe Increase III Salo:s Tax and more Opcr"3ling & CJpital Gr.WIS 
an..! COlllnbulions to the C(ty. Th .. folhl ... ing shows Ihe nel C05\ oflhc City's govemrnenlal ac tivities 
fO Tthc fi scal years encied June JO, 201 1 and 20 10: 

('(TV or Ll;!)ANON, TENNESSEE NET COST OF GOVER.NMEN;· .\ · 
Percent 

Tmal COSI OfScrvices Change 

Genera l Govcnnneni , 20 11 
2, 04 1,978 , 2010 

3,189,254 

201 ] -2010 

-3597% 
!'ublic Works 2,29),509 1,376,"343 66.<l 90/" 

Pollee 7,738,129 7.776,401 -049% 
fire 3,279,99 1 3,283,357 -0.1 0% 

Strtet 2,664,453 2,442.674 9 0S% 
Pub hc SafeI)' 26<1 ,358 32! ,407 _1775% 

Engineering 277,424 284,305 -2.42% 
Cemetery 73,051 98,465 ·25.8 1% 
Recrealion 804.068 792,862 1.41% 
Floyd fa mily Life C enter 1,38S,529 1,329.802 4 .19'% 

Ai rport 
TOlal s 

324.131 
2 1,144,621 

290,1 15 , 2 1, 184,,983 
11.73% 
-0. 19";" 

Busin t S-ll -Ty,.,e Acti viciu 

Revenu~'$ of the ('ity's business· tYJIe decreased by S146 thousand, whieh included an inc rease 
in chargt'S for services. E./.pell5c.'\ decreased by S971 thollSllnd RevC"nue do:creased by .63% and 
CJ(penses decre;lsro hy 4 9%comparro to laS! yeal . 

C e n e r~ J Fu nd Budgcl~ry Highlights 

Over Ihe course of the year, the Coune'l as necessary revises lhe budgn These changes arc mainly 
to change th~ (lrigillal estimated l1 udge ted alooun lS to aCNJ I or to irn:; rease app ropriatio ns 10 prevent 
budget oven-UtIS. 

The ac ruJI ac ti vity fo r the Ci ty reflec ted J" excess oftotJ I revellues of S6 thousa nd more than 
expenses for the Gelleral Fund for Ihe fiscal year ended Junc30, 2011. 

> Revenues for the General Fund were $1.2 mill ion more than budgeled . 
;:. Expenses were $804 Il"lolIsand less Ihan budgeled. 

8 

.\("TJVITIES 

PcrCl' nl 
Nct COSI of Scrv .. es C1~lnge 

201l 71.. .0 201 1-2010 --_..__. ­
S 632)20 S 1,45 6.440 

1,3 1 S 710 663,428 
7 ,053,7% 7, 165,998 
3.261,938 3,281,872 

135,4 12 1,$72,952 
264,3S8 JZ I ,407 
277,424 284,305 

(9,41)4) 39,106 
776,170 443,887 
169,133 138,1 80 
77,050 ns.863), 13,953,81 4 S 15, 291 ,1 12 

-56.59"/0 
98.32% 
- 1.570/. 
·0.6 1% 

-9 1 39"/0 
-17 75% 

-2 .4 2% 
- 124 .05% 

14.86% 
22.40% 

-20l.S6% 
-8.15% 



• •• 
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ECONOM fC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AN O RATES 

When preparing the General Fund Budget fO{ FY 20 t2, increases for healthcare costs, utilities, 
and fuel COSIS were Hlken into account. The ~mount availabk from Revenues for appropria tion 
in the General Fund Budget is $ 18,07 1 ,875. Estimate: Sales Tax Revenue is ex.pected to 
increase by approxtm<ltely 11.68% or S800,000. Expenditures will decrease in Ihe General fund 
by approx imately .46%. Healthcare costs, ulilities, and fuel costs are exptc ted to go up while 
other costs such as purchase of a new fi l'e Intck and traffic m:aintenallce will drop off keeping 
the expenses in Ihe General Fund vutually the same as lasl year. Autborization for urilization 
of$ I,928.055 fwm the fund balance in IIle General Fund was approved by Ihe Cil)' Council 
to bailnce the FY 20 It -2012 General Fund budget without a significant property tax ra te 
increase 0 1' illS!lrutJon of significant new fees. Properly tax revenue is projected to rise slightly 
by .53% due to small ndJustment mlhe rate fro m .335 10 ,3456. 

Water and Sewer Revenues arc: plOjecled 10 rise approxirnateiy 8.96% with a rale increase. 

Gas Revenues arc expected to remain conslan! with no ra te mcrease and overa ll revenues expected 10 
exceed expenses. 

Debt IS expected 10 increase in fY 2011 due to: 
I) General Fund- Approval ora $600,000 note to purchase a new 

accounting systc:m. 
2) General fund- ApprovJI of $ 160,000 Three year note 10 purchase a 

new san iTation mlck. 
3) Water and Scwer Fund- Approva l ofa $ 1 ,000,000 loan from Tennessee 

MunlcipallJond fu nd for vanous water projec t ~ . 

4) Water and Sewer Fund- Approval ofa $3,650.000 10311 from Te nnessee 
Mun iclp.11 Bond fund for various sewcr projects. 

Tile ovenidtng is~ue is meeting the long-Ierm infrastructure costs due to the fast growth ratc of the 
Ciry and surroundi ng tHca. 

CONTACTI NG TJ·fE CITY'S FlNANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

Th is li lulIlciai rcport is designed \0 provide the citizens, taxpayers, customers. mvcstors, and 
credUOfS of the Cll)' of Lebanon, Tennessee with a genen l overview of the City's fina nces and to 
demonsn'ate the City'S accountabi lity fro the molley it receives. If you have questions about this 
report or need additional infoml<lliOll, contact the Commissioner of finance and Revenue, 200 Castle 

Heigh!s Avenue , North. Lebanon, Tennessee 37087. 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

STATEMENT OF NET ASS ETS 

June 30, 2011 

Primary Government 

ASSETS 
Cash 

InVeS[1l1cnt In StDtC Inv ~stmenl Pool 

CCl1lficate of Deposit 

Other Restricted Funds 

Accounts Recei vable, Net 

Internal Balances 

Due from Component Unit 

Due from PrivJtc Purposc Trust 

Inventorlcs 

Prepaid Expenses 

Capital Assets: 

Non deprc\:Jable Assets 

Depreei~blc Asscts, Net of Depreciation 

Tot~1 Captt~1 Asset'> 
T0(31 Assets 

LiAOILITIES 
BJnk Overdraft 

Accounts Payable 

Due to Primary Govermcnt 

Customer Deposits 

Accrucd Ex pel\ses 
Deferred Revellue 

Non-CUrrtlll Li abiliti es: 

Due In One Year: 


Compensated Absences 


Debt 


Due in More Than One Year. 


Debt, net 


OPEB Liability 

Tutal Lbbihlics 

NET ASSETS 
Invested m Capital Assets, Net ofRclated Debt 

Restricted for' 

Dcbt Service 


Public works 


Drtlg Enforceillent 


Gran t,ICon tr ibll tI 011 S 


Unrestricted 

TotJI Net Assets 

Govern ment ~1 

Acti viti es 

, 4,242.681>.34 

8,214,756.33 

5,037,533.57 

6,441,436.86 

(63,307.96) 

630-18 
4,73088 

33,563.27 

(1,087.41) 

7,797,049.98 

32,024,827.55 

39,821 ,877.53 

63,732,82 1.5 9 

140.739.53 

1, 134,687.66 

13,955.00 

469,042 .46 

3,198,927.94 

427,630.85 

1,216,454.00 

9,65l:i,448.11 

1,688,590.00 

17,948,475.55 

28,946,975.42 

166,849.36 

1,813,951-44 

1,197,045.78 

J3,659.524.04 

S 45,184,346.04 

Busincss-Type Component 

Activities TOlol Uni l 


$ 410,7699S 

7,608,176.67 

501,43356 

71,971.53 

1,293,709.60 

63,307.96 

295,200.93 

10,000.00 

23,416,287.90 

90,722,918 .78 

114,1 39,206.68 

124,393 ,776 .9 1 

254,245.45 

649.274.90 

113,457.64 

96,905,4 I 

2,901,186.00 

45,138,310.74 

539,255 .98 

49.692,636. 12 

66,099,709.94 

71,971.53 

8.5 29,459.32 
:j; 74.70 1, 140.79 

$ 4,653.451>.32 

15,822,933.00 

5,538,967.13 

71,97153 

7,735.146.46 

$ 47.328.69 

630.18 

4,730.88 

328,764.20 

8,91259 

31 ,213,337.88 

122,747,746.33 

15J,96 1.084.2 1 

188,1 26.598.50 

105,468.00 

372,861.88 

478,329.88 

525,65R.57 

394,984.98 

1,783,962.56 

13,955 .00 

582,500. 10 

3,198,917.94 

12.26177 

630 18 

6,41935 

524,536.26 

4,117,640.00 
3,377.60 

54,796,758.85 

2,227,845.98 

67 .641 , 111.67 
32,079.02 
54,76792 

95,046,685.36 478,32988 

238,820.89 

1,8 13 ,95 1.44 

1.1 97 .045.78 

22, I 88,983,36 

S 120,485,486.83 , (7 ,439. 23) 

470 .890.65 

See nOICS to financial slatements 
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CITY OF LEU ANO N. TEN/'.' ESSI~E 

ST "'-H,MEN "!' O F ACT IV ITI ES 

Junc 30,1011 

I'ro~m Rev~n "n NCI (bpense) I< cve nll ~' "nd Ch,ngcs In Nel ASS"" 

Op.:r. ting Cop ilol Pri mary Go, 'cfllmenl 

Charges fo r G "311(Sand Gro nlS and Govcmmc n , ~ 1 Il u,,,' css-T;ve Comr<'nCl\ ( 

~nses S crvic~s Cm\(,;h ut io ns Conl rib"liun' ACli"ilie~ A(, i"il ies Totol Unit 
fu ncUon:V ProgJ>l m5 

Prim,,), GO"~mm"u' 
Governmental ACli~itie,; 

General Gov~ml''''enl S 2,O~ 1.978 24 1,J78.22S.O'l 31.51483 , S (6 32, 228.32) , S (632,22832) 

Public WQr~ ; 2,291,508 93 137,03015 83U6880 (1,315.709,98) (1.3IS.7O') .98 ) 

Polic< 7.7J8.129.05 %.221 22 5J6,020 ()J 52.09162 (7,053.795.58) (7 .OS 3, 7')5 . ~ 8) 

Flrc 3.279,990.71 18,053 00 (3.261.937.71) (3.261.937 ,7 1) 

Street 2.664.452.75 26.404.77 1.473,13608 1.029,500 00 (135.411.90) (13 5.4 11 90) 

Pub lic Safd)" 264.358. 11 (2M.35S.II) (264,358 II) 

Engi"cmn& 277.423.82 (277.423.82) ( 277.~2J 82) 

Ce""'let)" 73 ,05 L48 8 2.4~S . OO 9.4 03.51 9,403.51 

R~'Cfe 'liOll 804.068,J 1 32,270.00 (4.372.06) (776.170 .17) (776.1 70 .17) 

noyd fam tl y Li fe Cemer 1.38U2S.55 1,216.395.96 (IG9.1J2 ~9 ) (1 69.1 32.59 ) 

A irpon 314 .1 30.94 183.49971 63 . ~81 .64 (77.049,59 ) (77.049,59) 

Imerest On Long_Term Th:b l 260 ,809.72 (260.8()9.72 ) (260.809 72 ) 

To [;> 1Go'cm lTl<'nlal AClj ,i tics 21.405.43004 1 2,969.elO2. \ 9 2.224 , 181 .25 1,997.623.00 ( 14.2 )4.623.97 ) ( 14.21 4.6 l3.9 7) 
Il u, inc«-T yp" AClivilie s: 

W. 'er And Sewef II. ().I l ,994. J I 11.7 1 ~.109 .48 1. 445. 154 78 2. 13 4 ,4 70. 15 2. 13 4,470 )5 
N.lU",1Ga, 1.938.978.86 10.025.140.79 1.0 86, 161 .93 2 .0 86. 161.93 
Tota l BUSlncs<-TYI><' Activaics 

Tota' P rimary Govemm<:nl 

18.981 .9n..97 

540.387.403.38 

11 .757 ,450.27 

S 14 .726 .452 .46 S 2.224, 18 1.25 

1,445 .154.73 , 3.442.777.78 (1 4 .1 14.61397) 

4.220,632 .08 

4.220.632 ,()S 
4.220.63208 

(9.99J .991 .89) 

Compono nl Unn, 

Senior Citizens Ce nt~ r , 436,9 13.0 1 , 134.27 1.% , 287,209.85 , ( 15,431.60) 

Ge ll er.1R. 'eJ\ ~>' 

To.,"" 
Propert)" T~ ,,:.I. Lev ied fot Gcnerll Purposcs 3.Q71.578 85 3,071.5 18 85 
SJ lcs Tax~s 9,401 ,838.37 9, 40 1.838.37 

Itl come Tn 221 .220. 15 n J,220. 15 
Olhef M,S('cliancou\ Tu,cs 2.654,534.76 2.654,5)4 ,7 6 

T" EG u i v~lc nl - TVA 280.01525 nO.OI S.25 
Um es tric (.d 1"\,e5tment lOo ming,; 101.91 5.89 20. 386.60 122.802 .49 69.97 
M",'cl l~ncou s 4.81 6.10 4,EI6.IO 

Tram!" ,.., 29i ,999.% (297,999.%) 
T()\~I GcncrJ I Roven",,> "od T fon, t ~fS 16,035,919.33 (l 77,113,36) 15.; 58.805 ,97 69 .9 7 

Cn.ng< in Net AW'ls 1.821 ,295.36 3,943.518.72 5 . 7M . 81 ~ , 08 (1 5.36 1.63) 
Nel Asscl ' . Ikginn, ng. RCSl J\ . d 43 .963.050.68 70.751.622.07 1 14, n O,672.1S 486.252.28 
NC1IIS~g , Ending S 45. 784.346 ,04 S 7~.7 0 I, 140. 79 S 120.485A86 83 470. 39065 

See not,s \0 Finanei . ' s\alemollU 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

BALANCE SH EET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Ju ne 30, 2011 

Other Tota l 
General Govem mental Governmental 

ASSETS Fund Funds Funds 

Cash $3,962,594.32 $ 280,094.02 $ 4,242,688.34 
Investment in Slate Investment Pool 4,733,228.38 3,48 1,527.95 8,2 14,756.33 
Certificate of Deposit 5,037,533.57 5,037,533.57 
Other Restricted Funds 
Accounts Receivab le: 

State of Tenn~ssee 2,005,059.65 2,005,059.65 
Federa I Government 179,032.86 179,032.86 
Other 164,639.27 1,129,686.20 1,294,325.47 

Due from Other Funds 447,794.44 37,46 1.2 1 485 ,255.65 
Due from Pri vate Purpose Trust 4,730.88 4,730.88 
Due from Component Uni t 630. 18 630. 18 

Notes Recei vJble 

Inventories 33,563.27 33,563.27 

Property Taxes - Net of Allowance 
For Uncollectible Taxes of $3 18,558 .4 1 2,963,018.88 2,9 63,0 18.88 

Pl.'epald Expenses ( 1,087.4 1) (1,087.4 1) 

$ 19,5)0,738.29 $ 4,928,769.38 $ 24 ,459,507.67 

See notes to fi nancial statements 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


BALANCE SHEET • GOVERNMENTAL FUN DS 


LIAB ILITIES 

Accounts Payable 

Vcndors 

Due to Otht'r Funds 

Bank Overdraft 

ACCrL1Cd Pnyrolland Related Items 

Accrued V3c;! llOn Pay 

Accrucd Intcrest 
Customer Depo~lls 

Other Accrued Liabil it ies 
Deferred RcYel\ue 

Due to Joinl Velllure 

TOlll1 Llablliues 

FUN D BAl.ANCES 

Fund f3a lances: 
Nonspendable 

Restricted for: 

!301ld Proeced~ 

Oelll Service 

Street 
Drug Enforcement 

Commll"lly ASSis tance 
Committed 10. 


Airpon 


Cemelary 


AssIsned to: 

RecreJtioll 

Allvon 

Slreet 
Publtc Work5 
Floyd FamIly LIfe Center 
Equ.pment 

Unasstgned 

TOlal Fund Balimces 

Total 1,Iabllilies and Fund Ba l~nees 

lun~ 30, 2011 

GCIIcr;'!] 


Fund 


, 7l,S60.33 

3.779.22 

100,S87 88 
385 ,234.95 

110.3)0. 12 

13,955 .00 

3,198,927.94 

3,886,375.44 

32,4 75 .86 

99 \ ,500 00 

! ,444.08 

1.56588 
68,417 .38 

895,249 70 

13,651,709.95 

IS.644,362.85 

S 19,530,738.29 

Other Tota l 

Goyernmental Goyernmentai 


Funds Funds 


S 1,061.127 ..31 , 1, l l 4.687.66 
544,784.39 548,563 .6 1 
40, 151.65 140,739 .53 
35,532.40 420,76 7.35 
4,956. 58 115,286.70 

13,955.00 

(271.40) 	 (277.40) 

3, 198,927.94 

1,686,274.95 5,572.650.39 

215,401.87 

822,451.44 
\, 197,045 .78 

40,267 .05 

19 1,24050 

26,030.87 

208,093.37 

145 ,938.08 

3S0.269.30 
13 1,010.84 
48,240. 14 

(133,494.8 1) 

3,24 2,494.4 3 

$ 4,928,769.38 

32.475.86 

99 1,500 00 

215,40 1.87 
822,451.44 

1.1 97,045.78 
40,267.05 

191 ,240.50 

26,030.81 

209,537.45 

141.503.96 

418,686.68 
13 1,010.84 
48.240.14 

895,249.70 

See noles to fi nanc ial slalements 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 


June 30, 201 1 

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Assets of Goycnunental Activities: 

Anounts reported for governmental activities in tile Statement or Net Assets are different because: 

Fund Balances $ 18,886,857 .28 

Capital Assets used in governmental funds are 

not reported in the fund Balance Sheet 39,821 ,877. 53 

Long-term debt is not reported in the fund 

Balance Sheet (10,874,902.11) 

Accrued Interest on long-tenn debt is not 

reported in the fund Balance Sheet (48,552. 51) 

OPEB Liabili ty o n governmental funds is no t 

reported in the fuod Balance Sheet (1,688,590.00) 

Portion of Accmed Vacation not requi ring 

currentlinancial resources is not reported 

in the fund Balance Sheet (3 12,344.15) 

Net Assets of Govemmental Activities 

$ 45,784,346.04 

See no tes to financial statements 
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CITY Of LEBANON, TEr-lNESSEE 

STATEMENT Of REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CIIANGES fN 


FUND BAI.A""CES· GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES 


Year EnlJod June 30, l Ol l 

R~vtnUC$ 

Tucs and L!ecn!c~ 


Tu Eq",;\I ;llc,,1 (rom;VA 


State anlJ RegiOlUl1 ApponiOIlOlent$ 

alld GranlS 


F(d~n.1 Gl1Inti 


Fines and Com 

Rents 


InleTtSl 

Olb...,. Re\'~nues 


rOlal Rc"enuCI 

r,'pCfldilures 
Gc nenl Govemment 
Public Works 

Pohee 
Fire 
Street 
Publ ic Safety 

En,lIIeenn& 

Ccmetery 

Rccru tion 


floyd famil y Li fe Ccnttr 

Airport 


Debl Service 


l'nnc l p~ 1 

IntereS I 
C~pHa l Out1 ~~ 


TOlal E~pendllurel 


£~eesl (~nciene y) D( Revcnu~s 

Over (Under ) r.~p·cndi tu res 

O1 Mr Hn~ncin8 SDurcU (UKS) 

Tr~nsfcrs fn;!m Dche!- Funds 

Tr:tIl,(c/1 to Other funds 

Ilond Proceeds 
Investment Act iv ity 

Tr:InS(efS ' Tn r;.qu!valenu 

<>"" 
Nfl Othe, FinanCing Sou rce~ (USC'S) 

Nct Ch~ngc ill fund B~lanees 

Fund Bal:mccs 
July I, 2010. teSt~ted 

Increase in J.l1cumbr:mcts 

June 30. 201 1 

Gener:l l 


Fm" 


, 13.192,510.67 

2W,0I S U 

2,305.973.42 
294,644.95 

669,671 06 
43,347.76 

93.12913 
790. 156.04 

17,769,448 .88 

2,28UH I.SO 
1,137.15692 
7,]30.16773 
3,059,42').63 
1.029,234.43 

2n.7J4 87 
213,92726 

68.189.80 
690,73099 

47.000,00 

3. 104 43 
\ ,193.11)6,14 

17.375.6.5),72 

393,195.1 6 

1)0.000.00 

(1 .768,610 35) 
991 ,500.00 

297,9W % 
29.733 60 

(219,376 19) 

174,4 1837 

14,.576,])478 

893,809.70 

S 1.5,644,362.85 

Otlw:r 
(;QVm"lmnll.l] 

Ful"llls 

, 

2,199,787.27 

1$.635.99 

8,786.16 
2,930 ,251 41 

',1.54 ,460.83 

17,49'.31 
],134,232.2 1 

128,500 76 

544,46168 

1.1.54.860,47 
114.632.66 

1,094,59700 
lj4,566,92 

2,913,702.22 
7,)j7,049 23 

(2.202.588.40) 

1,880 ,82'3.0 

(J42,2 13.08) 

1,538,(10 )5 

(663 ,978.0.5) 

3,906,472.48 

S 3.242,494.43 

TOI.a l 
(jovtmrnenbl 

Funds 

$ 13.101,5 10.67 

280,Ol5.2S 

4,50.5.760.69 
294,644 .95 

685 ,307.05 
43,341.16 

10 1,1)15.89 
3,720,407.4 5 

22,923.909.71 

2J{)6,076.81 

2,27 1,389.13 
7.4'8.668.49 
) ,059.429.63 
1,513.696.11 

253,734.8' 
17l,927 26 

68,789.80 

690.730.99 
1,1 .54,860.47 

114,632.66 

1,1 41,59700 

2'7,671,37 
4,1 07,498.)6 

24,712,702 .9~ 

(1,808,793,24) 

2.IIO,8Z3,43 

(2,1 10,823.4) ) 

99 1.500.00 

297.999.96 
29,733 60 

lJ I9.233.56 

(489,559.68) 

18.482,607 .26 

89),S09.70 

S 18,886,857.28 

~ nOles 10 nn3.ncia] statements 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDIT URES AND 


CHANGES rN Fl1J\tr> BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO STATEMEt-.'T 

OF ACTI VITI ES 

Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Ne t Change In Fund Balances - Tota l Governmental FWlds S (489,559,68) 
Increase in Enc umbrances 893,809.70 
Amounts reported fo l' Governmental Activit!es in Ihe Statement of Activities 

are different because: 

Depreciation expense is not reponed as a expenditure in the governmental funds (2,265,23 1.80) 

Proc~ds of Jong-tclm debt al'e not revenue on the Statement of Activi ties· 
instead they are an incrc:;Jse in the debt 00 the Sialemmenl or Ne! Assets (99 1,500.00) 

Plincip31 payments on debt service ate not an expense in the S t:;J.tcmenl of Activities . 

instead, they are a reduction o f debt on the Statement orNe! Assets 1,141 ,597.00 

Amonizalion of Oond Pn:mlllmfDiscountf)ssue Costs ale not reponed in the Statement of Activit ies· 

instead they are repol1ed as a reduct ioll o f an assetlliJbil ily on the Stateme nt of Ne t Assets (24 ,917,50) 

Change In OPEB Llabilily i ~ not reported as an exp~ndi:IL~ in the 

governmental funds (555,851.75) 

Accrued mlerest 011debt ur the govenuncntal funds is not rt pOLled as an 

expendilUie m lhe £ove rnmenral funds (3,138.35) 

CJpitai expendi{\J res afe not an expense in the Statement or Activ ities· 
msleOl ci, they are an nddillon to capita l assets on the Statement of Net Assets 4,13 1,043.1 4 

Accrued vacation not requinng the: use of current resources is not reponed 

as an expendirure in the government al funds ( 14,955 .40) 

Change In Net Asse ts orGovcrnmellia l Activities S 1,821,295.36 

See notes to fin ancial statements 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEll 

STATEMENT Of NET ASSETS 


PROPRIF..TARY ro UNDS 


JIII~ ~O,lOII 

NatUr.lIGu Water wnd s.cwcr 
ASS ETS Fund fumJ TOla l 

Current A!>Sets' 

C"'" S 190.89G.20 S 2 19,873 .7 8 S 4 10, 769.95 
In~,,",lrro;nl in Suu~ InveStment Pool 4,$18.77S. ~J l,18?}98.14 7.608. 176.67 
CnurlC'al~ orOeposil 501 .413 S6 S01.433.S6 
Accounts ReceIVable· (Less Allowanc~ 

for Doubtful ACCl5 01 5177.8(148S 213.405.10 78 4,1)86.94 I ,OS8.392.Q4 
Due from OIlier Funds 294.044 ,78 294.1).. 4.78 
O1hcr Receivable) 23S,JI756 2H,317.S6 
Invel1lones 139.643.66 155.55 7.27 295,:1.00 ,93 
Prepaid Expenses 2,600 00 7.4(10.00 10.000 00 
Tenl auunl Asse" 5,425.323. 49 4.98S.01 2.0J 10,413,335. 52 

NoncIIlTen: Aucts. 
OtIKr Rr:SIri(lcd Funds 7\.97153 11,97153 
C3plLJ.1 A>Sets. 

La nd 584.868,36 1.655 .118 .89 2.23').987.2 5 

OUlki oniS 1,670.4S71J 30,931.093. 13 32.601,580.16 
Equl pI"IlCl11 1,271,810.94 2.586,66000 3,8S9.470.94 
lmprovC1l'("ntS Olher lhln BuildinG 22.775,51) 10 89.822.267.05 112.597,780 IS 
Cons[rlICl ioll 11\ Proo;us 239.543 31 20.936,7H.34 21.176,300.65 
A«u"",llItcd DeP"C'C)'UOIt (IO,037,099.93) (4 8,198,812 64) (5&,l35,9 12.57) 
ToUI Noneunen: A~set5 16,506, 122 .91 97,705,055.)0 114,21],]78.21 

TOla l ASS(ts 21,931,.146 40 102.693.067.33 124 ,624,513.73 

UAUILlTI(S 

Curnnt lQbihucs 

CUITet11 Portion ofLonIl·Tcnn Debt 147.000.00 2,75.1.186.00 1,90 1, 186.00 

Bank Ovcrtlf":lft 30,162 16 224.081. 29 254.2 45.45 

Accoonts Payable· Vcndors 273,619.53 J7M35 )7 649.274.90 

Duc 10 Olher Funds 90, 1.16.41 140.590 41 230,736.82 

Ottle r Cu ne n] L.,abi litin 100.00 1~O . OO '250. 00 

A«fUed ]IHcrw 5.302.08 D01.08 

AtaVCd Pa)'l"oU 11>6 Rc b led Items 35,S45.SS 72.060.01 107.005.56 

A('(rued Vacillon hy 26.8.5 1.06 70.048.3S %,905.41 

rOlal Currenl L[~b,lil ics 009,0 527<.1 3. 636,753 43 '.2.(5,806.22 

Nuncu!1"cnt tlabiluc$: 
j'}ost Empj())'I" ncnl Dendi!s 13 7.J 37.57 401,918.41 $39,2~5.9 1! 

Notes pz);ablc 99~.OOO.00 31.478 ,633.00 32,473.6)3.00 

Uutil), Bood.Ii Pa~e 698.41215 11,966.265.59 12.664.677 .74 

T01al NOllCurrcntliab)h"~ 1.830,74972 43.346.8 17.00 45,677.56672 

TOII 'llabi lll ;cl 2,439.802.51 .(7,483.570 43 49,921,)72.94 

NET ASS~TS 
In...~ted In Capita l Assets, N", of Re!a1cd Debt 14,665.71 0 76 SI.433.999.18 66,099,709.94 

Re1otr>Ctt<l for Debl ScrvK~ 71.97] 53 7J,97 U3 

UnrcSt ric l~d 

Toull\~ .....$5I;:[S S 
4,825.933 13 

19.49 1.643.89 , 3,703,526 19 
55 ,209,496.90 S 

8,529,45932 
74.70 1.140.79 

Sec nolU 10 financii ] i\atements 
IS 



CITY OF LEBANON, TENN ESSEE 


ST KfEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES ANO CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 


Operating Revenues 
Charges for Services 

Operatin g Expenses 
Utili ty Operating Expense 
Na tural Gas Purchased 

Depreciation 


Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income 

Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses) 

Interest Revenue 

interest Expense 
Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses) 

Income before Contributions and 'fran sIers 

Contdbmions and Transfers 
Contributed Capita l 
Transrers - Tax Equi valents 

TOIaI Conlributions and Trans fers 

Change in Net Assels 

Net Assets 
July 1,2010 

Prior Period Adjustment 

PROPRIETARY FUN DS 

Year Ended JUlie 30, 20 I t 

Natural Gas 
Fund 

$ 10,025, 140.79 

1,826,7 10.05 

5,292, 173.46 

778,422.61 

7,897,306.12 

2,127,834.67 

7,686.75 
(41,672.74) 

(33 ,985.99) 


2,093 ,848.68 

( 159,999.96) 
(159,999.96) 

1,933,848.72 

17,557,795 .17 

Wa ter and Sewer 

Fund Total 

$ 11 ,732,309.48 $ 21,7 57,450.27 

6,983,908.73 

),5 11 , 192 .9 1 

10,495,10 1. 64 

8,810,618.78 

5,292 ,173 .46 

4,289,615.52 
18 ,3 92,407. 76 

1,237,207 .84 3,365,042. 51 

13,199,85 

(547,892.47) 

(534,692.62) 

20 ,886. 60 

(589,565. 21 ) 
(568 ,678. 61 ) 

702,515.22 2,796 ,3 63. 90 

1,445 ,1 54.78 
( 138,000.00) 

1,307, 154.78 

1,445,154,78 
(297,999,96) 

1,147, 154.82 

2,009,670.00 3,943,5 18,72 

46,781,994.31 

6,4 17,832.59 

64,339,789.48 

6,417,832 ,59 

Jltn~ 30 , 20 L! $ 19,491,643.89 $ 55,209,496.90 $ 74,70 1,140,79 

See notes to financial statements 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

STATEM ENT CASH FLOWS 


PROPRJETARY FU'NDS 


Year Ended June 30, 20 It 

Wate r and Sewer 


Fond 


$ 1\ ,8 20,24 2.98 

(2 ,877,434.66) 

(3.752,255.07) 

(442,713 .70) 

27,672.23 

4,775,5 11.78 

(J38,000.00) 

4,03 3,991 .54 

(5 ,397,332.25) 

(2 ,549 ,296.00) 

(547,892.47) 

(4 ,460,529. 18) 

13 ,199 ,85 

124.59 
13,324.44 

190 ,3 07 .04 

2,890,93 6.41 

Cash Flows From Operati ng ActI vi ties: 

Receipts from Customers 

Payments to Supplie rs 

Payments to Employees 

Internal Activity - Payments (To) From Other Funds 

Other Receipl ~ (Paymen1~) 

Net C<lsh Provided By Operating Ac tiviles 

Cash Flows From Noncapitai Fi nancing ActivIt ies: 

Transfers - Tax EqUivalents 

Cash f. lows From Cap ital and Related Financiug Activities: 

Proceeds on Notes Payable 

Proceeds 011 Bonds 

Payments for Capilal Acquisi tions 

Pnncipa l Pa id on Notes 

Interest Paid 


Repayment of Bonded Debt 


Ne t Cash (Used) By Capit.. ! 

and Rel ated Fi na nclllg Activilies 


Cash Flows From Investin g ActiVIties: 

Interest Revenue 

Increase in lo vestments 

Net Cash Provided By hlvt:sling AelivHtes 

Net Inc rease ( Decrease) in Cash and Te mporary In vestments 

Cash and Temporary lnvt:s tmen ls - July 1,20 10 

Natural Gas 

fund 

$ 1O,102,579.(i4 

(5 ,9 56,2 15.59) 

(l ,173,J85.J4) 

(68,078. 62) 

2,905, 100.29 

(159 ,999.96) 

(9 J9,206.07) 

(35,000.00) 

(4 2 ,197.74 ) 

005,000.00) 

(1 , 101 ,403.81) 

7,686.75 

7,686.75 

1,651,383.27 

3,358,29 1.46 

Cash and Temporary Investme nts - June 30, 20 11 $ >,009,674.73 $ 3,08 1,243.45 

Non-Cash Capital alld Relaled FinanCIng Activi ties: 

Capital Assets Aqui red By COl1tribulions f rom Developers $ $ 1,445,154.78 

Total 

$ 21,922.822.62 

(8,833 ,650.25) 

(4,925,440.2 J) 

(51 0,792 .3 2) 

27,672.23 

7,680,6 12.07 

(297 ,999.96) 

4,033 ,99 1.54 

(6 ,3 J6,538.32) 

(2 ,584,296.00) 

(590,090.2 1) 

005,000.00) 

(5,561 ,932.99) 

20,886.60 

124.59 

2 1.011.1 9 

1,84\ ,690J 1 

6,249,22 7.87 

S 8,090,9 18.1 8 

$ 1,445,1 54.78 

See notes to financ ial statements 
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CITY or LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

STATEM ENT CASH FLOWS 

PROPRlETARY FUNDS 

Y.:ar Ended June 30, 201 1 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to 

Cash Provided By Opt::rating Activi ties: 

Operating In come 

Adj ustments to ReconcIle Net Operating Income to Nel 

Cash Provided by Operati ng AclLvities: 

DepreciatIOn and Amortizati on 

Provision fo r Losses 00 Accounts Receivable 

Changes in Current and Deferred Items: 

Dc:.:reJse in Accounts Receivable 

(lncl ~a<;e) Decrease in Due From Other Funds 

Decrease in Other Receivables 
(Increase) Decrease in In ventories 

Increase HI Accounts Payable 

(Decrease) In Due to O ther Funds 

lncrea se ill Accrued Payroll 

Increase in Accrued Vacat ion Pay 

(Decrease) in Other Current Li abilities 

Increase in Post employment Benefits 

Net Cash Prov ided By Operating Activities 

Natural Gas 

Fund 

$ 2, 127,834,67 

778,422.31 

(15,469,26) 

92,908.1 J 

12,854 .64 

4,1 61.44 

15, 146.56 

(80,933 .26) 

6,1 69.40 
3,125.36 

(84,477.02) 

45,357.34 

$ 2,905, 100.29 

Water and Sewer 

Fund 

$ 1,23 7,207.84 

3,809,4 60, 72 

(19,762,29) 

107,695.79 

(283,834 ,04) 

27.672.23 

(6,770.12) 

1,666.17 

(158,879,66) 

7,93 1.24 

3,688.5 1 

(92,09 107) 

141,526.46 

$ 4,775,5 11.78 

$ 

$ 

Tota l 

3,365,042.51 

4,587,883, 03 

(35,23 1.55) 

200,603 ,90 

(270,979.40) 

27,672.2J 

(2 ,608. 68) 

16,8 12.73 

(239.8 12,92) 

14,100.64 

6,81.3.87 

(176,568,09) 

186,883,80 

7,680,6 12.07 

See notes to fi nancml statements 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


GENE RAL FUN D 

UUDGETARY COMPARJSON STATEMENT 


Year Ended June 30, 2011 


Budget 
Original Filial Actul l Villiara 

Revenuu 
Tallu: 

Real lind Personuhy S 3,040,000 00 S 3.040.000.00 , 3.071578.85 , 3i.S78.85 

Busin"~ T~x 700,000.00 700,000.00 92J,463.76 223.<163.76 
Wholesale Beer 81 5,000.00 8 15,000.00 86], 109.30 <16 ,109.30 
Sales Tn 6,850,000 00 6.850,000.00 7,759,586.43 909586.<13 
Cahle TV Franchi se Fce 200,00000 200,000.00 218";63 .06 18,<16306 
Hotcl nnd MOlel Ta~ 200.000 00 200,000,00 204 ,00 1.47 4,00 1,47 

LIQuor TI~ 230,000.00 230,000.00 254,307.80 24.307 .80 
12.035 .000.00 12.035,000.00 13,292,510.67 1,257,510.67 

Ta~ Equivalents: 
TVA T~ )I Replaccment 260,000.00 280,0 15.25 20,015.25 

260,000.00 280,01 5.25 20,0 15.25 
Federal, S111e and Regional 

Apport ionments ant! Gr~ U1 S : 

Sales Tax 1530.000.00 1,580,{)OO.00 1,642.25 1.94 62,25 1.94 
Income Tax 360,000.00 360,000.00 223,220. 15 ( 136,719.85) 

Slrcct ;lnd Tr.:Jnsponation Fund 50,000.00 50,000.00 D,255.83 3,255.83 
Highway Gr~ntS lint! COll1r.lClS 110,000.00 11 0,000.00 115.089.77 5,089.77 
Deer ·rax 12,000.00 12,000.00 12,944.29 944.29 

Akoholie Beverage Tlix 155,000.00 1 5~,000 .00 In,070.57 ( 1.929.43) 
Corporlte Exc l$(: Tax 31.000.00 31.000.00 27, 174.S I (),S25.49) 
Pollee and f trc Salary Supplement 48,000 00 48,000.00 59,400.00 I 1.400.00 

COPS Grant 179, 125. 7 1 119,125.11 

JAG Gn1111S 18,338.00 5 1.903.00 50,7 16.6 1 (1.186.39) 

Fi rerlShlcr~ FEMA Gran! 29.836.00 18,053.00 ( 11 ,783.00) 

DcA Gr~l1l 9534.34 17,565.41 8,031.07 

HJgh\V~y ~I(ety Grams 17,000.00 17,OO().00 0.00 (17,000.00) 

Bullet Proor Vcst Gf3JlI 0.00 0.00 1,375.01 i,315.Q1 

Flood OIlm3ge Grant 0.00 0.00 16,547.66 16,547.6<1 

Orgallitc<i Drug Enforcement Task FOn':e 0.00 0.00 28,826.96 28,826.% 

TelocnmmUI1;C31;onl> 2,000.00 2,000.00 2.000.95 0.95 

2,393,338.00 2,456,273.)4 2,600,6 18.37 144,)45,0) 

Flnts ,lIld CostS 6J4,OOO.00 634,000,00 6(;9 ,61 1.06 35.671.06 

RCl1t • O1hcr 25,500.00 25,500.00 17.244 .00 1,744.00 

Rell(5 from 01hcr CilY 16.000.00 16.000.00 16.10J.16 103.76 

Hishway ~nd Slreet Ch:lTgcs 50.000.00 50,000.00 26,404 .77 (23,.595.2J) 

Interut 15,00000 75,000.00 985 18.09 2.1,5 18.09 

Pem1ils 311d L,cellses 469.500.00 469.500.00 385.687.68 (83.8 12.)2) 

Sec l\o t'5 to fi nan, i ~) statcments 
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Budget 

Origmal 

Cemetery In c0l11l~ 75,000.00 

Park and Recre~lion Income 35,250.00 

In tcrest and Penally OIl Taxes ::tnd License' 22,500.00 

Miscellaneous 114,908.24 

Sale of Equipment 

1517,65 8.24 

Total Revcnucs 16,205,9%.24 

E:<;pe nditures 

CI ty Depanmem. 

Mayor and Council 2 19,854. 14 

CtlY AttOmcyIJ udlcla1 172,207.8 5 

Financial Adm inistr.lt ion 171,82023 

Bu ildIng Maintenen ce 85,222.99 

ACC Ol.lnling 2) 5,0311 S'i 
Cus10mel Bill ing )8,553.92 

Citizens ReVIew and AdVISOry BO:lrd 20000 

PurchasUlg 57,649.68 

CompUler Eq uipment 167,751.43 

PublIC WOI"ks 184,288.56 

Wareh\luse 4 1,772.05 

Personnel 84 ,21 988 

Traffic Mamlcnancc 397,041 26 

General Mamlenance 266,250.61 

Pohce 7,2 18,269.77 

['ire 4,040,097.64 

Bulldi ll.!! Inspection 277,758.69 

Stree t 1,240,807.08 

Ammal Conlrol 101,539.33 

Public Safely 204.085.29 

Engtncenng 298,865.80 

Gar:lge 264,291.95 

Cemetery 104,679.51 

Rccreat l\l n 598,539.63 

Special Events 7,93500 

Dues 270.693.77 

Community P:lTk 118,266.56 

EAC COllllllinec 32000 

Regiollal Tl"ansporation Authoftly 25,000.00 

Total Expt'nd ltllres 16,893,013.49 

Final 

75,000.00 

35,250.00 

22,500.00 

319.498.6 1 

1,722,248.6 I 

16,473 ,52 1.95 

220,379. 14 

172,207.85 

157,097 .33 

85,598.03 

244,593.26 

38,553.92 

200.00 

57,649.68 

172,3&6.94 

178,812.00 

41,772.05 

86,219.88 

421,334.26 

270.723.08 

7,453,215.48 

4,073,069.64 

242,758.69 

1,263,284.94 

103,310.63 

191,482.23 

31 1,665.80 
264.291.95 

104.679.51 
632,579.49 

7,023.51 

27 \.605.26 
94,376.70 

320.00 

25,000.00 

17,188,191.25 

Act ual V~nance 

66,275.00 (8 ,725.00) 

32 ,270.00 (2,980.00) 

(S,802.44) (28,)02.44) 

267,725.57 (S I ,n:t04) 

1.584,097.49 ( 1)8, 15 1.12) 
17.757,241.78 1,283,7 19.83 

182,324.31 38,054.83 

163,579.45 8,628.40 

144,72 2.09 12 ,375 .24 

74,4 18.68 11,1 79.35 

211,434.02 33,159.24 

35,506.25 3,047.67 

200.00 

52,956.60 4,693,08 

166,804.60 5,582.34 

[76,425.59 2,386.4 1 

40,01 1.36 1,760.69 

83 .<1 60.00 2,759.88 

394.179.77 29. 154.49 

235,082.69 35,640.39 

7,382,041.73 71,173.75 

3,964,614.37 108,455.27 

167,562.5 9 75 ,1 96.10 

1,073,899.78 189,385 .16 

101.050.86 2,259.17 
152,684.0 1 38,798.22 

276,289.12 35,376.68 

232 ,378.9 1 31,9 13.04 

68 ,789.80 35, 889.7 1 
623,883.34 8,696.15 

3,168.53 3,S54.98 

269,329 32 2,275.94 

8 1,831. 12 1 2,545.5~ 

174.76 145,24 

25 ,000.00 

16,3 83,603.65 804,587.60 

See notes to linanclul statements 
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CITY OF LEB ANON, TENNESSEE 


GENE\v\L FUND 


BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT 

Yenr Ended June 30. 2011 


Budge t 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) 

Expend\tures 

OriglLlal 

(687,017.25) 

f inal 

(714,669.30) 

AClual 

1,)73,638.13 

Variance 

2,088.307.43 

Other finanCing Sourccs l Uses): 

Trdns fcrs · Tnx Equivalents 

Opcr:lIl1lg Transfers From OIlier Fur. 
Opcr.tllng Tr.lflSfc~ To Olhcr f unds 

Bond Proceeds 

l.oa.! P'oceeds 
Other 

2%,000.00 

330,000.00 
(3.04S,00 1.94) 

1,000.000.00 

100,000.00 
200,000.00 

(1 ,120.00 1.94) TOlal O~her flflancing Sources (Use:_--,,====,­

29S.000.00 

330,000.00 

(3.083,001 .94) 

1.000.000.00 
100,000.00 

200,000.00 

(1,155,001.94) 

297.999.96 

230,000 00 

(2,916.642.8.5 ) 
99 1,500.00 

29.733.60 

(1 ,367,409.29) 

(0.04) 

(100,000.00) 

1 66,:m.09 
(8,500.00) 

( 170,166.40) 

(112,407.3.5) 

Exccss of Revcnues and Other Sourccs 

Over (Under) Expendl\nres and Olh("1" 
Uses S (1.807.0 19.19) S (1,869.67 1.24) 6,228.&4 S 1 ,'}7.5,900.0S 

Fund Balances. 

July L 2010 

GASB .54 Accounting Changc 

Prior Pcriod Adjustll1ent 

Balance. Ju ly I, 2010, restated 

Increa~ In Encumbrances 

June 30. 201 1 S 

14,408,083.23 

27.694.1 0 

37,3 18.73 

14,473,096.06 

81.)3.809.70 

1.5,373.134.60 

Reconciliation to fumilinnneia l statements: 

Exccss or R~venues and Olher Sources Over (Under) 

EXP<'ll l.itlllles and Oliler Uses 
Revcn ~l~ s an <.l Expend ,tures u,,1 lIle ludcd '" budg~lary Slalemcnts. 

Sal\lInlion revenucs 

S~ I\'t a li o n expenditures 

r un,] Dalallccs · blld!;c1<lf)' 

Salll\allOll assets 
Sanitat io n liabilltics 

S 

, 
, 
, 

6,228.84 

1, 160,239.60 
(992,050.07) 

174,418.37 

15,373 .134.60 
310,974 .96 
(39.746.7 1) 

1.5.644,362.8.5 

Sec noles 10 rm~nc ial sl3lemcnts 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

NOTE TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT 

June 30, 2011 

NOTE 1 - BUDGETS 

Formal budgetal), accotll1ting is employed 3S a management control fo r all funds of the City. Annual 
operating budgets are adopted each fiscal year through passage of an annual budget ordinance and 
amended as required for the Genera l Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Proprietary Funds, and the 
same basis of accounting is used to reflect actual revenues and expenditures/expenses recognized on a 
modified accrual basis. Budgetary control is exercised at the depanment level. All unencumbered 
budget app ropriations lapse at the end of each fisca l year. 

Under TCA 68-2 11-874, the city is required to account for jls solid waste co ll ection activities in a 
separate fund. TIle Ci ty accounts for these activities in a separate sanitat ion fund which does not 
qualify as a spec ial revenue fund under generally accepted accounting principles. Accord ingly, for 
fund reponing, the sanitation fund is included as a part of the general fund but for budgetary 
reporting it is not included as a part of the general fund. The preceding page includes a 
reconciliation of the general fund budgetary reporting to the general fund reporting on page 15 under 
generally accepted accounting principles. 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2011 

NOTE 	J - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(A) 	 Reporting Entity 
The City of Lebanon, Tennessee was incorporated in 1911 and operates under a mayor and 
alderman form of govemment As required by generally accepted accolUlling principles, the 
financial statements reflect the financial activities of the City of Lebanon as the primalY 
governmen t, as well as its component \lIli!, tbe Lebanon Senior Citizens Center. These 
statements do not include the private purpose U"Ust funds , which are fiduc iary in nature. Private 
purpose trust funds are used to accoun t for trust arrangements where the principal and interest 
benefit indi viduals, plivate organizations, or other governments. 

Individual Component Uuit Disclosures 
Discretely Pl'esented Component Unit 
The component unit column in the combined fmancial statements includes the financial data of 
the Lebanon Senior Citizens Center. It is a component unit because the City is financially 
accountable for the Center due to fiscal dependency. The Center issues separate audited 
financial statements, copies of wh ich may be obtained from the City of Lebanon accounting 
depanment. 

(8) 	 Government-Wide and Fund F.irtancial Statements 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide fLnanciaJ statements include the statement of net assets and the statement 
of activiti es. T hese statements report financial infonnation for the City as a whole. The 
primary government and componen t ullit are presented separately within the financial 
statements wi1h the focus on the primary government. Individual funds are not displayed but 
the statements di stingu ish governmental activities, generall y supported by ta..'<es and City 
genera l revenues, from business-type acti vi ties, generally financed in whole or in pan with fees 
charged to extemal cuslomeI:s. 

T he statement of activ ities reports the expenses of a given runction offset by program revenues 
direc tly comlected with the functional program. A function is an assembly of similar activities 
and may include portions of a fund or summarize more thai one fund to capture the expenses 
and program revenues associated with a distinct functional activity. Program revenues include: 
(1) charges for services which rcpol1 fees, fines and forfeiture, and other charges to users of the 

City's services; (2) operating grants and contributions which finance annual operating activities 
inCluding restric ted investment income; and (3) capital grants and contributions w hich fund the 
acqu isition , consln.lction, or rehabilitation of capital assets and include fees 10 developers. 
These reven ues are subject to externally imposed restrictions to these program uses. Taxes and 
other revenue sources nol properly included with program revenues are reported as general 
revenues. 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

June 30, 2011 

NOTE J - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED 

Fund Financial Slatemellts 

Fund financ ial statements are provided for governmental and proprietary funds. Major 
individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported in separate co lunUls with composite 
co lumns for non~major funds. 

(C) 	 Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting, and F inancial Statemen t Presentation 
The financial statements of the City are prepared in accordance wilh generally accepted 
accounting plinciptes (GAAP). The City's rcporting entity applies all rel evant Governmental 
Acco unting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements and applicable Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opin ions 
lssued on or before November 30,1989, wlless they conflict with GASB pronouncements. The 
City' s reporting entity does not apply FASB pronouncements or APB opinions issued after 
November 30, 1989. 

Tbe government-wide statements report using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accnlal b<lsi s of accounting generally including the reclassification or elimination of internal 
activity (between or witbin funds). However, internal eliminations do n01 include utility 
services provided to elty departments. Reimbursements are reported as reductions to expenses. 
Proprietary fund financial statements and financial statements of the City component unit also 

repol1s using thi s same focus and basis of accounting although internal acti vity is not el iminated 
in these statements. Revenues are recorded when earned. and expenses are recorded when a 
Ii..bil ity is incun·ed, regardless of the Liming of related cash flows. Property tax revenues are 
recogni z.ed in the year for wh ich Ihey are levied while grants are recognized when grantor 
el Igibility requirements are met. 

Governmental fund financial statements report using Lhe current financial resources 
measurement Cocos and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized 
when they are both measurable and available. Avai lable means collectible wi thin the current 
period or SOOI1 enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. The City considers revenues to be 
available if they are co llected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year. Expenditures are 
reco rd ed when the related fund liability is incuned, except for gener<ll obl igation bond principal 
and interest which are reported as expenditures in the year due. 

Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual include: sales 3Jld Llse taxes, hoteVmotel taxes, 
franchi se taxes (fees), intergovernmental revenues, and investment income. In general, other 
revenues Rrc recognized when cash is received. 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINIIED 

June 30, 2011 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED 

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements inc ludes revenues and 
expenses re lated to the primary, continujng operations of tile fund . Principal operating revenues 
fo r proprietary funds are charges lO customers fo r saJes or serv ices, Principal operating 
expenses are the costs of providing goods or services and include administrative expenses and 
depreciation of capital assets. Orner revenues and expenses are classi fied as non.operating in 
the financial statements. 

When both restricted and unresLricted resources are available for lise , it is the City' s policy to 
use res tricted resources fLTst, then unrestricted resources as needed. "Vhen comrnilted and 
assigned and unassigned amounts are available for use, it is the City's po licy to use committed 
resources first, tilen assigned resources, then unassigned amounts. See Note 2 for information 
describ ing restricted assets. 

AI/ocoll on ofInriirect Expenses 

The City alloca tes indirect expenses primruily comprised of central govemmental services to 
operation func ti ons and programs benefiting from those services. Central services include 
overall Cit)' management, centralized budgetary fonnulatlon and oversight, accounting, 
financial reporting, payroll, procurement contracting and oversight , investing and cash 
management, personnel services, and other central administrati ve services. Allocations are 
charged to programs b(l sed on use of central services detennined by vanous allocation 
methodologies. These charges are separately reported in the statement of acti vities. As a matter 
of polley, certain functions that use significaot cenlral services are not charged for the use of 
lhese services. These functions or programs include police. fire, and certain di visions within 
pubJic serv ices and parks. 

(D) Fund Type.s nnd Major Funds 

Governmel1l(l{ Funds 

The City reports the fo llowing major governmental funds: 

Gen era l Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to 
occount for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

June 30, 2011 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED 

Proprietary Funds 

The City reports the following major enterprise hmds: 

'Vater and Sewer - accounts for the operating activities of the City's water and sewer services. 

Natural Gas - accounts for the operating activities of the City's gas services. 

(E) 	 Statement of Cash Flows 
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the enterprise funds consider all highly liquid 
investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased 
to be cash equivalents. 

(F) 	 Capitalization of Interest 
Interest costs arc capitalized when incurred by proprietary funds on debt where proceeds were 
used to finance the construction of assets. $431,916 of interest was required to be capitalized 
for the year ended June 30, 20 II. Interest costs on general fixed assets are not capitalized. 

(G) 	 Capital Assets, Depreciation, and Amortization 
The City's property, piant, equipment, and infTastructure with usefullivcs of more than one year 
arc stated at historical cost and comprehensively reported in the government-wide financial 
statements. The City maintains infrastructure asset records consistent with all other capital 
assets. Proprietary and component unit capital assets are also reported in their respective fund 
and component unit financial statements. Donated assets are stated at fair value on the date 
donated. The City generally capitalizes assets with cost of $1,000 or more as purchase and 
construction outlays occur The costs of nom1al maintenance and repairs that do not add to the 
asset value or materially extend useful lives are not capitalized. The costs of nonnal 
maintenance and repairs that add to the asset value or materially extend useful lives are 
capitalized if they exceed $5,000. Capital assets, including those of component units, are 
depreciated using the straight-line method. When capital assets are disposed, the cost and 
appllcable accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and the 
resultIng gain or Joss is recorded in operations. 

(H) 	 Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with generally accepted accounting 
principles reglllres management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the rep0l1ed 
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could 
di ffer from those estimates. 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

NOTES TO FINAi"ClAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

June 30, 2011 

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAi"T ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED 

(I) 	 Inventori es 

In ventories are stated at average cost. 


(J) 	 Bank Overdrafts 
It is the City's policy to invest funds in interest-bearing accounts until needed to cover checks 
written, thus maximizing eamings on funds. Amounts are transfen-ed as checks are presented, 
therefore bank overdrafts shown on the financial statements represent outstanding checks for 
which funds have no~ yet been transferred out of the interest-bearing accounts. Bank. overdrafts 
at June 30, 2011 amounted to $394,894.98. 

(K) 	 Long-Term Debt. Deferred Debt Expense, and Bond DiscountslPrcmiums 
In the govenunent-wide, proprietary, and component unit financial statements, outstanding debt 
is reported as liabilities. Bond issuance costs, bond discounts or premiums, and the difference 
between the reacquisition pnce and the net canying value of refunded debt are capi tali.zed and 
amo rti zed over the teJl11S of the respective bonds using a method that approximates the effective 
interest method. 

The governmental fund financial statements recognize the proceeds of debt and premiums as 
other financing sources of the current period. Issuance costs are reported as expenditures. 

(L) 	 F und Balances 
The governmental fund financial statements report fund balances based on the natllre of the net 
resources reported in the fund. Fund balances are categorized as fo llows: 

NOllspelldable - amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) nol in spendable fonn 
or (b) legally or contractually required to remain intact. 
Restricfed - amounts that are constrained for use by (a) external parties, SllCh as creditors, 
grantors, comribulors or laws or regulations of other governments or (b) law through 
constitutional provisions or enab ling legislation 
Commtlled - amounts that are constrained fo r use by fonnaJ acti on of the govemrnent's highest 
level o f deci sion-making aulllOrity 
ASSigned - amou nts lllat are constrained by the govenunent's intent to be used for specific 
purposes, but are neither restricted nor corruniued . 
UnaSSigned - Residual classification for llle genera l rllnd and funds where expendi tures 
incurred for specific pllrposes exceed the amounts restricted , committed or assigned to those 

purposes. 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

NOTES TO FINAt'<CIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

June 30, 2011 

NOTE J - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED 

(M) 	 Property Tax Revenue 
PropcI1y taxes are lev ied on October I based on the assessed value of property as listed on the 
prev ious JanualY I. All unpajd taxes levied October 1 become delinquent March I of the 
rollowing year. 

I.n accordance with GASB 33, the property taxes to be lev ied on October 1, 20 11 in Ihe amount 
of $3,054,7 15.00 have been accrued in the General Fund and the Governmental Activities as 
receivable and de ferred revenue at June 30, 20 11. 

(N) 	 Encumb rances 
Encumbrance accounting is used for the General Fund, Special Re venue Funds, and Capital 
Proj ect Funds. Encumbrances are recorded when purchase orders are issued but are not 
considered expenditures until liabilities for payments are incurred. Encumb rances are included 
in the fund balance classifications above based on the resource criteri a noted above. 
Encumbrances do not lapse at the close of the fiscal year but are carried forward ill the fund 
balances until liquidated. 

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Cash on th e balance sheet includes petty cash and cash on hand in the amount o f $13,750 and deposits 
with fmancial instituti ons including demand deposits and passbook savings accounts. 

The Commiss ioner o f Fi nance and Revenue is the treasurer o f the City and in thi s capaci ty is 
responsible [or receiving. d isbursing, depositing and investing City fund s. Various restricti ons on 
deposit s and investments are imposed by Slate statutes. These restncljons are summarized <"IS follows: 

All depos its with financial institutions other than savings and loan associations must be collatera li zed 
in an amount equal to 105% of the face amount ofuninsured deposits. The collateral must be p laced by 
the depositOly bank in an escrow account in a second bank for the benefi t o f the Ci ty. Deposits with 
savings and loan associ<lt ions must be coll aterali zed b y one of the fo llowing methods: 

( I ) 	 By an amount equal to 105% of the face amount of uninsured depos its if the collateral is 
of the same character as that required for other financial institutions; 

(2) 	 By an irrevocable Jetter of credit issued by the Federal Loan Bank; or, 

(3) 	 By providing notes secured by first mortgages or first deeds Oflrus t upon residential real 
property located in Tennessee. The promissory notes must be in an amount equal to 
150% oftlle amount of uninsured deposits. 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

June 30, 2011 

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED 

The Commissioner of Finance and Revenue is authOlized to m.ake direct investments in bonds, notes or 
treasury bills o[the U.S. Govenunem and obligations guaranteed by the U.S. Government or any or its 
agencies . These investments may not have a maturity greater than two years. The Conunissioner of 
Finance and Revenue may make investments with longer matUlities if he follows various restrictions 
set out in state law. The Commissioner of Finance and Revenue is also authorized to make investments 
in the Slate Pooled Investment Fund and in repurchase agreements. Repurchase agreements mllst be 
approved by the Slate Director or Local Finance and executed in accordance with procedures 
establi shed by the State Funding Board. Securiti es purchased under a repurchase agreement must be 
obligatjons of the U.S. Govemment or obligations guaranteed by the U.S. Government or any other 
agencies. When repurchase agreements are executed, the purchase of the securities must be priced at 
leasl 2% below the market value of the securities on the day of purchase. There were no repurchase 
agreements existing as of June 30, 201l. 

The canying amount of the City's deposits with financial institutions was $10,192,425, induding 
$5,538,967 in certificates of deposit, and the bank balance was $10,882,289. The bank balance is 
entirely insured by FDIC insurance and by the state bank co llateral poo l. 

The City of Lebanon has invested io !he State of Tennessee, local government investment pool. TIle 
City's net realizable value of the inveShnent totaled $15,894,905 at June 30, 20 11 , of which $71,972 js 
included in "Other Restri(.;[ed Funds" and IS restricted for debt serv ice. 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTlNUED 

June 30, 2011 

NOTE 3 - LONG-TERM DEBT 

The City has the [o llowing bonds o utstanding at June 30, 20 1t : 

Issue Dales 
Primary G o vern ,,,,en l 

G o vernmen ml ACli "l\ie~ : 

General O bhg:' l,on B onds' 

1992 Bonds , ].0 40.000 1992 - 20 12 V".ies. 

2008 Rond$ 3.840,000 2009 - 202) 3 .0% _ 4. 1% 

200) OQnds <1,505,0 00 2003 - 2017 2.0%- 4 .1% 

2004 TM BF Bonds 2.725,000 2 006 - 2025 3 .0% 

2008 T MB F Bo nd i 3.50 0 ,OUO 2008 - 2027 :'0.0% 

2011 T M B F B Ollds 1,000.0 00 1012-203 1 3.48% 


DU$;ncs,s.T ype Act\vi.e~: 
W ~h:r :ln d Sewer; 

T M8F 200 I 6 0"ds <I,OOO.<XlO 2004 - 202] Va,;ahl e 


TM Bf' 2005 OQnd~ 1.400,000 2007 - 2026 4.0% 

T M OF 2006 \3o l1d s 5.000,000 2008 _ 2027 5.0% 

TM Bf 2008 3 0"ds 4 ,150,000 2010-2029 5 .0 Q/o 


T M BP 201 1 8ond~ [.63 1.150 2012-2031 2 .!!6% 

N OUlT;> ' Gus: 

20011 l1vnd 1,1 75.000 2009 - 2018 3.0% - 4 .0% 
TM Of 2 00S Bo nds 1,100 .0 00 2010 _2029 5.0% 

In addioon, the City has various equipment notes secured by governmental capital assets. These 
notes are report ed in the govemmental activities section of the Statement of Net Assets. In addi tion, 
ulere are notes used 10 construct improvements to the utility infrastructure. and a capita l lease to 
purchase certain equi pment These are reported in the business- type acti vities in the Statement of 
Net Assets . 

long·lenn " 3hlli\y actiyity for lhe year ended JUlie 30, l Oll was as follows: 

IkgllUll/lg End ing Amounts Oue 
B3IJnCl: Addil jon~ Reducuons Balance \Yuh;n One Year 

GOVERNMENTA l. ACTI \' ITIES 
Bonds and N\)ICS P~y.:.blc 
Gencr~ 1 Obligatlllll Debt 
EqU1pollent Noles 

, 11, 189.05) 
% ,000 

, 1.000.000 , (1,094.597) 
147,000) 

S 11,094.45<1 
49.000 

S 1 , ) (j7,4~4 

49,000 
1! ,285,05 1 1.000,000 (l , 141 ,597) 11,1 4) ,454 1,2 16,454 

Pl us: 
Bond Prcml l.lm 18,782 (663) 18,1 18 

LC$~. 

Bund Discounl (63,394) 4,075 (59,3 19) 

Elond and Note I.<;$I IC CO~ t s (40,563) (8 ,500) 2,273 (46.790) 
Deferred ,\mouli t 011Rcfllllilillg i l99,79S) 19,232 (180,563) 

1 Olal G(lVtm l1l c l1t ~1 Ac ti " ltc ~ 

l ClIIs·Tcnll Debl , 11.000,081 , 99 1,500 S (1,11 6,680) S 10,874,900 , 1.216.454 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

NOTES TO FINAN CIAL STATEMENTS· CONTINUED 

June 30, 2011 

NOTE 3 • LONG· TERM DEBT . CONTINUED 

Beginning Ending Amounts Due 
Balance Addition. R«IoClions Balance Within One Ycar 

BUSLNESs·np( ACTfV ITIY..,s 

Bonds and NOles Payable' 
Natural Gas , 2,0}2,000 S S (140,000) S 1,892,000 S 147,000 
Water & Sewer S{},268,313 1,631 ,)50 12,549,196) 49,350, 167 2,754,1&6 

52,300.313 1,631,1 50 (2.689,296) 51,242,167 2,90 1,1 86 
Less: 

AnXl unts nO! yet bOI,'owcd (5,465,143) 2,401,842 (3.062')01) 
Bond Premium 4,014 4,0\4 
Bond Discount (9,)60) 1,191 (8.16)) 
Bond l&Sue Costs (90,1l9) (10,073) (100.2 12) 
Bond Loss (42,'87) 6,480 (36,007) 

TOI:II Bonds and Notcs Payable 46.697,198 4,0)1,596 (2.689,196) 48,039,493 2,901,186 

Total Bllsiness·TJ1lc ActlYltJeS S 46,697,198 S 4,031 ,596 S (2,689,2961 S 48,039,498 S 2,901,186 

Annual ReqUlremenls to Maturity on Long-Term Debt: 

Primary Government 
Governmental Activities 

General Obli~ation Bonds Egul2mcnt Notes 
Year Ended June 30, 
2011 

Pnncieal 
$ 1,167,454 

Interest 
S 441,439 $ 

Principal 
49 ,000 $ 

lnterest 
1,1 56 

1013 994.000 40 1,050 
20 14 1,026,000 364,112 

2015 815,000 325,545 

2016 740,000 294,181 

1017-2021 3,246,000 1,050,980 

2022-2026 2.5 19,000 405, 162 
202) -2031 
Total 

587.000 
$ 11,094.454 

41,395 
$ 3,330,869 $ 49,000 2, 156 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 


June 30, 2011 


NOTE 3 - LONG-TER]\1 DEllT - CONTINUED 

Busl1lcss-Type Acti vities 
Water and Sewer Bonds Water and SewerNotes 

2012 
20 13 
2014 
20 15 

$ 

Princi pal 
643, 150 
672,000 
699,000 
727,000 

$ 

In terest 
587,227 
560,291 
532 ,200 
502,973 

S 
Princi~a l 

2, 1 I 1,03 6 
2,211 ,403 
2,272,787 
2.335,955 

$ 
Interest 

845,029 
809,812 
748,488 
685.332 

20 16 758,000 472,598 2.337,071 620,77) 
1017·2021 
2022 ·2026 

4,287,000 
4,245,000 

1,861,280 
920,901 

9,744,894 
8,141,935 

2,268,923 
1,266,66 1 

2027·2031 1,736,000 145,079 6,363,244 295,697 
2032 64,692 368 
Toml S 13,767,150 $ 5,582,549 $ 35,583,017 $ 7,541,145 

Business-Type Acti vities 
Natural Gas Bonds 

20 12 $ 

Principal 

147,000 $ 
Interest 

83,4lJ 

20 13 
20 14 
20 15 
20 16 

153,000 
155,000 
162,000 
170,000 

77,988 
72,063 
66,038 
59,4 38 

2017-202 1 
2022-2026 
2027·203 1 

534,000 
331 ,000 
240,000 

199,450 
IlI ,250 
24,400 

Total $ 1,892,000 $ 694,03 8 
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CITY OF LEBANON, T ENNESSEE 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 


June 30, 20 11 


NOTE 4 - LIABILITY FOR COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

Regular full time employees are al!owed to aCCnIe 13 sick days each year. Fire Department employees 
are credited five hours sick leave for each full pay period of continuous service since initial 
employment. Employees can be pa id sick leave only when the emp loyee who has accrued leave is 
incapacitated by sickness Of off-the-job inj ury, for medical or optica l diagnosis or treatment, to attend 
funerals, or as the result of or exposure to contagious disease. On lennination, unpaid sick leave 
wi ll be credited towards yellfs of service. Jf retiring, an employee can elect to use unpaid sick leave 
credit to c lIec t an earl ie r retirement dale, or c redi t towards years of serv ice on re ti rement. 

A liability for unused sick leave is not recorded in the financial statements. 

Regular full-time employees with one year of continuous service e~m one week of annual leave. 
During the nex t nine years of service, lwo weeks shall be accrued per year. Beginning in year eleven of 
consecutive employment, three weeks shall be accrued each year. Annual leave not used may be 
carried from year to year to a maximum of four work weeks or twenty days. Fire department 
employees may accrue to a maximum of 244 hOUTS. As of June 30, 2011 the liability for accrued 
vacation is $ 524,536. 

NOTE 5 -INDUSTRIAL BUILD ING BONDS 

The accounts of the Ci ty appropri<l tely excl ude the liabilities for bonds issued under the Tennessee 
Lndust rial Buildi ng Revenue Bond Act of 195 1 for conSlrliction of industri al buildings. Reot from the 
propenies is designated for the payment of interest and debt retirement of the bonds and notes issued 
[or construction. A substantia l port ion of such rental co llections and debt serv ice payments is made 
directly by trustees. The bonds ilnd nOles do not constitute an indebtedness of the City and are 
considered to be self- liqu idati ng. 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTIN UED 


June 30, 2011 


NOTE 6 - PENSION EXPENSE 

Plan Desc ription 
Employees of the City of Lebanon, Tennessee are members of the Political Subdivision Pension 
Plan (PSPP), an agent multi pJe-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the 
TerUlcssee Consolidated Reliremenl System (TCRS). TCRS provides retirement benefits as 
well as death and disab il ity benefits. Benefits are dctennined by a fannula using the member's 
high five-year average salary and years of service. Members become eligible to retire at (be age 
of 60 with fi ve years of service or at any age with 30 years of serv ice. A reduced retirement 
benefit is availab le to vested members at the age of 55. Disabili ty benefits are available to 
ac tive members with five years of service who become disabled and caru,ot engage in gainful 
employmen t. There is no serv ice requirement for disability that is the result of an accidf:nt or 
il\iury occurring while the member was in the perfonnance of duty. Members joining the 
system after July 1, 1979 become vested after four years of service and members joining plior 
to July 1, 1979 were vested after five years of service. Benefit provisions are established in 
slale statute found in Title 8, Chapter 34-37 of the Teru1essee Code Annotated (TCA). State 
statutes are amended by the Tennessee General Assembly. Political subdivisions such as the 
City of Leb,ll1on, Tennessee participate in the TCRS as individual entities and are liable for all 
costs ;lssociared with the operat ion and administration of their plan. Benefil improvements are 
not applicable to a pOlitical subdivision unless approved by the chief governing body. 

The TCRS issues a publicly available fioaocial report that includes financial statements and 
requi red supplementary information for the PSPP. That report may be obtained by writing to 
Telulessee Treasury Department, Consolidated Retirement System. 10th Floor Andrew Jackson 
Building, Nashville, TN 37243-0230 or can be accessed at http ://wv..rw .tn.gov/treasury/tcrsIPS. 

Funding Policv 
City of Lebanon, TerUlessee has adopted a nonconbibutory reli rement plan for its employees by 
assuming employee conuibulions up to 5.0 percent ofannua l covered payroll . 

City of Lebanon, Tennessee is required to contribute aI an actuanally detennined rate; the rate 
for the flsca l year ending June 30, 2011 was 14.7 1% of atUluaJ covered payroll . The 
contribulion requirement of plan members is set by state statute. The contribution requirement 
of City of Lebanon, Tennessee is established and may be amended by the TCRS Board of 
Trustees. 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


NOTES TO FINAi'lCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 


June 30, 2011 


NOTE 6 - PENSION EX PENSE CONTINUED 

Annual Pension Cost 

For the year ending Ju ne 30, 2011 the City of Lebanon, Tennessee's annual pension cost of 
$1,760,384 to TCRS was equal to the City of Lebanon, Tennessee's required and aenla! 
contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the July 1, 2009 aclllariai 
valuatIOn using the frozen entry age actuarial cost method. Significant actualiat assumptions 
used in the valuation inchlde (a) rate of return on investm.ent ofpresent and future assets of7.5 
percent a year compounded arulUally. (b) projected 3.0 percent annual rate of inflaLi on., (c) 
projected salary increases of 4.75 percent (graded) 3IUlUai rale (no expJic it assumption is made 
regardj ng the portion attributable to the effects of inflation on sa laries), (d) projected 3.5 percent 
aJUlt1a l increase in the Social Security wage base, and (e) projected post retirement increases of 
2.5 percent annually. The actuarial value of assets was determined using technjques that 
smooth the effecl of shon-teml volatility in the market value of total investments over a ten­
year period. The City of Lebanon, Tennessee's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being 
amol1ized as a level dollar amount on a closed basis. The remaining amortization peri od at July 
I , 2009 was 6 years. An actuarial valuation was performed as of July 1, 2009, which 
established contribution rates effective July 1, 201 0. 

Trend Infonnation 
Fiscal Annual Percentage Net 
Year Pension o(APC Pension 
End in g COSl(APC) Contributed Obli gatio n 

6/30/ 11 $1,760,384 100.00% $0.00 
6/30/10 $1,721,460 100.00% $0.00 
6/30/09 $ 1,869,244 lOO. OO% $0.00 

Funded Statu s nnd Funding Progress 

As of July 1,2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, th~ plan was 83.78% funded . The 
actuarial accrued li ability for benefits was $38. 1 million and the actuarial value of assets was 
$3 1.9 mi llion, resulting in an un funded actuarial accrued liability (VAAL) o f $6.2 mi llion. The 
covered payroll (annual payroll o f acli ve employees covered by the plan) was $ 12.5 million, 
and the rat io ofUAAL to the covered payroll was 49.31% percenl . 

The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary infonnation (RSI) 
following the notes to the financial statements, present multiyear trend infonnation about 
whether lhe achlanal values of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to 
i\A..Ls for benefi ts 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 


June 30, 2011 


NOTE 6 - PENSION EXPENSE - CONTINUED 


The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI) 
following the notes to the fmancial statements, present multiyear trend information about 
whether the actu,nial values of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the 
AALs for benefits. 

The armual required contribution (ARC) was calculated using the aggregate actuarial cost 
method. Since the aggregate actuarial cost method does not identify or separately amortize the 
u1lfunded actuarial liabilities, infomntion about funded status and funding progress has been 
prepared using the entry age actuarial cost method for that pUflJose, and this mformation is 
ll11enclecl to serve as a sun"ogate for the funded status and funding progress of the plan. 

(Dollar amounts 111 thousands) 

Actualial 

Accrued UAAL as a 

Actuanal Liability Unfunded Annual Percentage 

Act ll:lI'i al VJlue of (AAL) AAL Funded Covered ofCovcred 

Vaill ation Plall Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Pa)Toll 

D~lIe (0) (b) (b-a) (oIb) (0) «b-,)/o) 
July I, 2009 $ 31,924 $ 38,106 $ 6,182 83.78% $ 12,536 49.31% 


July 1,2007 $ 28,896 $ 33,754 $ 4,858 85.61% $ 11,630 41.77% 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 


June 30, 2011 

NOTE 7 - CA PITAL ASSETS 


A summmy o f changes in Capital Assets fo llows: 


Beginning 
Balance. Restated 

Goven,menlal Activities: 
Capllat Assel~ Nor t>cillS Dcp,ecialcu: 

Land S 7,807. 149.<)8 

Other Capjl~ l Asscls 
Buitdmg.s 
Impro,'clllcnts Other Than BUildings 
Equlpmcllt 
TO la! Dlhel Capll ~ 1 Assets at HIsto ri cal Cost 

17,268,259.90 
35,71 (,.)68.49 
12,229,349.26 

65,213,977 .65 

Less ACCllllllll m~d Dcprccialloll for: 

Bu ilctl l1 £s 
Improyel11 entS Oth er nUll Bui Idill !;s 
E'luipillCIlI 
TO Il l AC Cllll\iLI Q\cd Dcpl"cci~ \i O l l 

9,261,878.18 
[5,292,295.25 
10,5 10, SS8.0 1 
35,Q65 ,06 1.44 

Olher Cap ll al Asse\s, Net 30,148.916.21 

JllCreascs Dec reases 

, , 10.100.00 

%,020.26 

2,782,258.]3 

1,262,864.55 

4,141,143. 14 

524,562.72 
1,1 97,485.60 

543 ,1 83.48 
2.265.23 1.80 

1,875,911.34 

Govenrmenlal ACl lvlti es Capi lal Asscts, Net , 37,956,066.19 , 1,875,911.34 S 10,100.00 , 39.B21,877.53 

Depreciation Expense was Charged to functions as foHows' 
Gene ral Govemmem 
Public Works 
Public Safety 
Pulice 
fire 
Sireet 
Ceme wry 
RCtreatlOll 

JImmy Floyd Family Life Center 
Engineering 
Airpon 

$ 82,44 8.76 
20,119 .80 
10,623.2' 

279,460.56 
220,56 1.08 

1,090,756.64 
4,26 1.68 

11 3,337. 12 
230,668.08 

3,496.56 
209,498.28 

$ 2,265,23 1.80 

Ending 
Balance 

, 1.797.0<19.98 

17.364,2S0.16 
38 .498,626.82 
13.4921213.8 1 
69,355,120.79 

9,786,440.90 
16,489,780,85 
11 ,054,07 1.49 
37,330.293.24 

32,024,827.55 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


NOTES T O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 


June 30, 2011 


NOTE 7 - CAPITAL ASSETS - CONTINUED 


Btgillnmg Ending 
Bal~nce rncr~JSCS Decreases B~lancc 

Ousn\c!! TrrIC ACl i" 'Uts: 
Capi\31 A~~el$ Not being Deprec iated: 
L.ind , 2, I 33,&80.05 , 106,107.20 , S 2,239,987.25 
COIlS1nlClion 11\ Process 23,637.211.88 2,460.9 J 1.23 21:1 76)00.65 
TOlal Cllr!l ~l Anels Not Bcmg Depreciated 25,771 ,091 .93 W6J07.20 2,460,9 11 .23 23,4 16.287.90 

Other Capllal AS~Cl$: 

Buildings 30,%2,7>2.10 1,638,848.1 6 J2.60USO.26 
Improvements Olher T ban Buildmgs 97.862.612.63 1<1,735, 107.'>2 I n ,597.780. 15 
[qtlll',nelH 3,699,096.90 160(374.04 3.859,47094 
TO\.:l1Othe' Capl i~l Assets .11 HIS10nea! Cost 132,524,501.63 16534.329.n J49.058,831.35 

Le,s An:umllbled DcprcC131ioil ror: 
BUIldings IS,876,J O(U7 905,7 14.g8 16,782.015.25 
I lnprovtll1~nl$ Olher Th~n Buildings 35.507,712.13 3,430,974.47 38,938,696.70 
Equip111~n t 2.361.6 10.52 253,590.10 2.615,200.62 
Total Accul1lll l:11ed IXprc<::I~l1o n 53.745,633 12 4,590.279.45 58.)35,9 1251 

Olhe. C-J lljt~ 1 AS$CI;, Nc[ 78.778.868.51 11.944.050.27 90.722.918.78 

Bu ~jncss Type Ac[ivi tles Capital Assets. Nct S 104,549.%0.44 S 12.050,157.47 , 2.460.9 11.23 S 114.139.20668 

NOTE 8 - OPERATING LEASE 

The City has in effect certa in leases, as a Lessor, accounted for as operating leases, A schedule of 
fulure lease collections is as follows: 

Year E(lded 

.June 30, Collections 

20 12 $ 24,000 

20ll 24,000 

20 14 24,000 

201 5 24,000 

2016 24,000 


Ther~after 1,032,000 

$l,J,~2,QQQ 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


NOTES TO FlNANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 


J UDe 30, 20 11 


NOTE 9 - CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS 

Water and sewer and gas improvement projects in progress at June 30, 2011 totaling $20,775,221 
were approved during Ihc fiscal year. At June 30, 20 II , the City had incun'ed construction costs 
total ing $5 ,024,756. AI June 30, 20 11 , the Ci ty had 10laJ contracts outstanding ror buj Jding and road 
construction of $292,845. At June 30, 2011, the City had incurred construction costs totaling 
$ 1,134,498. 

NOTEIO-TRANSFERS 

Transfers during the year ended luGe 3D, 2011 , are summarized as follows: 

Governmental Funds 

M3jor Other Nonmajor 
Transfers Fund Governmental 
From Gerreral Funds TOltll 

Transfers 
To 

Gen{"f;'l l - S 230.000 S 230,000 
Other Nonmajor 

GoVenlrnc1l!~l F~lnds 

I, 

NOTE 1I - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAY ABLES 

Interfund receivables and payabJes generally include outstanding charges by one fund to another for 
goods and services and other miscellaneous items. Amounts outstanding at fiscal year end are reported 
as "Due lolDue from Other Funds" in the Govenunental Funds Balance Sheet. Amounts payable 
between govelll.menta l funds are e liminated in the Sialemeni ofNel Assets. Amounts payable between 
govenul1enta l type <lcti vities and business type act iv it ies are reflected as "Internal BaJances" on the 
Slatemelll of Net Asse ts. Amounts payable between the Primary Government and the Component Unit 
are not eliminated. 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 


June 30) 2011 


NOTE IJ - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES, CONTINUED 

Amounts outstanding at June 30, 20t 1 are as follows: 

Primary Government 

Gove mmenla} Fuods 
Major Fund O the r Pr0l?:rieta r~ Funds 

Nonmajof Water & Natu ra l 
Due from G ene ral Funds Sewer Gas TOlal 

Due To 
Govemmental Fum.ls: 

Major Funds: 
Genera l $ $ 217,058 $ 140,590 $ 90 ,1 46 $ 447,794 

Other Nonmajor Funds 3,779 33,682 37,461 
Propriewry funds : 

Waler & Sewer 294,045 1, 177 295,222 
Natura l Gas 272 272 

$ 3,779 $ 544,784 $ 140,862 $ 9 1,324 $ 780,750 

NOTE 12 - RXCESS EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS 

The following funds Jlad excess expenditures over appropriations. 

Fund Appropriations Expend itures Variance 

Street Improvemenl s $ 1,198,788 $ 2,081,917 $ (883 ,129) 

NOT E I J - RISK MANAGEMENT 

The City part ic ipates jn the Telmessee Municipal League Risk Management Pool for the ri sks of 10s5 to 
which it is exposed. These risks include general liabil ity, property and casualty, workers compensation, 
employee heal th and accident, and environmental. The City pays premiums to the ri sk management 
pool and risk of loss is transfelTed to the risk management pool. Settled clClims have not exceeded this 
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

43 




CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

JUDe 3D, 2011 

NOTE 14 - CONTINGENT LIABI LITY 

The City is involved in severa l causes of act ion being defended under various Insurance policies 
including the Tennessee Municipal League Risk Pool. It is expected that settled claims will not exceed 
limits of insurance. 

NOTE 15 SPECIAL ITEMS 

In a prior fisca l year, the court ordered that the City of Lebanon pay for infrastructure improvements to 
bring the City into compliance with ADA requi rements. A portion of these improvements relating to 
Ihe sidewalks has been cap italized in the fixed assets of governmental acti vities as the improvements 
are made. The Ci ty council had budgeted a max imum of $175,000 per year to be spent on these 
sidewalk improvements. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 20 11 , the C ity spent $39,601. 

NOTE 16 - JOINT VE NTURE 

During 1988, the City of Lebanon and Wilson County entered in to an agreement to purchase and 
develop land in an effort to develop an industrial park to benefi t the respective govenunents and the 
citi zens. The city and county each agreed to contribute 50% of all proceeds for land. A six member 
board, known as the Wilson CountylLebanon Development Board, was established for the development 
operation, 5uperv isioll, and maintenance of the projecL The city members include the mayor, the 
cOITUnissioner o f Public Works. and one aldeLman appointed by the mayor. The county members 
include the county execut ive, the chainnan of the Tax Raie and Budget Commi"ce, and one add itional 
commissioner who is nominated by Ule county executi ve. The board is audited annually by an 
independent certi fi ed public accountant approved by the Comptroller of the Treasury, State of 
Terulessee. The audlted financia l statements arc avail ab le from the Conunissioner of Final)ce for the 
City of Lebanon. As of June 30, 201 1, the audited financia l statements for the Board presented net 
assets of :£4 12,30 1. 

NOTE J7 - DEFICIT FUND BALANCES 

At June 30, 20 11 , the fo llowing funds reported a deficit fund balance: 

Fund Fund Balance 

Police Local Option $ (133,495) 
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CITY O F LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

June 30, 2011 

NOTE 18 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OI'EB) 

The City' s fu ll·time employees are included in the City of Lebanon's medical and 
life insurance coverage. The City's plan is a single employer plan that offers 
benefits to pre-65 retirees and their dependents. Once a partic ipan t turns age 65, 
the medica l provision provides benefits through a Medicare Supplement Plan. 
Ret irees receive a $10,000 life insurance benefit until attainment of 85 years of 
age. 

An employee who retires from the City is eligible for retiree heaJ.th and life 
insurance coveri.lge upon att aining age 60 with 10 years of service or completion 
of 30 years of service. If a retiree is eligib le for health insurance coverage, the 
plan wi ll also pmvide health coverage for the retiree's spouse. This coverage wi ll 
con tinue unt il the retiree dies. Eligible retirees and dependents are reqldred to 
share the cost of hea lth insurance. 

Ann ua l OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 

The OPEB cost and net OPEB obligation were based on the July I, 2010 actuarial 
valuation for the City's plan as a whole, wh ich includes the discretely presented 
component unit's employees. The componen t uni t's portion of the OPEB cost and 
obligation were not separately determined in that report. Therefore, an estimated 
cost was determined based on the component unit's saJaries as a percent of total 
sala ries for the City and the component unit combined. The OPEB cost is included 
in progra m expenses on the state ofadivities. 

ARC $ 1,110,970 
Interest on the NPO 66,853 
Adjustment at the ARC (66,938) 

A..nnual OPEB Cost 1, 11 0,885 
AmoLln t of Contribution 368 ,149 

lncreasc/(decrease) in NPO 742,736 

Net OPEB Obligation, 07/01 /2010 1,485, 11 0 
Net OPEB Obligation, 06/30/2011 $ 2,227,846 
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CITY O F L EBANON, T ENNESSEE 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - C O NTINUED 


June 30, 2011 


NOTE 18 - OTHER POSTE MPLOYMENT BENE:FITS (OPED). CONTINUED 

Ne. OPEB 
Year Obligation at 

Ended Plan Year End 
6/30/2009 Postemployment Benefits Plan $ 78 1,105 
6/30/20 10 Postemploymen t Benefits PhlO $ 1,485, JlO 
6/30/20 I I Postcmploymenl Benefits Plan $ 2,227,846 

Funded Status and Funding Progress 

The funded status of the p lan as of June 30, 20 11 is as fo llows: 

Actuaria l val uation date 7/1 /20 10 
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 13,452,793 
Actuar ia l value of plan assets 

Unfunded actuarial accrued liabi lity (UAAL) 13 ,452,793 
Actuarial valuation of plan assets as a % or tile AAL 0.0% 
Covered payroll (active p lan members) 10,974,607 
VAAL as a % of overed payroll 122.6% 

Actuaria l valuat ions involve estimates of the value of n:,:pol1ed amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future, and actuatially 
determined amount s are subject to cont inual revision as actual resuhs are 
compared to past expectat ions and new estimates arc made about t11C future. The 
Schedu le of Funding Progress, presented as requires supplementary infOimation 
fo llowing fhe no tes to tbe financial statements, presents multi-year trend 
infol111al lOn about whether the actua rial va lue of plan assets is increasing or 
decreasi ng over time reJali ve to tbe actua ria l accrued liability for benefits. 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

NOT ES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTIN UED 

June 30, 2011 

NOn: 18 - OTH ER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) CONTINUED 

Actuaria l Methods and Assumptions 

Calcu lations are based on the lypes of benefits provided under the tenus o f the 
substantive plan at the time of each calculation and on the pattern of sha ri ng costs 
between employe r and plan members to that point Ac tuarial ca lc ulatio ns reflect a 
long-lenn perspec tive. Consistent with that perspective, actuaria l methods and 
assumptions used to include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term 
volatili ty in actuarial accrued liab il ities and the actua rial va lue of assets . 

The actuarial assumptions included a 4.5 percent di scount rate, an annual 
he<llthcal'e cost trend rate of nine percent initially, reduced by decrements to an 
ultimate rate of six percent after three years. Tbe unfunded ac tuarial accrued 
liabi lity is being amorti zed as a level percentage of payroll Over a 30 year period 
begiluling wi tl1 July I , 2008. 

NOTE 19 - RESTATEMENT OF OPENING NET ASSETS 

The governmental activities net assets at June 30, 2010 were understated by 
$1,786, 101 due to the fo llowing circumstances : 

During the cu rrent year, it was discovered that the general in frastructure (i.e. 
roads) bu ilt and contri bu ted by developers had not been recorded for a period o f 
several years. Consequentl y, the governmental activities net assets were 
understated by $ 1,947,652, net of related depreciation. Since these were genera l 
fixed assets, thi s had no effect on the governmenta l fund balances. 

Due to the jmplementation of GASB 54, a fund that had previously been reported 
as a special re venue fund and included in the govenunental activit ies net assets 
w as reclassi fi ed as a private purpose trust and was therefore removed from the 
governmental ac tivities net assets. This reduced the govemmental ac tivities net 
assets by $ 16 1.550.82. 

The business·type ac ti vities net assets at June 30, 20 10 were understated by 
$6,4 17,833 due to the following circumstances: 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

June 30, 2011 

NOTE ZO- RESTATEMENT OF OPENI NG FUND BALANCES 

During the current year, it was discovered that water and sewer infrastructure built 
and conlributed by developers had not been recorded for a period of several years. 
Consequently, the business-type activities net assets were understated by 

$6,051,824, net of depreciation. 

During the CULTen! year, it was discovered that interest on the wastewater 
treatment plant construction loan had not been capitalized. Consequently, the 
business-type acti vities net assets were understated by $366,009. 

During rhe elilTen! fiscaJ year, the City implemented GASB 54. This required the 
reclassification o Fseveral funds, as fo llows: 

The sanitation fund, which was previously reported as a special revenue fund, was 
reclassified as part of the general fund. Consequently, the genera l fun d balance 
ll1creased by $130,732.82 and the govemmental fund balances decreased by the 
same amount. 

The Attomey General drug fund, which was previously reported as a special 
revenue fund , was reclassified as a pri vate purpose trust. Consequently, the other 
governmental fund balances decreased by $161,550.82 

In addition, an elTor was discovered during the current year which required a 
restatement of the general and federal asset seizure fund balances. Consequently, 
the general fund balance was increased by $37,3 18.73 and the other goverrunental 
fl. l11d balances were decreased by the same amount. 
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CITY OF LEBANON TENNESSEE 


SCH DULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR PENSION AND OPEB 


J UNE 30, 2011 


PENSION 

(Dollar amounts in lhousands) 

Actua rial 
Accrued UAALas a 

Actuarial Liabi li ty Unfu nded Annual Percenlagc 
AC luarial Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered 
Valu::ltion Plan Assets Entry Age (UAA L) Ratio Payroll Payroll 

Date (,) (b) (b-,) (oIb) (c) «b-a)/c) 
July I , 2009 $ 31,924 $ 38,106 $ 6,182 83.78% $ 12,536 49.31% 
Ju\y 1,2007 $ 28,896 $ 33,754 $ 4,858 85.61% $ 11,630 41.77% 

The Govemmeotai Accounting Standards Board (GASB) requires the plan to prepare the 
Schedu le of Funding Progress using the entry age actuarial cost method. The 
requirement to present the Schedule of Funding Progress using the Entry Age actuarial 
cost melhod went into affect during the year of the 2007 actuarial valuation, therefore 
only the two most recent va luations are presented. 

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFlTS(OPEB) 

Actuarial UAAL as II 

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Annual Percenlage 

Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered 
Plan Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 

Plan Ye3r (a) (h) (b-a) (alb) (e) «b-aVe) 

2008-2009 $ $ 12,130,48 1 S 12,1l0,481 0,0% $ 11 ,889,877 102.0% 

2009-2010 $ $ 12,730,997 $ 12,730,997 0,0% $ 10,785,925 118.0% 

2010-20 11 $ $ 13,643,309 $ 1l,643,309 0,0% $ 11,130,027 122.6% 
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C ITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


BALANCE S HEET - NONMAJOR GOV ERNMENTA L FUNDS 


June 30, 2011 


ASSETS 

Nonmajor 

Special 

Revenue 

Nonmajor 

Debt 

Service 

Nonmajor 

Capital 

ProJeclS 

Cash 
In ves tment in State Investment Pool 

AccounlS Receivable: 

State of Tennessee 

Other 

Due from Other Funds 
Prepaid Expenses 

$ 280,090. 12 

2, I 56,790.42 

574,594.23 

, 
227,083.86 

, 3.90 
I ,097,653.67 

555,091.91 

37,461.21 

S 3,011 ,474.77 $ 227,083.86 $ 1,690,2 )0.75 

TOlal 


Nonmajor 


Funds 


, 2S0,094.02 

3,48 1,527.95 

1.129,686. 20 

37,461.2 1 

S 4 ,928,769.38 

See notes to fi nanci;!1statements 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

BALI\NCE SHEET · NON'MAJOR GOVERNMENTA L FUNDS 


LI ABILITIES 

ACCOUfl( $ Payable 
Vendors 

Dut to Olhcr Funds 
Bank Overdraft 
Accrued Pa~10 1l ~nd Related Itcms 
AccrLled Vacation Pay 
Due to State 

Total Liablliues 

FUN D BALANCES 

Fund Bal::lnccs 
Restricted for: 

Debt ServIce 
Stree t 
Dru!:: Enforcement 

COm l"r"lUll lt y AssiS\Jnce 
CommItted 10. 

Airport 

Ccmelary 
ASSigned 10' 

Recreation 

Alrpon 

Stret1 

Public Works 
Floyd FUI111ly Life Center 

Unassigned 

Total Fund Ila l an ~ e s 

TOlal Liabilities and Fund Balances 

Ju ne 30, 201\ 

Nonma.jor 
Special 
Revenue 

Nonmajor 
Debt 

Service 

S 354,<112. 16 

354,5.31.56 

30,26 1.65 

35 ,532.40 

4 ,956.58 

, 
I 1,6S1 99 

779,694.35 11.681.99 

498, 107.93 

1, \97,045.78 

40,267.05 

215,40 1.87 

19 1,24 0. 50 

26,030,87 

99,837.31 

)31,0 10.84 

48.240 \4 

2,231,780.42 215 ,401.87 

$ 3,011,474.77 , 227,083 .86 

NonmaJor Nonmajor 
Capital Govennnenial 
Projects Funds 

S 706,715.\7 
178,570.84 

9,890.00 

(277.40) 

, ),061, 127.33 

544,784 . .39 

40, I 5 1.65 

35,53 2.40 

4,956 .58 

(277.40) 

894,898.61 1,686 ,27 4.95 

324 ,343. 51 

2 IS,40 1.87 

822,45 1 44 

1,1 97,045.78 

40,267.05 

191,240.50 

26,030.87 

208,093-37 

46, 100.77 

350,269.30 

(13 3,494 .8 1 ) 

795,3 12.14 

208,093.37 

145,93808 

350,269.30 

131,010.84 

48,240.14 

(133,494.81) 

3,242,494.43 

S 1,690,2 10.75 5 4 ,92 8,769.38 

Su notes 10 rm.:mcial siltemen(s 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


STATEM~NTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES · NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNO TYI'E..'i 


RevenuC'S 

Slale ~nd Reglon3 1 t\pporl .orul"lC: rllS 
lnd Grant~ 


Fco,lcral Gran 's 


Fines and COStS 

lnt~reS t 

Other Reven ues 


Total Rcvcnues 


Expenditures 

General Govem rncnt 

rubh~ Wor~s 

Police 


Firo: 

S1Tecl 

Jimmy Floyd F~mily Life Ceruer 

Alrpon 
Debl ServIce. 

Prjnej~1 

[rllerest 


Capll:11OUll~)' 


Tota l Expendl1l1l'eS 


G.ccss (~ficlency) or Revenues 

Over ExptndliurtS 

O,her FJIlJm.:ms SOllrc~S (Uses) 
Trms(crs From 0 1her Funds 


Transr~rs T{'I Other Fund~ 


Total Other Fon~nc l n ll Sources (USCJi) 


£KCCSS (Dctie,,,"cy) or Revenues and Olhc! 
Fmancm§ SOUfCes Over EKpelldm!fes 

and Olllcr Finenclng Use! 

FUllll 8a l ~n c es 

luly I. 201 0 

June 30. 2011 

Year Endtd June 30, 201 ! 

NonmaJor 

Specia l 
Revenue 

Nonmlljor 

D<" 
Service 

S 1.620,503.35 , 
15,635.99 
5,382 51 

1,617,438.70 

3,258,960 .55 

1,25\1.88 

1.259.88 

\ 6,69281 
I , I 34,232.21 

117,600.80 

802.50 

515,619.61 
1, 154 ,860.47 

114,632 66 

1,094,597.00 
254,566.92 

674,963.43 

3,72S,601 99 1,349,966.42 

(469,64 1.44) (1,34S,706.54) 

344,250.00 1,350,860.35 

(9O ,213.0S) 

254,036 .92 I ,350,S60 35 

(215,604 52) 2,153.81 

2,447,3S4 .94 213,24S.% 

$ 2,231 ,780.42 , 2 15,401.87 

Nonrn.:ljor 


Capll31 

Proje<:ls 


S 579,283 .92 

2,1 43.77 

l.J12.812.71 
1,894,240..40 

10 ,899 % 

28.84207 

2.238,138.19 
2,278,48082 

(J84,240.42) 

185,71308 

(252.000.(0) 

(66.286.(2) 

(450,52134) 

1,245,83948 

, 795 .312.14 

Nonrna.JQI" 

Governmental 


Funds 


S 2,1 99,787.27 

15 .635.99 
8,786. 16 

2,930 ,251.41 

5,154 ,460 83 

17,495.) 1 
1,1 ) 4.232.2 1 

128 .500.76 

544.46\.(,8 
!. 1 S4,S60~7 

114 ,6326b 

1,094,597.00 
2>4.566 9 2 

2,913,702.22 
7.357,049.23 

(2,2025S8.40) 

1,880,823.43 

(342.21308) 

l,H8.(jI O.J5 

(663,978.05) 

),906,472.48 

S 3,242,494.43 

See note,;; 10 finanCIa l stalemenls 
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C ITY OF LEBANON, TENNESS EE 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

COMBINlNG BALANCE SHEET 

June 30, 201 t 

ASSETS 

Stormwatcr 
Fund 

State 
Street 

A id 

Drug 

Enforcement 
Fund 

Cash I 1,0 12.87 $ ),8 12.59 $ 51,3)4.05 

Invest ment in State ln veslmcnt Pool 141 ,712.38 5)6,41 1.59 962,669.64 

Other ReceIvables 

Tota l Assets $ 142,725.25 $ 540,224 .18 $ 1,0 14,00369 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

Accounts Payable 

Due to Other Funds 

Bank Overdraft 
Accrued Payroll and Related hems 
Accrued Vacation Pay 

Tota ll.iabl lities 

$ 20.4 I 

8,226.07 

20.64 

3,206.97 
2,329 .56 

13,803.65 

$ 40,)20.64 

I,Jl9.84 
675.77 

42 ,116.25 

$ 1,240.82 

10,900.20 

12,1 41.02 

Fund 8<l lances: 

Res tricted for : 

SuecI 

Drug Enforcement 
Communi ty Assistance 

Conunineu to: 

498, 107.9) 

I ,00 I ,862.67 

Airvon 
Cemelary 

ASSIgned 10 ; 

Public Warks 
Floyd Family Life Cenler 

Airpon 

Total Fund Bala nce 

128,921.60 

128,92 1.60 498, 107 .93 1,001 ,86 2.67 

Tota l Llabilittes and Fu nd Bal ance $ 142,725.25 $ 540,224.18 $ 1,0 14,00) .69 

Sec notes to financi al sta tements 
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Jimmy Floyd Spi ri t Of 
Fami ly Life Christmas Mayor's Youth Airport Beautification 

Center fund Council Operdllons Committee 
$ 127,171.42 $ 35,060.56 $ 549.90 $ $ 22.54 

293 ,368.65 4,674 .05 

2,896.66 4,705.09 

$ 130,068.08 $ 35,060.56 $ 549.90 $ 298,073.74 $ 4,696.59 

$ 27,821.97 

10,0 11.32 

9,71 7.97 

31,649.66 

2.627.02 

$ 40.00 $ $ (6,437.63) 

4,930.56 

8,503.00 

$ 

8 1,827.94 40.00 6,995.93 

35,020.56 549.90 

191 ,240.50 

4,696.59 

$ 

48,240.14 

48,240. t4 

J30 ,068 .08 $ 

35,020.56 

35,060.56 $ 

549.90 

549.90 $ 

99,837.3 1 

29 1,077.8 1 

298,073. 74 $ 

4,696.59 

4 ,696.59 

See notes 10 financial statements 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

June 3D, 201 1 

ASSETS 

Violent Crime 

Task Force 

Cemeta ry 

Mai ntenance 

Federal 

Asset 

Seizure 

Cash 

Investmen t in State Investment Poo l 

Other Receivables 

Total Assets 

$ 

$ 

12,061.80 

12,061.80 

$ 

$ 

0.23 

26,030.64 

26,030.87 

$ 

$ 

28,516.67 

147,647. 10 

176, 163.77 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

ACCOlUlts Payable 

Due 10 Other Funds 

Bank Overdraft 

Accrued Payroll and Related Items 

Accrued Vacation Pay 

$ $ $ 

37,3 18.83 

Tola l Liabilities 37,318.83 

Fund Balances: 

Restric ted for: 

Street 

Drug Enfo rcement 

Conununity Assistance 
Committed to: 

Airport 

Cemetary 

ASSigned to: 

Public Works 

Floyd Family Life Ceorer 

Ai rport 

Tolal Fund Balance 

12,061.80 

12,06 1.80 

26,030.87 

26 ,030.87 

138,844.94 

138,844.94 

To tal Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 12,061.80 $ 26,030.87 $ 176,163.77 

See notes to fin ancial statements 
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$ 

$ 

Permobil 
FlD P 

20,547.49 

566,992.4 8 

587,539.97 

Law Enforcement 
Support 

Organiza tion 

$ 

44,276.37 

$ 44,276.37 

$ 

$ 

Total 
Nonmajor 

f unds 
280,090,) 2 

2, 156,790.42 

574,594.23 

3,0 11 ,474.77 

$ 29 1,405.95 

294,044.78 

585,450.73 

$ $ 354,41 2,) 6 

354,531.56 

30,26 1.65 

35,532 .40 
4,956.58 

779,694.3 5 

44 ,276.37 

498, 107.93 

1, 197,04 5.78 
40,267.05 

191,240.50 

26,030.87 

2,089.24 

2,089. 24 44 ,276.37 

1l 1,0 1 0.84 

48,2 40,) 4 

99,837.3 1 

2,23 1,780.42 

$ 587,539.97 $ 44,276.37 $ 3,011 ,474 .77 

See notes to financial Statements 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


NONMAJOR SPEC[AL REVENUE FUNDS 


COMBIl'J'(NG STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES fN FUND llALANCE 

Year Ended June 30, 201 1 

Siale Drug 
Stotmwaler Street Enrorcement 

Fund Aid Fund 

Revenues: 

Slate and Regional 

Apponiol1!YlCnts ;Itld GralllS 

ContribuTions 

interesl Jncome 

Fines and Costs 

MembershIps, Fees and Concessions 

Olher 

TOlal Revenues 

307.82 

137,030.15 

137,337.97 

S 723,703.48 

1,044.30 

724,747.78 

Expendirures: 

Salaries 

Payroll TalCcs 

BenefIts 

Olher Operating Expenditures 

Capita l Outlay 

TOTal Expend itures 

123,390.5 1 

8,592.53 

59,404.03 

26,445.98 

2 17,833.05 

22,779.75 

1,742.68 

491.097.18 

39,600.70 

555,220.3 1 

Excess o r Rcvenues Over (Under) 

Expendirurcs (80,495.08) 169.527.47 

Other Financing Sourcc~ (Uses): 

Operating Transfers To OTher rUllds 

Operatin g Tr:ms fers From Other Funds 

Total Olher Financing Sources (Uses) 

132,750.00 

132.750.00 

(75 ,000.00) 

(75,000.00) 

Excess o f Revtnues and Olher Sources 

Over (Under) Expendirures OInd Other 

Uses 52 ,254.92 94,527.47 

Fund 13a lanc es: 

July 1, 2010 76,666.68 403 ,580.46 

June 30, 20 11 S 128,92 1.60 S 498, 107.93 

$ 

2.058.33 
) 5,635.99 

)0,988.2 ) 

28,682.53 

109,293 .03 

79,27 1.49 

188,564.52 

( 159 ,881.99) 

(159,881.99) 

t ,16 1,744.66 

S ),00 1,862.67 

See notes to financia l statements 
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Jimmy Floyd 
Family Life 


Center 


240 ,]4 

1, 148,8 21.05 

67,574.91 

1.2 16,636. 10 

545,4 11.54 

39.602 .35 

147,072.71 

422 ,713.87 

155,743 .00 

1,310,603.47 

(93,967.3 7) 

200.000.00 

200,000.00 

106,032 .63 

(51.792.49) 

S 48,240 .14 

Spirit Of 

Christmas 


Fund 


$ 

23,973.88 

63.64 

24,037.52 

14,702 .46 

14,70').46 

9,335.06 

9,335.06 

25,685.50 

$ 35 ,020.56 

Mayor's Youth 


Council 


$ 

500.00 

500.00 

(500 .00) 

(500.00) 

1,049.90 

$ 549.90 

Airport 
Operations 

$ 13,000.00 

496.17 

127,499.71 

140,995.88 

11 4,632.66 

ll4 .632.66 

26,363.22 

( 15,2 13.08) 

ll,500.00 
(3,7 13.08) 

22 ,650.14 

268,427.67 

5 291 ,077.8 1 

Beautirlca tion 

Commiuee 

$ 

5,550.00 

5,557.38 

1.490.35 

1,490.35 

4,067 .03 

4,067.03 

629.56 

$ 4,696.59 

See notes to tinaocial Siafemenis 
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ClTY O F LEBANON , TENNESSEE 


NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 


COMBTNrNG STATEMENT O F REVENUES, EXPENDlnJRES AND 


C HANGES TN FUND BA.LANCE 


Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Revenues: 

Siale and Regional 

Apponion menls and Grants 

Contnbulions 

!meresl Income 

Fines and Costs 

Membersh ips, Fees and Concessions 

Other 

Total Revenues 

Vio lent Crime 

Task Force 

CWlC!ary 

Mainten:mce 

$ 

39 .27 

16, 180.00 

16,2 19.27 

$ 

Federal 
Asset 

Seizure 

355.66 

80,585.23 

80,940.89 

Expenditures: 

Salar ies 

Payroll Taxes 

Benefi ts 

O iller Operat ing li'<penditw-es 

Capital Outlay 

Total Expendl(\Jres 

4 ,945.61 

4,945 .6 1 

3,362 .1 6 

16,475 .50 

19,837.66 

Excess ofReyenues Oyer (Under) 

Expend Itures (4,945.61) 16,2 19 .27 6 1, \03.23 

Other F inanci ng Sources (Uses): 

OjXr3ung Transfers To Otller funds 

Opcra!llLg Transfers From O ther Funds 

TOIa l Olher F inancing Sources (Uses) 

_ ____ _ 

Excess of Revenues and O ther Sow-ces 

Over (Under) expend itures and Olher 

Uses (4,945.6 1) 16,2 19.2; 61, 103.23 

Fund Ualancts: 

July 1, 2010 17,007.41 9,811.60 77,74 1.71 

June 30, 20 11 $ 12 ,061.80 S 26,OJO.87 S 138,84494 

See notes to financial s tatements 
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J'lemlobil 
FIDP 

S 	 883,799.87 

(45.0)1.07) 

760,06 

839,528.86 

9 16,399. 16 

383,872.74 

1,300,271.90 

(460.743.04) 

(460,743.04) 

462,832 .28 

$ 2,089.14 

Law Enforcemenl 


Suppon 

Organization 


$ 

9,74 

44.266.63 

44 ,276.37 

44.276.37 

44 ,216.37 

5 44,276.37 

TOla l 

Nonmajor 


Funds 


5 1,620,503.35 
(15.507. 19) 

5,3825 1 
15,635.99 

1,165,001.05 

467,944. 84 

3,258,960.55 

69 1,58 1.80 

49,937.56 

206,476.74 

2,105,642.46 

674,963.43 

3,728,601.99 

(469,64 1.44) 

(90,2 13.08) 

344,250.00 
254,036.92 

(215.604.52) 

2,447,384.94 

$ 2,13 1,180.42 

See notes 10 financHl l sta!(;ments 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 
NONMAJOR CA PrrAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

COMB[NING BALANCE SH EET 

June 30, 20 II 

ASSETS 
Police Loca l 
Option Fine 

Street 

Improvements 

Cash 
Investment in State Inves tment Pool 

Du e from Other Fund s 

Other Receivables 

Total Assets 

S 

$ 

1.28 

3,779.22 

216.66 

3,997.16 

$ 

$ 

0.55 

804,238.64 
11 ,68 1.99 

520,074.34 

1,335,995.52 

LI ABILITIES AN D FUND BALANCES 

Due 10 Olher Fund s 
Due to Siale 
Bank Overdra ft 
Accoun ts Payable 
Total liabi lities 

$ )35,274.57 

2,217.40 
137,49 1.97 

$ 21,296.27 

662,589.36 
68 3.885.63 

Fund Balances: 
Restri cted fo r: 

Street 

Assigned t.o : 

Recreation 
Airp0l1 

Street 
Unassigned 

TOlal Fund Bala nces 
( 133,4~4 . 8 1 ) 

(J 33,494.81 ) 

324,343 .51 

327,766.38 

652,109.89 

TOlal LiJbilities and Fund Ba lances $ 3,997.16 $ 1,335,995.52 

See notes to financial statements 
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Airport 

Capi tal 
Proje<:ts 

Paymen t in 

Lieu of 
Sidewalks 

Lebanon­

Wilson County 
Community Pa rk 

Tota l 

Nonmajor 
Funds 

$ 

63,282.33 

32,910 .79 

$ 

44,502.92 

$ 2.07 

185,629.78 
22,000.00 

1,890. 18 

$ 3.90 

1,097,653 .67 

37,46 1.21 

555,091.97 

$ 96 ,193.12 $ 44,502.92 $ 209,522.03 $ 1,690,210.75 

$ 
(277.40) 

9,890.00 

40,479.75 

50,092.35 

$ 22,000.00 

22,000.00 

$ 

1,428.66 

1,428.66 

$ 178,570 .84 

(277.40) 

9,890.00 

706,7 15.17 

894,898.61 

46, 100.77 

46, 100.77 

22,502.92 

22,502.92 

208,093.37 

208,093.37 

324,343.5 1 

208,093.37 
46,100.77 

350,269.30 
(1 33,494.8 1) 
795,3 12.14 

$ 96,193.12 $ 44,502.92 $ 209,522.03 $ 1,690,210.75 


See notes to financial statements 
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NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS f UN DS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

June 30, 20 11 

Revenues 

Slate Grants and Contracts 

Federal Grants 
Other Revenues 

Interest Ea mings 

Total Re venues 

$ 

Police Loenl 

Option fine 

195 ,8 47.7 1 

(3S8.93) 

195 ,458.78 

Street 

I.mprovemcnls 

$ 520,074.)4 

1,029 ,500.00 

2,129.85 

1,551,704. 19 

$ 

Airpon 
Capital 

Proj ects 

63 ,58 1.64 

43 ,000.00 

159.97 

106,741.61 

Expenditures 
Other Opera!lng 

Capital Out lay 

Total Expenditures 

10,899.96 

114,421.36 

125,321.32 

28,842.07 

2,053,075.05 

2,08 1,9 17. 12 

54,937.29 

54,937.29 

Excess of Revenues Over (U nder) 
Expenditures 70,137.46 (530,212.93) 5 1,804.32 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Operating Trans fers To Other Funds 

Operating Transfers From Other Funds 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

(230,000.00) 

(230,000.00) 

28,7 13.08 

28,71 3.08 

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources 

Over (U nder) ExpendItures and Olher 
Uses 70, I 37.46 (760,212.93) 80,S 17.40 

Fund Bal ances 
July I. 2010 (203,632.27) 1,412,322.82 (34 ,416.63) 

June 30, 20 11 $ (133,494.8 1) $ 652, 109.89 $ 46,1 00 .77 

See notes 10 financia l statements 
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Payment in 
Lieu of 

Sidewalks 

$ 

Lebanon-
Wilson County 

Community P<lrk 

$ (4,372.06) $ 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Fun ds 

579,283.92 

44,465 .00 

37 .92 

44,502.92 

204.96 

(4 ,167.10) 

1,3 12,812.71 

2,143.77 

1,8 94,240.40 

16,305.09 

16,305 .09 

39,742 .03 

2,238,738.79 

2,278,480.82 

44 ,502.92 (20,472 .19) (384,240.42) 

(22,000.00) 

(22 ,000.00) 

157,000.00 

157,000.00 

(252,000.00) 

185,71 3.08 

(66 ,286.92) 

22,502.92 136,527.8 1 (450,527.34) 

71,565.56 1,245,839.48 

S 22,502.92 $ 208,093.37 $ 795 ,3 12.14 

See notes to financial statemen ls 
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2003 

CITY OF LED ANON, TENNESS EE 
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

June 30 , 2011 

ASSETS 

1993 

Bond Fund 
2004 

Bond Fund Bond Fund 

Tnvestmen! In State Tnvestment Pool $ 19,860.94 S 16,740.25 $ 119,695.33 

UABILlT1ES AND FUND BALANCES 

Due 10 Other Funds 
Fund Bal ances - Restricted for Debt Service 
Total Liablli tlcs and Fund Balances 

$ 
19,860.94 

$ 19,860.94 

$ 

S 
16,740. 25 
16 ,740.25 

$ 

$ 
119,695.33 
119,695.33 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES Jl\' FUND BALANCES 

Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Revenues 
Interest Income 

1993 
Bond Fund 

$ 206.23 

2004 
Bond Fund 

$ 177.06 $ 

2003 
Bond Fund 

455 .16 

Expendirurcs 
Bank Service Charges 
Pn ncipaJ 
Interest 
TotOlI Expenditures 

204,597.00 
3,190.75 

207,787.75 

176,000.00 
15,549 .11 

191,549 .11 

48250 
380,000.00 

83 ,662.5 0 
464,145.00 

Excess of Revenues Over (Ullder) 
Expelldttures (207,581.52) (191,372.05) (463,689.84) 

Other Fmanci ng Sources (Uses) 
Opera1ing Tr:msfers From Other Fonds 

Total Other FinanClng Sources (Uses) 

208.442.50 

208,442.50 

19 1,882.44 

19 t ,882.44 

464,087.5 1 

464 ,087.51 

Excess of Revenues and Olher Sources 

Over (Unde r) Expenditures and Olher 

Uses 860.98 5 10.39 

Fund Balances 
July 1, 201 0 18,999.96 16,229 .86 119,297.66 

June 30. 20 11 $ 19,860 .94 S 16,740.25 $ 119,695.33 

See notes 10 financial statements 
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I 

2008 Rcfundlllg 
Bond Fund 

58,43 1.44 

58.43 1,44 
$ 58 .43 1.44 

2008 Refu nding 
Bond Fund 

S 278.97 

320.00 
210 ,000.00 
130 ,045 .00 
340.365 .00 

()40,0 86.03) 

339,828 .34 

])9,828.34 

(257.69) 

58,689. 1 ) 

S 58,43 1.44 

2008 

Bond Fund 

12,3 55. 90 

11,68 1.99 
673 .9 1 

$ 12,355 .90 

2008 
fiond Fund 

$ 142.46 

124,000. 00 
22, 119.56 

146,119.56 

(145,977.1 0) 

146,619.56 

146,619.56 

642.46 

31.4 5 

673.91 

Tolal 

Nonmajor 


Funds 


$ 227,083.86 

II ,68 1.99 
2 15,40 1. 87 

$ 227,08386 

Tola l 

Nonmajor 


Funds 


$ 1,259.88 

80250 
1,094 ,59 7.00 

254,566.92 
1,349,966.42 

(1 ,348,706.54) 

1,350,860.35 

1,350.860.35 

2,153.81 

211,24g.06 

$ 2 15.'01.87 

See notes 10 financial slatemenls 
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CITY OF LEBANON TEl\'NESSEE 


STATEMENT Of FlDUCIAR Y NET ASSETS 


PRJV ATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS 


June 30, 20 11 

ASSETS 

Cash S 194,483.69 

L1 AB IUTlES AND NET ASSETS 

Due to Ciry of Lebanon 

Due to Private Entities 

Tota! Llablhties 

S 4,730.88 
38,792.94 

43,523.82 

Nel Assets, Held In Trust 

Total Liabi li ties and Net Assets $ 

150,959.87 

194,483.69 

STATEM ENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

PRJVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS 

Year Ended June 30, 20 11 

Additions 

Interest $ 1,760.57 

Deductions 

Tra1J1 lt!g 
Trave l 

Other 

Total Deductions 

2,060.00 

5,505 .52 

4 ,78 6.00 
12,351.52 

Change III Net Assets ( 10,590.95) 

Net Assets 

JulyJ.20 10 161 ,550.82 

June 30, 201 1 $ 150,959.87 

See notes to Cimmcial statementS 
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CITY OF LEBAN ON, TENNESSEE 


STORM WATER FUN D 


STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANG ES IN FUND BALANCES 

GUOGET AN D ACTUA L 

Year Ended June 30,20 11 

Original Final 

Budge! Budget Actua l Variance 

Revenues , ,Interest S $ 307,82 307,82 

Fees 124,000.00 124,000,00 137,030.15 13,030. 15 

Total Revenue 124,000.00 124,000.00 13 7,337.97 13,337,97 

Expendilures 

Salaries 125,693.14 121 ,286.95 123.}90,5 1 (2,103.$6) 

Payroll Taxes 9,546,68 9,069.85 8,592.53 477. 32 

13encfits 56,999.32 60,982.34 59,404.03 1,578.31 

Engineering 8,500.00 12,500.00 11 ,368.54 1,1 3 1.46 

Contractual Services 16,000.00 16,00000 8,658.50 7,341.50 

Repairs & Maintenance 290.00 290.00 3.46 286.54 

Other Operalmg Expendi tures 19, 120.86 20,020,86 6,4 15.48 13,605.38 

Capital Outlay 20.600.00 20,600.00 0.00 20,600.00 

TOl;11 Expendit ures 256, 750.00 260,750.00 217,833.05 42,9 16.95 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) 

Eltpenditures (132 ,750 00) (136,750.00) (80,495.08) 56,254.92 

Olher Fmancing Sources (Uses) ' 

Transfers From Other Funds 132,750.00 132,750.00 132 ,750.00 

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Over 

(Under) Expenditures and Other Use, S S (4,000.00) 52,254.92 $ 56,254.92 

Fund Balances 

July I. 2010 76,666.68 

$ 128,921 ,60 June 30,20 11 

See notes \0 financia l statements 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESS EE 


STATE STREET AID FUND 


STATEMENT Of' REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUN O BA LANCES 

BUOGET ANO ACTUAL 

Ye~r Ended June 30, 20\ \ 

Original 

Budget 

FlOal 

Rlldget ACllIal Variance 

Revenues 
State of Tennessee, Gasol ine Tax 

Cootrac{ 

intereSt Income 

Total Revenues 

$ 670 ,000, 00 

2,000.00 

672,000.00 

I 670,000.00 

2,000.00 

672,000.00 

$ 678,250.68 

45 ,452,80 

1,044.30 

724 ,747.78 

S 8,250.68 

45,452.80 

(955.70) 

52,747.78 

E](~ndjtores 

Salaries 

Pa}'Toll T :Lxes 

Util l\lCS 

M3intcIlanee 

C::lpital Expcnd\lures 

Strcet PavlOg nnd Repairs 

Total Expend it ures 

490,000.00 

175,000.00 

7,000 ,00 

672,000.00 

24,6 16.81 

1,883.1 9 

490,000,00 

73,500.00 

57,000.00 

647,000.00 

22,779.75 

1,742.68 

465,88 1.29 

296.0 1 

39,600.70 

24,9 19.88 

555,220.31 

1.83706 

\40.5 1 
24, \ 18 ,7 1 

(2% .01 ) 

33,899.30 

32,080.12 

9 1,779.69 

Excess of Revcnues Over (Un der) 

EXI,el,dl lurcs 25,000 00 169,527.47 144 ,527.47 

Olher Fin3ncing Sources(Uses) 

Oper~ting Transf<:rs Out (75,000.00) (75,000,00) 

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Over 

(Under) Expendi tures and Oll1er Uses S , (50,000 .00) 94,527.47 $ 144,527.47 

Fund Balances 

luly 1. 20 10 403,580.46 

JUlle 30, 2011 $ 498,107.93 

See notes to financial statements 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


DRUG ENFORCEMENT FUND 


STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EX PENDITURES AND CHAN GES IN FUND BALANCES 


Revenues 

Coun Fmes and COSI 

InTerest Income 

Other 


Total Reven ues 


Expendnurcs 

Operating Suppli es 

Capital Expenditures 

Other 
Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) 

Expenditures 

Fund Balances 

Jul y 1, 20 10 

June 3D, 2011 

BUDGET AN D ACTUAL 

Year Ended June 30, 201 1 

Original 
Budget 

Final 

Budget 

$ 20,000 00 

IS.OOO.OO 
94,000,00 

132,000.00 

, 20,000.00 

18,00000 

94,000.00 

132,000.00 

70 .000.00 

n,ooo,oo 
39,000.00 

132,000.00 

72,500 00 
142.796.00 

38,324 .00 

253,620.00 

s $ (12 1,620.00) 

Act uil l 

S 15.635.99 

2,058.33 

10,988 ,21 

28,682.53 

69.5 16.97 

79,27 149 

39.776.06 

188,564.52 

( 159,881.99) 

1,16 1,744.66 

S 1,001,862.61 

Vanance 

S (4,364.0 1) 

( 15,941 .67) 

(83,011.79) 

( 103,317.47) 

2,983,03 

63 ,524. 5 I 

( 1,452 .06) 

65.055.48 

$ ( 168,372.95) 

See notes to fi nancial sta tements 
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CITY OF LEBA NON, TENNESSE.E 


JIMMY FLOYD FAMILY LIFE CENTER 


sr ATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AN D CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 


BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

Year Ended June 30, 20 11 

Onglnal Fmal 

Rudget Bud get ACtu:J! Varl~nce 

Revenues 
Me mberships $ 800,000 UO :II 800,000 00 S 789,66).) I , '( 10 ,336.69) 

Fees 328,500.00 328,500.00 305,382.26 (23, 117.74) 

Rent 45,00000 45 ,000.00 37,221.4 1 (7,77S.59) 

Concessions 55,000.00 65 ,000.00 53,775.48 (11,224.52) 
Interest (1 ,.50 U.00) (1,500.00) 240. 14 1,740.14 

Mi scell aneous 30,3 53.50 30,353 .50 0.00 
TOTal Revenues 1,227,000.00 1,267 ,351 50 1,21 6,636. 10 (50,717.40) 

Expe ndi tures. 

Salanes 571,72L59 572,956.94 545,4 11. 54 27,545.40 

Payroll Taxes 43,736.67 42,326.51 3'>,602 .35 2,724. 16 

Benefits 175,842.98 176,0 17.79 ]47,072.71 28 ,9 45 .08 

Tra inmg 5,000.00 5,000.00 3,160.95 1.539.05 

Poslagc and Shi pping 3,000,00 3,000.00 1,200.59 1,799.41 

Pnnting 5.000.00 5,000.00 4.60U2 39848 

PubliC Re1ol1ons J ,200.00 [ ,200.00 769.00 43 1.00 

Uflitt ies 198,000.00 198,00000 194.456.67 3,543 .33 

Telephone 13,000.00 13,000.00 11 ,787.90 1.2: 12.10 

M:lintcnanee 24,81958 62,17308 60,209.43 1,963 .6 5 

Travel 1.500.00 1,500.00 99871 501 29 

Contr!lctual Services 15,500.00 15,500.00 11,161. 82 4.338. 18 

Supph~~ 11 7,094 18 125 ,594.18 110,242.31 15,)51.87 

Un iforms 3,500.00 2,500.00 l Ji91 .00 809.00 

I nsuranc~ 15,000. 00 15,000.00 12 ,303 .56 2,696 .44 

Miscellaneous 10.085.00 11,085.00 10,190.4 1 894.59 

Capital Ou tl ay 223,000.00 217,500.00 155,743.00 61 ,757. 00 

Total Expenditures 1,427,000.00 1,467,353.50 1,.31 0,603 .4 7 156,750.03 

Excess of Revenues Owr (Under) 

Ex[X ndilures (200,000.00) (200,000 00) (93 ,9673 7) I OG,032.63 

DIller Frnancing Sources (Uses) 
Operal rng Transfers In 200,000.00 200,000.00 200,000.00 

Exeess of Revenues and Qlhcr Sources Over 
(Under) E~pcndit u res and Othe r Uses S , 106,032.63 S )06,032.63 

Fund Balances 

July I, 20 10 (57,792.49) 

junc 30, 2011 S 48,240. 14 

Sec notes 10 financial statementS 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


SP1RlT OF CHruSTMAS FUND 


STATEM ENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 


BUDGfT AND ACTUAL 


Year Ended June 30 , 201 ! 


Original Final 

Budget Budget Actual Vari DncC 

Revenues 

Interest Income $ $ $ 6J. 64 $ 63.64 

Contributions and Fundralser 24 ,000.00 24,000.00 23,973.88 (26.12) 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 

Other 

24,000.00 

24,000.00 

24,000.00 

24 ,000.00 

24,037.52 

14,702.4 6 

37.52 

9,29 7.54 

Excess o f Revenues Over (Under) 

ExpendItures $ $ 9,335.06 $ 9,m.06 

Fund Balances 

July 1,2010 

June 30. 2011 $ 

25,685.50 

JS,02056 

Sec notes to financial statem ents 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

MAYOR'S YOUTH COUNCIL 


STATEMENT Of REVENUES, EXPEhroITURES AND ClLANGES IN FUND BALANCES 


BUDGET AND ACTU AL 


Year Ended June 30, 20 11 


Original Final 

Budget Budget Actual Vanance 

Revenues 

Contributions 

Expendi tures 

Opel<lting Expenditures 

Exess of Revenues Over (Under) 

ExpendITures 

S 

$ 

5,000.00 

5,000.00 

$ 

$ 

5,000.00 

5,000.00 

$ 

500.00 

(500.00) 

$ 

$ 

(5 ,000.00) 

4,500.00 

(500.00) 

Fund Balances 
July 1,2010 1,049.90 

June 30, 201 1 $ 549 .90 

See notes to tinancial statements 
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CIT Y OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

AIRPORT OPERATIONS FUND 


STATEMEI'IT OF REVENUES, EXP ENDITURES AND CliANGES [N fU ND BALANCES 


BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

Year Ended Junc 30, 20 1) 

Original Finl! 

Budget Budget Actual Variance 

Revenues: 

State Grant $ 13 ,000,00 S 13,000.00 $ 13 ,000.00 $ 

R"" 9G,200.00 96.200.00 106,989.19 10,789.29 

Fuel Sales 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,5 10.42 510.42 

Interest 496.\7 496.17 

Total Revenues 129,200.00 129,200.00 140,995.88 JI,795.88 

E)!;jnndiwres: 

Uti lities 16,000.00 16,000.00 13,580.76 2,4 19.24 

Repairs & Maintenance 42 ,000.00 42,000.00 34,878.47 7.121.53 

Contract ual Servi ces 40,000.00 40,000 .00 39.527.91 472.09 
Management Fee 12,000.00 12,000.00 10,890.00 1,110.00 
Other Operating 30,700.00 30,700.00 15 ,755.52 14 ,944 .48 
TOlal E)!;pendilu res 140,700.00 140,700.00 114,632.66 26,067.34 

Excess of Revenues Over (11,50000) (11,500.00) 26,363.22 37,863.22 

(Un der) Expenditures 

Other financing Sources (Uses): 

Dper'l1ing Transers OUI ( 15,213.08) (\5,2 13.08) 

Operating Transfers In :,500.00 11,500.00 1),500.00 

Total Other Financmg Sources Uses) 11,500.00 __1~~.00 (3,713 .08) (15,213 .08) 

Excess or Reven ues and DIner Sources Over ,(Under) Expend iture:; and Other Uses $ 22,650. 14 $ 22,650. 14 

Fu nd Balance 

July I, 2010 268,427.67 

June 30. 2011 , 29 1,077.8 1 

See notes to financial statements 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 


STATEMENT OF REVENl.iES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUN D BALANCES 


UUIXJET AN D ACTUAL 

Year Ended June 30, 201 I 

Revenues 

Donations 

Interest 

Expendil\lres 

Opcratlll g Expenditures 

$ 

Original 

Budget 

7,500.00 

7,500.00 

7,500,00 

Final 

Budget 

$ 7,500.00 

7,500.00 

7,500.00 

$ 

Actual 

5,550 .00 

7.38 

5,55 7 ,38 

t ,490.35 

Varian ce 

5 ( ',950.00) 

7.38 

(1 ,942,62) 

6,009.65 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) 

Expendnurcs $ $ 4,067.03 $; 4 ,067.03 

Fund Balances 

July 1. 20 10 62956 

June 30. 201 1 $ 4,696.59 

See l~otes 10 financia l statements 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TE1'I'NESSEE 


VIOLENT CRJM E TASK FORCE FUND 


STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 


BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

Year Ended JUlle 30 , 201 1 

Revenues: 

Drug Task. Force $ 

Original 

Budget 

6,400,00 

Final 

Dudget 

$ 6,400.00 $ 

AeRial 

$ 

Variance 

(6,400.00) 

Expenditures: 

Other Operating 

Total Expenditures 

6,400.00 

6.400 .00 

6,400.00 
6,400.00 

4,945 .6 1 
4,945.61 

1.454.39 

1,454.39 

E1\.cess of Revenues Over (Under) 

Expenditun:s $ $ (4 ,945,61) $ (4,945.6 1) 

Fund Ba lances 

July 1. 2010 17,007.41 

June 30, 201 1 $ 12,06 1.80 

See notes to fina ncial statements 
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CITY Of LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

CEMETARY MA rNTENANCE FUND 


STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES TN FUND BALANCES 


aUOCET AND ACT1)AL 

Year Ended JilllC 30, 2011 

Revenues: 

Cemelary Mai ntenance Fees 

Interest Income 

Total Revenues 

S 

Original 

B\ldgtl 

7,000.00 

7,000.00 

S 

fina l 

Budgct 

7,000.00 

7,000.00 

$ 

Actual 

16, 180.00 

39.27 

16,219.27 

Variance 

S 9, 180.00 

39.27 

9,219.27 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) 

Expenclinlres $ 7,000.00 $ 7,000.00 16,219.27 $ 9,2J9.27 

Fund Ba lances 
July 1, 2010 9,8 11.60 

June 30, 2011 $ 26,030.87 

See notes 10 financia l sl3lem etll S 
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C ITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


FEDERAL ASSET SEIZURE FUND 


STATEMENT OF REVENU ES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 


BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Original Final 

Budget Budget Actua l Variance 

Revenues: 
Interest 

Pederal Payment. Asset Seiz.ure 
Total Revenues 

, 5,000,00 

38 ,000.00 

43,000.00 

, 5,000.00 

38,000.00 

43,000 0 0 

, 355 .66 

80,585 .23 

80,940.89 

I (4,644.]4) 

42,585.23 

37,940.39 

E~pelldLtu lCS: 

Other Operaling 

Capital Outla y 

TOlal Expendi lures 

43,000.00 

43,000.00 

7,370.00 

35,630.00 

43,000.00 

3,362. 16 

16,475.50 

19,837.66 

4 ,007.84 

19 , 154 .50 

23,162.34 

Excess of Revenues Q l'tr ( Under) 

Expenditures $ $ 61, 103.23 $ 6 1,103.23 

Fund Balances 

July 1, 20 10 77,74171 

June 30, 2011 $ 138,844.94 

S~e notes to financIal SlalcmenlS 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

PERMOBIL FIDP 


STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 


BUDGET Al\rn ACTUAL 

Year Ended June 30, 20 II 

Revenues: 

Contributions 
Granl 

Con['(act 

)nlercst 

Total Revenues 

O riginal 

Budget 

$ 242,000.00 

315,000.00 

2 18,000.00 

775,000.00 

Fina] 

Budget 

$ 242,000 .00 

315,000.00 

218,000.00 

775,000.00 

$ 

Actual 

(45,031 .07) 

499,094.48 
384,705.39 

760.06 

839,528.86 

Variance 

$ (287,031.07) 

184,094.48 

760.06 

64,528.86 

Expenditures: 

Capital Expenditures 

Office Supplies 

Conmbulions in AId ofConsmLcti, 

TOial Expenditures 

275,000.00 

500,000.00 

715,000.00 

383,653.49 

1,050,000.00 

1.433 ,653 .49 

383,872.74 

242,556.11 

673,843.05 

1,300,271.90 

(219.25) 

(242,556 .11) 

376,156.95 

133,38 1.59 

Excess ofRevenucs Over (Under) 

Expe l1diture.s 5 $ (658,653 .4 9) (4GO, 743.04) $ (197 ,910.45) 

Fund Balances 

July 1.20 10 462,832.28 

June" 30, 20 II $ 2,089.24 

See notes to financial statements 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


LAW ENFORCEMENT SUPPORT ORGANIZATION 


STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES fN FUND BALANCE 


BUDGET AND ACTUAL 


Year Ended June 30, 20 11 

Revenues: 

Interest Income 
Sale of Equipmeol 
Total Re venues 

Origina l 

Budgel 

$ 

Final 

Budgel Acrual 

$ 9.74 
44,266.63 
44,276.37 

$ 

Variance 

9.74 
44 ,266.63 
44,276.37 

Excess of Revenues Over (Unde
Expendilures 

r) 
s $ 44,276.37 S 44,27637 

fund Balances 
Ju ly 1, 2010 

JUllc30,20 11 $ 44,276.37 

See notes to financial statements 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

POLICE LOCAL OPTION FINE FUND 


STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXl'ENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

Year Ellded June 30, 2011 

Revenues: 

interest 
Local Option Court Fines 
Tora l Revenues 

$ 

Ori gina l 

Budget 

220,000.00 

220,000.00 

$ 

Final 

Budget 

220,000.00 

220,000.00 

$ 

Actual 

(388.93) 
195,847.7 1 

195,458.78 

$ 

Variance 

(388.93) 
(24 , 152.29) 

(24,541.22) 

Expend itures: 
Other Operating 
CapitalOullay 
Total Expenditures 

109,000.00 

111,000.00 

220.000.00 

110,300.00 
115,021.36 

225,321.36 

10,899.96 
114,421.36 

125,321.32 

99,400.04 

600.00 

100,000.04 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) 

Expend itures ~S ~~~~ $ (5 ,3 21.36) 70 ,137.46 $ 75,458.82 

Fund Balances 
July I , 2010 (203,632.27) 

June 30, 2011 $ (133,494.81) 

See notes to financial statements 
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C LTY OF LEBANON, TENN ESSEE 


STREET IMPRO VEMENTS 


STATEMI2NT OF R.EVGr--V ES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES fl\I FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Revenues 

Interest Earnings 

Contracts 

Contributions 

Total Revenues 

, 
Original 
Budget 

, 
Final 

Budget 

620.000.00 

620,000.00 

$ 

Actual 

2,129.85 

520.074.34 

1,029.500.00 

1,551 ,704 . 19 

.I 

Variance 

2,129.85 

(99,925.66) 

1,029,500.00 

93 1,704 .19 

Expel1ditures 

Other Operating ExpendilUl'es 
Capital Outlay 

Total Expenditures 

40,000.00 

305,000.00 
345,000.00 

40,000.00 

1. 158,788.00 
1, 198,788.00 

28,842.07 

2,053 ,075.05 

2,08 1,9 17.12 

11, 157.93 

(894,287.05) 

(883,1 29.1 2) 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) 

Expenditures (345.000.00) (578,788 .00) (530,2 12.93) 48,575.07 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Operating Transfers In (Out) 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) ____ _ _ 

(230,000.00) 

(23 0,000.00) 

(230,000 ,00) 
(230,000 ,00) 0,00 

Excess of Revenues and Olller Sources Over 

(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses ($3 45.000.00) ($808,788 .00) (760.212 .93) $ (48,575.07) 

Fund Balances 

July t, 2010 1,41 2,322.82 

June 30. 20 11 $652,109.89 

Scc notes to financial statements 
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CITY or LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

AIRPORT CAPITAL PROJECTS 


STATEMENT Of REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 


OUDGET AND ACTUAL 

Year Ended June 30, 2011 

O!iginal 

Budget 

Final 

Budge! Actu al Vari ance 

Revenues 
Slate Grant 
Other 

Interest EamlOgs 
Total Revemles 

$ $ 95,000.00 

95,000.00 

$ 63,58 1.64 

43,000.00 

159.97 
106,74 \.6 1 

$ (3 1,4 18.36) 

43,000.00 

159.97 
J1,74\.61 

Expenditures 
Airpon C~ pital Ou tl ay 13,500.00 108,500.00 54,937.29 53,562.7 1 

Total Expenditures 13,500.00 108,500.00 54,937.29 53,562.71 

Excess of Revellues Over (Under) 
E.xpenditu res (13,500.00) ( 13.500.00) 5 1,804.32 65.304.32 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Operating Transfers In 

To tal Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

13,500. 00 

13,500.00 

13,500.00 

13,500.00 

28,7 13.08 

28, 7 13.08 

15,2\3.08 

15,2 13.08 

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources 
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other 

U'es $ 

Fund Bal.::mces 
July 1,2010 

80,5 17.40 

(34,4 16.63) 

$ 80,5 17.40 

June 30, 20) 1 $ 46,1 00.77 

See notes (0 financial statements 
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CITY OF LEBAI"ION, TE1\-'NESSEE 


PAYMENT IN LIEU OF SIDEWALKS 


STATEMENT Of REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 


BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Revenues 
Fees 

Interest Earnings 

Total Revenues 

Original 

Budget 

$ 

Final 

Budget 

$ 

Acrual 

44,465 .00 

37.92 

44 ,502.92 

Variance 

$ 44,465.00 

37.92 

44,502.92 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Operating Traosfers Out (22,000.00) (22,000.00) 

Excess of Reveoues and Other Sources Over 

(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses~$~~~~~ $ (22,000.00) 22,502.92 S 44 .502.92 

Fund Balances 

July I> 20 10 

June 30, 20 11 $ 22,502.92 

S~c notes to financial statements 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


LEB ANON-WILSON COUNTY COMMUNIT Y PARK FUND 

ST AT£MENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES rN FUND DALANCES 


BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

Year Ended Juoe 30, 20 II 

Revenues 

Contrac( 

Interest Earnings 

Tolal Revenues 

$ 

Origina l 

Budget 

100,000.00 

100.000.00 

Fina l 

Budget 

$ 340,000.00 

340,000.00 

$ 

Actua l 

(4,312.06) 

204.96 

(4,167. 10) 

VOl riance 

$ (344,372 .06) 

204.96 

(344, 167. 10) 

Expenditures 

Capital O~ltlay 

TOlal Expenditures 

125,000.00 

125,000.00 

5S0,OOO.OO 

580,000.00 

16,305.09 

16,305.09 

563,694.91 

563,694.9 1 

Excess of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures (25,000.00) (240,00000) (20,472. 19) 2 19,527.81 

Other FinanclI1g Sources (Uses) 

Operating Transfers In 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

25,000.00 

25,000.00 

157,000.00 

157,000.00 

157,000 .00 

157,000.00 

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other 

Uses $ 5 (S3 ,OOO.OO) 136,527.8 1 2 19,527 .8 1 

Fund Balances 

July 1, 201 0 71,565 .56 

June 30, 20 II $ 208,093.3 7 

Sce noles 10 fmancial statements 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

1992 G.O. BOND SINKING FUND 


STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

Year Ended June 30, 20J 1 

Revenues 
Interest Income $ 

Original 
Budgel 

500.00 

Final 
Budget 

$ 500.00 

Actual 

$ 206.23 

Variance 

$ (293.77) 

ExpenditllreS 
Principal 
Interest 
Total Expenditures 

204,597.00 
16,503.00 

221,100.00 

204,597.00 
16,503.00 

221,100.00 

204,597.00 
3,190.75 

207,787.75 
13,312.25 
13,312.25 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) 

Expenditures (220,600.00) (220,600.00) (207,581.52) 13,018.48 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Operating Transfers In 220,600.00 

220,600.00 
220,600.00 
220,600.00 

208,442.50 
208,442.50 

(12,157.50) 
(12,157.50) 

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources 
Over (Under) Expendihlres and Other 

Uses $ $ 860.98 $ 860.98 

Fund Balances 

July I, 2010 18,999.96 

June 30, 2011 $ 19,860.94 

See notes to financial statements 
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CITY OF LEB ANON, TENNESSEE 

2004 G.O. BOND SINKING FUND 


STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 


Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Re venues 
Interest Income 

Original 
Bu dget 

$ 500.00 $ 

Final 
Budget 

500.00 

Actual 

$ 177.06 $ 

Variance 

(322.94) 

Expenses 
Bank Service Charges 
Principa l Expense 
Interest Expense 
Total Expenses 

500.00 
176,000.00 
70,000.00 

246,500.00 

500.00 
176,000.00 
70,000.00 

246,500.00 

176,000.00 
15,549. 11 

191,549. 11 

500.00 

54,450.89 
54,950.89 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures (246,000.00) (246,000.00) ( 19 1,3 72.05) 54,627.95 

Other Fmancing Sources (Uses) 
Operating Trans fers In 246,000.00 

246,000.00 
246,000.00 
246,000.00 

19 1,882.44 
19 1,882.44 

(54,117.56) 
(54,117.56) 

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources 
Over (Under) Expenditures and Ot

Uses 

her 

~$~~~~~~ $ 5 10.39 $ 510.39 

Fund Balances 
July 1, 2010 16,229.86 

June 30, 20 11 $ 16,740.25 

See notes 10 financ ial statements 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 
2003 G.O. BOND SINKING FlIND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FlIND BALANCES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Revenues 
Interest Income $ 

Original 
Budget 

1,000.00 $ 

Fina l 
Budget 

1,000.00 $ 

Actual 

455.1 6 $ 

Variance 

(544.84) 

Expenses 
Bank Serv ice Charges 
Principal Expense 
Interest Expense 
Total Ex.penses 

500.00 
383,750.00 

84, 160.00 
468,410.00 

500.00 
383,750.00 

84,160 .00 
468,410.00 

482.50 
380,000.00 

83,662.50 
464,145.00 

17.50 
3,750.00 

497.50 
4,265.00 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expendiiures (467,410.00) (467,4 10.00) (463,689.84) $3 ,720. 16 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Operating Transfers In 467,410.00 

467,4 10.00 
467,410.00 
467,410.00 

464,087.51 
464,087.51 

(3,322.49) 
(3,322.49) 

Excess of Revenues and Other Sou rces 
Over (Under) Expenditures and Oth er 
Uses "",$_ _ ~_~ $ 397.67 $ 397.67 

Fund Ba lances 
July 1, 20 10 119,297.66 

June 30, 2011 $ 11 9,695.33 

See notes to financial statements 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

2008 REFUNDING BOND SINKfNG FUND 


STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 


Year Ended June 30 , 20 11 

Original Final 
Budset Bud~cl Actua l Variance 

Revenues 
lnlerest lncome S 500.00 $ 500.00 $ 278.97 $ 

Expen ses 
Bank Serv ice Charge s 500.00 500.00 320.00 
Principa I Expense 2 10,000.00 2 10,000 .00 2 10,000.00 
Interest Expense 130,045.00 130,045.00 130,045.00 
Total Expenses 340,545.00 340,545.00 340,365.00 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expendirures (340,045.00) (340,045 .00) (340 ,086.03) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Operating Tra ns fers In 340,045.00 340,045.00 339,828.34 

Tola l OLhel' Fi nancing Sources (US! 340,045.00 340,045.00 339,828.34 

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources 
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other 
Uses $ $ (257.69) $ 

Fund Balances 
July 1, 2010 58,689.1 3 

June 30. 20 11 $ 58,431.44 

(221.03) 

180.00 

180.00 

(41.03) 

(2 16.66) 
(2 16.66) 

(257.69) 

See nolc s to financ ia l s talements 
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C ITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 
2008 G. O. BOND SINKING FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Revenues 
Interest Income $ 

Onginal 
Budget 

$ 

Final 
Budget Actual 

$ 142.46 

Variance 

$ 142 .46 

Expendihlfes 
Principal 
Interest 
Total Expend itures 

124 ,500.00 
115,000.00 
239,500.00 

124,500.00 
115 ,000.00 
239 ,500 .00 

124,000.00 
22, 119.56 

146, 11 9.56 

500.00 
92,880.44 
93, ) 80.44 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures (239,500.00) (239,500.00) (145,977. 10) 93,522.90 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Operating Tra nsfers In 239,500.00 

239,500.00 
239,500 .00 
23 9,500.00 

146,6 19.56 
146 ,6 19.56 

(92 ,880.44) 
(92,880.44) 

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources 
Over (Ullder) Expenditures and Ot

Uses 

her 

"",,$~~~~~ $ 642.46 $642.46 

Fun d Balancs 
July 1, 2010 3\.45 

June 30, 20J 1 $ 673.91 

See notes to financial statements 
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CITY OF LEBANON, T ENNESSEE 


SA NITATION FUND 


STATEMENT OF KEVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND C HANGES fN FUN D BALANCES 


BU DGET AND ACTUA L 

Year Ended June 30, 20 II 

Original Final 

Budget Budget Actual Variance 

Revenues 

Other Income $ $ 11,250.00 S 11 ,793.02 $ 543.02 

Interest Income 0.00 4 14.08 4 14.08 

Total Revenues 11,250.00 12,207. 10 957. iO 

Expenditures 

SaJaTi es 348,733.60 348,733.60 342,322.58 6,411.02 

Payroll Taxes 26,678. 10 26,678. 10 24 ,804.36 1,873.74 

Benefits 257 ,54 3.80 257.543.80 212 ,674 .24 44 ,869.56 

Public RelatIons 3,500.00 3,500.00 2,84&.50 65 1.50 

Postage and Printing 1,100.00 1,1 00.00 70.70 1,029.30 

TransportatIOn ! ,500.00 1,500.00 17.75 1,482.25 

Ut l lttl e~ 800.00 800.00 277.05 522.95 

Telephone 1,200.00 1,200.00 \,115.80 84.20 

Engineering 20,000.00 20,000.00 4,949 .39 15,0 50.6 1 

Other Or~e ra t i ng 25,000.00 25,250.00 19,888.13 5,361.87 

Maintenance 130,577.00 125.577.00 11 3,261.94 12,315.06 

Contractual Services 194,000.00 210,250.00 190,907.54 19,342.46 

Offi ce SUPI)lies 200.00 200.00 \ 96.49 3.5 1 

Operating Supplies 35,000.00 34,750.00 28,6 \ 1. 15 6, 138.85 

Debt ServIce 102 ,200.00 102,200.00 50,104 .4 5 52 ,095.55 

Total E:\pendnures 1,148,032.50 l.I59,282.50 992,050.07 167,232.43 

Exce~ of Re venues Over (Under) 

ExpendItures ( 1,1 48,032.50) (1 ,148,032.50) (979, 841.97) 168, 189.53 

Other Financmg Sourees(Uses) 

Operating Transfen In \ ,148,032.50 1, 148,032.50 1,1 48,032 .50 

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Over 

(Under) Expenditures ;md Other Uses $ ! 168, 189.53 $ 168,189.53 

Fund Balances 

Jul y I , 201 0 103.038 .72 

June 30, 201 J $ 271,228.25 

Sce notes to financial statements 
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SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES 




CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

CLASSIFICATION OF GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BY CITY DEPARTMENTS 


Year Ended June 30, 201 1 

Tota l 

Mayor 
& 

Council 
Cory 

Attomey 
Financjal 

Admin. 

Salaries 
Payroll Taxes 
Group Insurance 
Reliremem 
Workmen's CompensaTion 
Unemplo}1TIent 

Training 
Employer ConTnbutions 
CoJTtrllllJlicatio[ls 

Postage and SllIppmg 
Transpor1a:ion Expense 
Primi,ng 
Subsctiptiolls 
Dues 
Ulihtles 
Telepbone 

Engineering and I\rchilec i 
Professional Fees 
Data ProceSSing 
Medical 
Maintenance 

Trave l and Meals 
Public RelatlOlls 
Contracrual Services 
Janitorial Selvlces 

Ofrice Supplies 
Operating Supplies 
Street Signs 
Um forms 

Gas 
Motor Ydude Parts 

Mat enals 
Insurance 

Rent 

Debt Service 
Capilal Outlay 

Totals 

S 8,148,844.40 

596,828.66 
2,335,603.30 
1,155,4 10.32 

200,209.44 
13 ,3 17.76 
47,096.12 
39,34),67 

8,500.30 
17,438.89 
4,439.76 

42,985.64 
3,759.58 

12,100.58 
519,595. 12 
J87 ,620.99 

36,379.24 
48,640.44 
1 1,882.57 
11,8 16.09 

230,345.46 

24.924. % 
5,670 .87 

252,289.34 
3,499.48 

6 1,536.56 
192,01 7.59 

9,691.78 
82,364.95 

195,744.98 
181,83509 
67,1 55 .73 

237.9 12.56 

3,004 .29 

1,1 93,796.14 

S 16,383,603.65 

$ 100,530.89 
7.444.69 

46,258 .24 
13 ,665.69 

909.48 

$ 100,809.12 
7,403.57 

30,193.37 
14,783 .03 

373 . 12 

$ 78,789.57 
6,041.49 

15,597.89 
12,002.15 

303.39 

450.R6 

27.67 
5.00 

1,289.00 
283.47 

25 .00 

3,893.05 

154.42 

1,920.05 
1,792.36 

927.00 

3,062 .36 

565.44 

2,944.57 

5.00 
1,862.98 

2 11.00 

3,5 87.29 

78.54 
1,282.28 

446.8 1 

2,652.84 
749.57 

240.55 

154.50 

74996 
18 1.98 

217.47 

2,132.09 
1,045.60 

6,072 05 

2,633 .10 
828.59 

710.91 
18922 

1,881.96 268.62 

468.1 7 
380. 63 

8,2 19.20 

$ 182,324.3 1 $ 163 ,579.45 $ 

929.00 
144 ,722 .09 
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Accounling 

Customer 

Billing Purchasing 

Compmer 

Equipmenl 
Public 

Works Warehouse 

$ 104,726.49 

7,549.77 

45,263 .94 

15,309 30 

44 3.08 

$ 15,697.41 

989.77 

11 ,639 .80 

2,212.31 

7 1.21 

$ 29,585 .83 

2,245 .10 

3,5 12.40 

4.303.10 

1l1.95 

$ 61,211.21 

4,359.33 

21 ,366.72 

8,845 .03 

2,658.45 

I 70,279.86 

5,2 19.49 

20,37 1.64 

9,945 .20 

11 6.60 

$ 23,818.90 

1,726.23 

8,462.28 

3,460 .87 

841:2 3 

407.50 J,155.48 115.00 

1,203.54 

3,224 06 

115.50 

3,106. 14 

3 .16 \.13 

23 8.06 

568.32 

4,781.34 

460.20 

141.00 

3,544.35 

15.01 

13 ,672.36 

434.50 

46.81 

15.00 

1,248 .74 

125.00 

6 11.00 

22,844.93 

8,101.73 

4 .00 

30998 

23,075.00 

772 .50 1,388. 80 1,459 .29 

40 .99 

2,732 .34 )49 .25 

52050 

27,073 .23 

4. 50 

176.48 

2,1 67.51 

2,895. 38 

159.85 

689.54 

53 .81 

84 1.28 3,862.96 

20,675.52 
1,538.44 

7,455.80 

17.04 

2,324. 35 

59 1. 87 
901.52 

313.47 

14064 

268.00 35.64 

2,155.65 

1,274.40 

4 ,5 I J.3 I 155.84 

$ 2 11 ,4)402 $ 35,506.25 $ 52,956.60 S 166,804.60 $ 

\ 6,720.54 

176,425.59 $ 40 ,0 1 J.J6 
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C ITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

CLASSIFICAT ION OF G ENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BY CITY DEPART MENTS 


Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Salaries 
Payroll Taxes 

Group Jnsur:mce 

Retiremem 

Workmen's Compensation 

Unemploymem 
Traming 

Employer Contributions 

Commumcanons 

Postage and Shippmg 
Transportallon Ex pense 

Pn ntmg 
Subscripl ions 

Dues 
Utilit ies 

Telephone 

Engincenng and Architect 

Professiona.l Pees 

DalA Processmg 
Medical 

Maintenance 

Travel 

Public Rel!l lion~ 

ContraClUal Services 

JanitOrial Services 


Offi ce Supplies 

Operalll'lg Supplies 


Street Signs 


Uni forms 


G" 

Motor Vehicle Parts 

Malenals 

Insurance: 


Rem 


Debt Service 


Capital Outlay 


Tota ls 


Public 


Safety 


$ 57,238,6 1 

4,743.95 

20,641.74 

8,367.45 

\9 17.59 

27 1.1 5 

1,995.89 

1,161.35 
6.83 1,9 1 

1,029.4S 

657.28 

]5.543.68 

556.58 
3,087,1 2 

2,84 7.9] 

3,792.30 

S 152,684.01 

Personnel 

$ 36,667.84 

2,793. 16 

6,109.21 

5,20636 
596.98 

13,317.76 

141.77 

8.00 
2,070.04 

44 .80 
(124.00) 

4,53 5.80 

9,64 2.18 

57].03 

464.80 

790.45 

(1.57) 

623.39 

S 83,460.00 

Tra ffi c 

Maintenance 


5: 	 120,1 29. 17 

8,676.48 


17,839.74 

1,772.30 

39,34 1.67 

11 4.26 
1.1 77.09 

95.00 
535.90 

99.00 

7,664.94 

29,545.]2 

6,488.13 

1,784. 80 
970.90 

982.74 

4,996.04 
2,943.80 

820.24 

148,202.25 

S 394,179.77 

General 
Maintenance Police 

$ 11 3.467.3 1 
8,376.G8 

38,855.32 
13,267.7 1 

7,642.57 

$ 4.244, 157.21 
312,230.12 

1,143,07335 

599,596.54 

99,546.92 

29,724.94 

66.50 

4,526.53 
2. 11 1.95 

3,309.56 
19,698. 19 

277.32 

2,283.57 

8,840.08 

30,284.88 

56.058,87 

22,707.'16 

11,882.57 

1,744.14 

102,850.02 

179,65 

2,60 1.90 

268.53 
5,30 1,04 

11,957.99 

695. 19 
80,470.23 

3,499.48 

27,840.35 

43,125.90 

1,164.4 1 

8,686.25 
2,584 .6 1 

267.46 
1,378 .00 

52,429. 32 

253,744 .77 
84,]20.95 

102,529.68 

(82.00) 

5,706.40 

S 235.082.69 $ 

51,874.00 

7,382,041.73 

94 
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$ 

F1fe 

1,789,045.89 

131,138.04 

538,777 .4) 

263,049.26 

36,646.58 

13,811.63 

I,IlI6.SS 
221.41 

2,305.53 
6 12.05 

320.00 

46,185.84 

40,045.03 

Building 

Inspect10n 

$ 102,619.06 

7.42 1.72 

28,21 7. 58 

14,893.66 

3,925.06 

393.00 

51.35 

75.00 

\39.50 

145.00 

3,260.9 1 

BU11ding 

Maintenance 

$ 8,069.97 

588.89 

2,056.69 

1,153.87 

1,403.84 

36,740.26 

1,272.44 

S 

Street 

44 1,974.08 

3 1,376.29 

160,777.7 1 

60,742 .68 

22,811.18 

11 9.00 

1,608. 13 

12.49 

73 5.00 

274 .00 

1, 134.80 

Animal 

Comrol 

$ 59.488.42 
4. 364. 10 

15,261.96 

6,(35.1 6 

746.23 

555.00 

10.00 

25.00 

1,4 11.42 

$ 

31,28 1.3 2 

3,267.1 4 

573.75 

13,073 .29 

8,782.24 

3~.739 . 9S 

16,698.41 

27,164.46 

12,477.49 

48,394.01 

905,184.74 

3,964,614.37 

169.24 

506.67 

498 .00 

715.00 

45.42 

137.74 

1,809.34 

1,226.96 

1,31 2.38 

$ 167,562.59 $ 

1,082.00 

6,017.85 

3,965.39 

12,057.48 

74 ,418.68 

195.00 
29,725.22 

5,42"1.02 
529.50 

35 ,887 .22 

1,27638 

15,482.34 

9,69:1.78 

5,025 .33 

77,944.85 

64,691.9 1 
53,720.37 

6,561.90 

1,508.25 

44,665.35 

$ 1,073,899.78 

234.77 

79.90 

165.54 

4,780.37 

2,791.76 

4,590. 11 

'1 10.1 2 

S 10 I .OSO.86 
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CITY OF LEBANON. TENNESSEE 

CLASSIFICATION OF GENERAL FUND EXP£NDITURES BY CITY DEPARTMENTS 


S31aries 

Payroll Taxes 

Group Insll rance 

Ret irement 

Workmen's Compensallon 

Unemployment 

Training 

Empl oyer Contributi ons 

Communications 

Postage and Shipping 

Transport:l11on Expense 

Priming 

Subscripllom, 

lA;" 

Utilities 

Telephone 

Engineeling !lnd Architect 

Profession:!l Ftes 

Data Proctssmg 

Mtdica l 

Mamlenance 

Tr~yel 

Public Rc l~ lions 

ConftaCIUIl \ Sel'vlces 

Janitonal Se-rvlces 

Office Supplies 

Operating Supplies 

Streel Si£l'ls 

Uniforms 

Gas 
MOlor Vehicle- Parts 

M3Iem.;~ 

Insurance 


Rem 


Debl Service 


Capllal Outlay 


Tot~1s 

Year f.n ded lul'le 30, 201 1 

Engineenng 

, 145.202.40 

10,023 .67 

30,696.01 

21,056.20 

1,41 7.84 

S 

Garage 

11 9.8: 57.48 

8,707.52 

54,392.83 

16,465.1 6 

3,253.10 

362.71 

588.55 

19.20 

2,638.08 

579.19 

864.00 

2,906.53 

36,379. 24 

22.50 

360.75 

8,324.94 

2,532.17 

11.08 1 ,063.43 

91.69 

(\39.24) 

16,464 .00 10 1.25 

1,856.76 

6 10.77 

582.33 
8,050.94 

44 .08 

1,537.77 

2:,~ . 26 

2,546 .67 

2,322.72 

1,564.76 

472.47 1,230.36 

2,361.86 

$ 276,289.12 S 232,378 .91 

Cemetery Recreation 

S 34,64 2.03 

2,574 .09 

3,809.76 

5.060.63 
932.51 

$ 253 ,046 .82 

17,964.22 

90,164.85 

34,571.8 1 

9,068.64 

5 1.1 2 

10.00 

804.00 

99.00 

342.32 

50.00 

1,920.67 

124.7 1 

4,353.82 

6,834.6 1 
8 1,249.22 

11 ,550.49 

11 0.94 3,595 .60 

1,360.40 

256.63 

8,307.)9 

3 13. 17 

1,0)0.93 

&49.87 

31,987. 82 

296.48 

707.85 

169.95 

1,547.32 

4,101.19 

19 1.84 

9,634.22 

1,545.52 

8,620.58 
40,688 .12 

S 68.789.80 S 
18,152.00 

623.883.34 

96 




, 
Special 
Events 

$ 

Dues 

269,329.32 

Communi ty 

Park 

S 37,7&8.83 
2,870.29 

102.58 

3,466.41 

699.59 

10.00 

17,431.82 

862.34 

2,257.39 

EAC 
Committee 

S 

135.20 

Regional 
Transportiltlon 

Authority 

$ 

25,000.00 

$ 

Total 

S,148,844 .40 

596,828.66 

2,335,603.30 

1,1 55,4 10.32 

200 ,209.44 

13,317.76 

47,096.1 2 

39,34 1.67 

8,500.30 

17,438.89 

4,439.76 

42,985.64 

3,759.58 

12, 100.58 

519,59.5.12 

187,620.99 

36,379 .24 

48,640.44 

11 ,882 . .57 

11 ,8 16.09 
230,346.46 

3,168.53 

6,547.97 

6,5 85.05 

208.85 

3,000.00 

39.56 

24 ,924.96 

5,670.87 

252,289.34 

3,499.4 8 

6 1.536.56 
192,017. 59 

9,693 .78 

82.364.95 

395,744 .98 

181,835.09 

67, 155.73 

237,9 12.56 

3,004.29 

S 3,161).5 3 $ 269,329.32 $ 8 1,83 1.1 2 S 174.76 S 25,000.00 $ 

1,193.796. 14 

16,383,603 .65 
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CITY OF LEBANON, T El\'NESSEE 

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL GAS SYSTEM FUND 

SCHEDULE OF OPERAT(NG EXP ENSES 

Year Ended June 30, 20 11 

Salaries 

Payroll Ta);cs 

Empl oy~~ [Jenefit s 

Pension Costs 

Commumcallons 

SUpplies and Public31lQIIS
D,,, 
Uti li ties 

Professional Ser"'le~s 

Repair and Maintenance 

Travel 

Opcming Supplic~ 

Maintenance Supplies 

COOITllelual Services 

Insurance 

Bud Debt Expense 

Rent 

Community Rcbtlon&lMlrketing 

Mlscdlaneous 

TransmiS:>lOn 

>od 

Distribution 

S 299,76S.46 

21 ,777.2S 

132,336.28 

43,01 8.30 

17,735.76 

7,743.52 

13,304. 19 

14,710.68 

1,052.00 

44,63 5.87 

3,735.48 

46,038.58 

49,929.58 

43.337.40 

J5,270.21 

9,750.65 

10,409.50 

21 ,88917 

CustOIllCT 

Accounlmg& 

Colle!;\lon 

S 40,106.76 

2,639.36 

2 1,458.53 

5,89939 

1,5 15.5 1 

9,OM.57 

1,932. 19 

39802 

27,179.34 

95.04 

AdmInIStrative 

00' 
Gcncral 

• 284,12l.86 

20,61 4.01 

1 Dtl,439.00 

40,698.75 

15,974 ()4 

11,588.92 

49,073.35 

11 ,422.48 

25 ,958 .14 

3,80394 

(503 .90) 

l6,627.40 

623.94 

33,736.08 

8,301.17 

6,002.60 

283 .65 

9,552.5 1 

Shop 

"0' 
Maintenance 

S 53,699.64 

3,945.30 

26,293.89 

7,0 18.30 

1,254.60 

105.84 

9,042.36 

4,409.79 

3,79 198 

4,537. 14 

1,860.58 

3,12 1.00 

1,222.&0 

S 

Meier 

Reader 

71,612.85 

5,293.90 

26, 192.87 

14,902.5 1 

1.18l.3 1 

52.00 

1,426.07 

8,447.89 

3,076.53 

3,121.34 

Total 

(MemOfandum 

Only) 

S 749,309.57 

54,269.85 

3 12,720.57 

111,537.25 

36.479.9 1 

28.502.85 

62,377.54 

36,356.83 

27,0 10. 14 

52,849.60 

3,283.58 

69,866.22 

63,S3S.55 

82,408.6 1 

49.n},72 

2i, 179.34 

15,848.29 

10,693. ]5 

32,664.48 

, 816,442.91 , 110,338.7 1 S 644.317.94 S 120,303.22 S 135,307.27 , 1,826,71 0.05 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TE.NNESSEE 

DEPARTMENT Of WATER AND SEWER FUND 


SCHEDULE Or: OPERATING EXPENSI:;S 


Year Ended June 30, 201 J 

Waler Sewer 

Purification Plallt 

""1''''''' 
Sal3ries , 380,351,9 1 , , 380,352.91 

P3yroll T~ ... es 27,310.46 27.320.46 

Enlployce OeodilS 219,&47.29 219.847 .29 

Pension COSIS 55,612.44 55,<>72 .44 

Commu11\C;llion$ 6,2&').96 6,289.% 

Supplies aud I'ubliearions 5,704.25 5,71)4 25 

DUd alld Subscriptioru; 3 15.00 315.00 

Utilities 4Q(i, 192.77 406,192.77 

pro ression~ 1 Services 

MiscellallCQUS 3,295.00 3,295.00 

Medic~\ 

Repair .tId M~lIl1enan,c 50.9 10.66 50,9 10.66 

Tr::l.Ve\ 3,640.27 3,64027 

Open.ling SU)lphn 324.405.46 324.40).46 

Main\en~llce Supplies 2,026.34 2,OL6. 34 

Insunnc( 23,786.&9 23.786.89 

Commltnily Rela tions/Marketing 
COllt rJc\UJ I Serv;e~ &4.457 .79 &4,457 ,79 

Rem 
TOtals S 1.594,2 17.49 S S 1.594.217.49 

Shoo and Mam!eo""c 

Expcllscs 

S3 1 ~ritJ 
, 46,14 5.02 , 27,270.28 , 73 ,415 30 

Payroll TJ,I;cs 3,388.21 2.000.74 5,388.95 

Emplo~cc Dcnctils 22,28!.l9 13,710.02 3$,99 1.2 1 

Pcns' ()!1 CostS &.194 .02 3,652.)B 9,846.40 

Communicall0ns 976.8$ 601.56 1,5 18.4 1 

SupphcJ ~l1d l'ublicali()l1s ' 9.33 59.46 118.79 

DueJ 

M.!ccllanCOIlS 

MedIC ll 

Utilm~ 6,065.28 3.532. 10 9.597.38 

Pro FeUlonJl Scrvites 

Repdr IIId Ma,llIcn¥t« 2,948.66 1.592 93 4,541 .59 

Tl'llvcI 14.(j0 14,60 

Operaling Supplies 2,584.19 1,980.14 4,564 .93 

Ma int l:n:III(C SllJlpll~ 4,]6].78 2248,96 li,612,74 

Insurance 2,151.07 1.1 29.88 ),280.9$ 

Conlnctu~ l ServK:cs 1,240,83 (j2650 1,86733 

CommLinity KrlationsIM~lkcl ins 

R.em 
Totals $ 98,4 J3.63 S $8,4~ .95 , 1$6,818 S8 

" 




Water Sewer l'Olal 

Tnlr1S.lHni'i'" and DillribYJjO'1 

, 350,69163 S 385, 11 1.07 

25.501.37 28,473.72 
167,910.69 	 179, 150.28 
50,885.33 57,4 1567 
9.896.93 10,914 .64 
1,075.50 1.0)6.78 

4,574.25 521.50 
74,979 19 114.629.27 

100.00 

611 67 245.00 

19.158.27 87,074.] 1 

149.38 

1I ,74J.41 42.079.44 

47,69&51 92,698.1& 
18,045.22 8.202.38 

17.5 18.92 63,761.35 
1.488.00 536.15 

, 735,802.10 

53.975.09 
347.1 20.97 

108 ,30 1.00 
20.871.57 
2,112.23 
5, 101.75 

189,608.46 
100.00 

858.67 

106,2)2.58 

\49.38 
53.1122.85 

140.396.69 
26,24 7.60 

81.280.21 

2,024.25 
S 802,090.27 S 1.071.915.84 S 1,874.006. 11 

CIISIQmC! ACCO\!!}lIng 

, 6 1,831.31 • 50,133.45 S 1\1.964.76 

4,()6S.98 3,299.19 1,368. \ 7 

33,105.OG 26,841.94 59.947.00 

9,094.84 7,314. 18 16.469.02 

2,336.40 1.894.40 4.230.80 

13,97453 I 1,330.(,9 25,)05.2'2 

3,055.87 2.477.73 5,53).60 

Ci13.62 497.52 1,11 1.14 

, 146.52 11 8.80 265.)2 

128,227.13 , IOJ,967.9l) , 232,195.03 

W,le r Sewer TOlal 


Adn>;(! I$Ir:llive 3ntl Genera l 


, 237,448.28 
16,964.1') 

83,044.40 

3~,053A9 

11,708.3 7 

10.069.61 
41.1)41.45 

6,853.50 
30,578.10 

891.16 

883.70 

(261.75) 
18,580.87 

2,)44.0] 

5,425.26 
170.19 

33,545.95 
1.887.00 

• 5<11 ,434.40 S 478,540.98 S 1.019.975.38 

~"'ltm Dir" 1 

, S 470>694. 17 S ·410,6')4.17 

33,364. 19 33,364 19 

195,596.38 195,596.38 

67,100.20 61,100.20 

11,257.27 11 ,257.27 

313.33 ]13.33 
11,19H)(l , 1,195.00 

1,763.50 1,763.50 

803,715.)0 80),715.30 

44,1 27.5 1 44,127.51 

101,967.)7 101 .967.37 

8,244.18 8,244.18 

27,067.83 27,067.83 

126. 152.95 126,152.95 

967.80 %7.80, S 1,90J,526.98 S 1,903,526.98 

, 220.9<16.47 S 458,394.15 
15,620.06 32,584 .25 
59,753.43 142,797.83 
45,075.S5 79, 129.34 

8,9 10.44 20,GI8.81 
8.401.'14 18,47105 

27.721.70 74.763.15 
4.569.00 11,422.50 

36,324 .B 66,!>it)2.23 

884. 18 1,781.94 

560.78 1,444.48 
(147.73) (409.48) 

13.62(5) 32.210.4(1 

2,45740 5.00 1.4] 
3,B~4.59 9,269.85 

113.46 28365 
28,710.15 	 62,316.20 

1,106.00 2,99] .00 

100 
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ClTY or LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

DEPARTMENT OF WATER AND SEWER FUND 

SCHEDULE OF OPERATIN G EXPENSES 

Year Ended June 30, 20 11 

Water Sewer Total 

Expenses 
Salaries 
Payroll Taxes 
Employee BenefIts 
Pension Costs 

Communications 

Supplies and Publications 

Dues 
Mi scellaneous 
Medical 
Utilities 
Profes si onal Services 

Repair and Maintenance 
Travel 
Operating Supplies 
Maintenance Supplies 
Insurance 
Bad Debt Expense 
Cont ractual Services 

Commull ity Reiations/Marketing 

Rent 

Totals 

$ 53,706.13 

3,966.68 

19,637. 10 

11,17 1.40 

886.07 

6,413.68 

36.50 
1,1 97.7 1 

2,341.01 

2,326.56 

S 101 ,68284 

Meier Bcaders 

$ 53 ,706. 13 

3,960.56 
19,637.10 

11 , 171.40 

886.07 

6,362.43 
36.50 

1,069.46 

2,341.0} 

2,315.66 

S 10 I ,486.32 

$ 

$ 

107,4 12.26 

7,927.24 

39,274.20 

22,3 42 .80 

1,772 . 14 

12,776.11 

73.00 

2,267 .17 

4,682,02 

4,642.22 

203,1 69. 16 
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CITY or LEBANON, TENNESSEE 
SCHeDULE OF' GENERA L LONG-TERM DEBT 

June 30, 20 11 

1222 - Qs:neraJ Qbligll!ion Bond} ,OO~ U 11l F [.211D 
Pri ncil!al l.J.1!m.g I2.!!! 

2012 S, 
Princip:lI \ 

2 12,454 
1 12,454 

S 
S 

!.!lli:mL 

6,374 
6,374 

S 
S 

TOla l 

218,828 
2 18,828 

20 12 

20 13 
2014 

S J80,000 

185,000 
190,000 

S 5] ,3 10 
47,9 10 

42,360 

• 2)] ,310 

232,9 10 
232,360 

1015 195,000 36,660 23 1,660 
20 16 9 \,000 30,810 12 1,8 10 
20 17 93,000 28,OSO 11 1,080 
20 18 96,000 25,290 121 ,290 

2003 - General Qbl iga!ioil BonQ~ 201 9 99,000 22,41 0 12 1,4 10 
PrinC I[;!a l l.D.1m1!. T01a1 2020 10 1,000 19,440 120,440 

20 2 1 104 ,000 16,4 10 120,4 10 
20 12 S 395,000 S 70,363 $ 465,363 2022 107,000 13,290 120,290 
20 n 41 0.000 55,550 465,550 2023 10'),000 10,080 119,080 
2014 420,000 40,175 460, 175 2024 112,000 6 ,8 10 118,8 10 
lO IS 190,000 24.005 1 14,005 2025 115,000 3,450 11 8,450 

20 16 200,000 16,405 2 16, 405 $ 1,777,000 S 356.3 10 S 2,133,3 10 

20 \ 7 205,000 

• 1,820,000-
8,405 

• 214 ,903 
2 13,405 

$ 2 ,034,903 

2Q08 . Q~n£ra l Qb:li gatlQn B2nd Note PaXil ble - Sanit;n ion Truck 
PnnciD31 In!llim Total Princil!al !nl.tw! TOla l 

2012 $ 2 \5,000 $ 123 ,745 $ 33 8. 745 20 12 $ 49,000 $ 2. 156 , 5 1,156 

20 13 225,000 116,758 341 ,758 S 49,000 $ 2,1 56 $ 51 ,156 

20 14 235,000 IOS ,88) 343,383 

201 5 240,000 )00,658 340,65 8 

20 16 250,000 9 1,658 341 ,658 

20 17 260,000 82,28 ) 342,2 8) 

2018 270,000 7 1,883 34 1,88) 

10 19 280,000 61 ,083 34 1,083 

2020 290,000 49,883 339,883 

2021 305,000 38,28] 34) ,283 

2022 31 5,000 26,083 34 1,083 

2023 325,000 D ,32S 338,325 

I 3.2 10,000 $ 684,520 $ 4,0')4 ,5 20 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 
SC HEDULE OF GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTI:\t; ED 

June 30, 20 11 

2008 TM!.. Loan 2011 TMB[ Loan 
Ppflcl pal ~ Toul Principal lllierest Tota l 

2012 ! 13 0,000 $ 153,750 $ 283,750 20 12 $ 35,000 $ 34.897 $ 69,897 
201 3 137,000 14 7,250 284 ,250 20 13 37,000 33,582 70,582 
20 14 143,000 140,400 283,400 20 14 38,000 32,294 70,294 

2015 151,000 ! 33,250 284 ,250 2015 39,000 30 ,972 69.972 
20 16 15S,OOO 125,700 283,700 20 16 41.000 29,6 15 70,615 
2017 166,000 117,800 283.800 2017 42,000 28, 188 70, 188 
20 18 174,000 109,500 283,500 2018 44,000 26,726 70,726 
20 19 183,000 100.800 283,800 2019 45,000 25, 195 70, 195 

2020 192,000 91,650 28) ,650 2020 47,000 2),629 70,629 
201 1 202,000 82,050 284,050 202 1 48,000 21,994 69,994 

2022 211.000 7 1,950 283,950 2022 50,000 20,323 70,323 

2023 222,000 6 1,350 28),)50 2023 52,000 18.583 70,583 

2024 233,000 50,250 283 ,250 2024 53,000 16,774 69,774 

2025 245,000 38,600 283.600 2025 55,000 14 ,929 69 ,929 

2026 257,000 26,350 283,350 2026 57,000 13,015 70,0 15 

2027 270,000 13,500 283,500 2027 59,000 11,032 70,032 

$ 3,075,000 $ 1.464,150 S 4,539. 150 2028 61.000 8,978 69.97& 
2029 63,000 6,856 69,856 

2030 66,000 4,663 70,663 

2031 68,000 2,366 70,366 

S 1,000,000 $ 404,612 $ 1.404.612 
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CITY OF LEBANON. TEl'-lNESSI'!:: 

SCIiEDUl.c OF PROPRIl:'TAR Y Flr.-/DS 


DONOS AND Nares PII YABLE 

J""" JO . 201 I 


\\" 'n Jnd S'''''Cf TMRFlOOl Bonds Gn SrslmJ R£,uue & I n Bond 

~JUl .lti!ill.tl. ~ ~ l.!.!!&.r:nI 1l!!iI 
2012 1 180.(1(]() S 89.•50 2M.~5a 10)2 S 110,000 , 11.8Jl S 141.813 
21m 189.000 8).S ) 4 l71.8)ol 20(3 II S,OOO H,B! 143 .238 
2014 I'XI.OOO 17.9)8 276.918 115.000 24,2 1J 139,2]) 
20" 209.000 71. 72 9 2w.n9 "'20''15 120.000 20.188 140.1s& 
2014 119.000 6U08 284.20~ 101 6 115.000 15,6U U O,688 
l()17 230.0UO 58.375 ' U.J7S 2017 m,OOO 11,000 14M OO 
20l S 241.0\)0 5U 99 292.19') 1018 I W ,OOO 1(5,600'.W> 
"''' 254.000 43.680 291.680 

2020 21>6.000 lDSS 30 1.7S5 860,000 S 06,738 S ~7J8 
2021 2'19.000 2?456 106.456 
lOll 29J.OOO 11.751 3 11.711 
20ll 308.000 9.610 317.610 

Willer 100 SeWS"! J}1BF2005 flo!>!U 
S 1.867.000 , 632.986 ~ l!!!mi!. I2l.J.! 

2012 S 57.000 S 45 .800 S 101.800 
20 l J 60.000 43,S20 103.520 

\V' lt , .nd S<w;rTMBt1007 Bond,! 2014 62.000 4 1,1 20 IOJ,120 

t!i~ ..1v:Illm ~ 20 15 6<.<>00 3S,6<'<O lOU AO 
2012 S 201.000 i 211.CJOO S 4 IS .6C0 2016 61.000 36,0$0 10J.080 
20 1l 2 IJ .OOO 201.25 0 4IS.2~0 2017 ".OOQ n.400 103 .4 00 
20 14 220.000 190.S:>0 4 10.550 12.000 JO.6oo 102,600 

221.000 179 .550 406.~~o 2019 27.720 )02,nO"" 1S,OOO"'2016'' 2)5.000 16&.100 40 ),200 n ,OOO 24.720 102.no"''' 
2011 20 2.000 156.•50 }98,.SO 2021 81.000 21,600 )02 ,600 
201& n o.OIIO 144 .}50 19. ,HO 85.000 18.360 103,J60'00' 
201 9 2.\8.000 131 .850 )89.8S0 20B 88.000 1~ .9«I 102,960 

2020 2 t>6.0()0 II g,9~0 38·1.950 m. 91.000 !l .440 IOJ.440 
202 1 27HXIO IO;.MO ) 79,650 2015 9S,OOO 7,760 101.760 
2012 18l.()(10 91.950 374.950 1020 ~.OOO 3,960 102,'160 

2n.OOO 77.8 00 J69,800"'" JOI.OCIO 364,200 2024 63.100 

3 11.000 48. 150 lSg,I50 S 1,145.000 , S 1,544.680"" 2026 )2 1,0tJ0 32.600 JSJ,GOO 

202 7 3) 1.000 16,S50 J..IJ.S50 

Wjlle, atld Sc"tr 1M DF2008 Honds 
S ~ .2JHIOO S 1.938.650 S 6.170.650 ~.lI lIUma IS!!!! 

20 11 S IJ &,OOO S )~ ,600 S 332,600 
2013 145.000 187.700 332.?00 

G:I! 5"1\1'", nlRf200BI/Q! ld. 101 ~ 151,000 180 ,4S0 )3j,4 J,O 

etirrLw.! .l!llw.1l :ll!W 201S 160.000 172,!lOO 332.800 
2012 s 11.000 S 51.600 S SS,600 2016 16&.000 164,SOO 1n,8OO 

38.000 4~,7S0 81.750 2017 171.000 1).(,.'100 33).400 "'10''' 01 40.()(j() 47,850 57, aSG 20lS 185,000 147.,SO 3n . SSO 
42.0010 4~.8 S0 87,8~0 20 19 191.000 I)UOO ) ]).300"'''2010 45.(X)O 4J,7j0 88.,750 204.000 128.550 ))2,550 

01 7.000 "'"41.500 88.500 202 1 215.000 II B,l SO JJl .150 "''' 4? 0()0 %8, 1SO ns,()()O 107,600 l32,600 

"''' 
2018 39, 15(1 

S!_OOO 36.700 U,100 202l 2)1.000 ~6,JSO 3J:l, JS O 
54.OCIO H.l OO 8UOO 2018.000 U,SOO 3J2,SOO2020 2024 

lOll S7.000 Jl,4oo 81,( 00 201S 261.000 72.100 ))) , 100 

"U (01.000 28550 88.550 21)16 2H ,ooo 59,OSO nJ,OSO 

2023 6),ano 25,SSO as.~~O 2027 1U,OOO 45 ,350 33J.nO 
20H b~.O(!O 22,' 00 88.400 1023 J02,OOO 30.950 312,9~O 

102$ hQ.OOO 19,100 n. loo Z029 )17,000 15.850 331,850 

2016 7J, OCIO 15.6~0 Suso 
2027 7(0.000 12,000 U.OOO S ),892.000 S 2.1 01.250 S S,9'JJ.l50 

2Q~8 &0.000 6,200 ~8 ,200 


2029 &4.000 ~ .2 00 !K,2oo 


S 1.032.000 S 557.)00 S !.S89,lOO 

''" 


http:lti!ill.tl
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SCHEDULE Of PROPRIE.TARY FUNDS 

BONDS AND NOTES PA YA BLE· CONTINUED 


June 30, 201 1 


Loan ~:lXab!s:·Sla l e ofTennesscs:. 01-{)32 I.Qi!Il ~a~b:I!;·Still~ Q:fTe""~~ee - Q2 - 16~ 

Princi181 'nteres! Total ~riD!;]D:ill In!llin Total , , ,2012 S 66,960 S 39,876 S 106,836 20 12 204,576 97,080 301,6:)6 
2013 69,072 37,764 106,836 2013 209,436 92,220 30l ,GS6 
20 14 71,256 35,580 106,836 2014 214,416 S7,240 301,656 
20 15 73,500 33,3)6 106,8)6 2015 219,504 82,152 301,656 
2016 75,8 16 J I ,al a 106,836 201 6 224,724 76,932 30 1,656 
2017 78,2 16 28,620 106,836 201 7 230,064 71,592 )01,656 
20 18 80,676 26, 160 106,836 2018 235,524 66,132 30 1,65 6 
2019 83,232 13,604 106,836 2019 24 1,1 16 60,540 301 ,656 
2020 85,848 20,988 106,836 2020 246,852 54,S04 301,656 
202 1 88,560 18,276 106,836 202 1 252,708 48,948 301 ,656 
2022 9 1,)56 \ 5,480 106,836 2022 258,708 42,948 301,656 
2023 94,236 12,600 106,836 2023 264,864 36,792 301 ,656 
2024 97,212 9,624 106,836 2024 271,152 30,504 301,656 

2025 100.272 6,564 106,836 2025 277,596 24,060 301,656 
2026 10),440 3,396 106,836 2026 284,184 17,472 301.656 
2027 52,131 68 1 53,4 18 2021 290,940 10,716 301,656 

2028 297,973 3,795 301,768 

, 1,31 2.389 S 343,569 , 1,655.958 , 4,224.)37 $ 903.921 , 5,128,264 

I,ll;!!:! Pa~ble.S!a!e orTenncs~ee· Oa·220 L2:1!l ~a:Gbl~~tate QrT£nrle5se~· Q~ ·222 

~nllclllal Interut Total Prin!<lIJi!i In teresl Tota l 
201 2 $ 17,184 S 9,300 S 26,484 2012 S 822,960 $ 414,023 , 1,236,983 
201 3 17,604 8,880 26,484 2013 841,24 9 )95,734 1,236,9&3 

2014 18,024 8,460 26,484 2014 859,944 311,039 1,236,983 

2015 IS ,468 8,0 16 26,484 20 15 879,055 357,928 1,236,983 

2016 18,!) 12 7,572 26,484 2016 898,590 338,393 1,236,983 

2017 19,3GS 1,1 l ei 26,484 20 17 918,560 3 18,424 1,236,983 
2018 19,848 6,636 26,484 2018 938,913 298,010 1,236,983 
2019 20,328 6, 156 26,484 2019 959,840 277,14) 1,236,983 

2020 20,820 ) ,664 26,484 2020 981 ,111 255,813 1,236,983 

2021 21,324 5,160 26,484 202 1 1,002,975 2)4,008 1,236,983 

2022 21,840 4,644 26,484 2022 1,025,265 211.718 1,236,983 

2023 22,368 4,116 26,484 2023 1,048,()49 188.934 1,236,983 

2024 22,920 3,564 26,484 2024 1,011,34 1 165,643 1,236,983 

2025 23,472 3,0 12 26,484 2025 \,095,149 141 ,834 1,236,983 

2026 24,036 2,448 26,484 2026 1,119,487 177,496 1,296,983 

2027 24 ,624 1,860 26,484 2021 1,144,]6$ 92,6 18 1,236,983 

2028 25,224 1,260 26,484 2028 1,169,791 67,186 1,236,983 

2029 25,836 648 26,484 2029 1,195,793 4 1,1 90 1,236,983 

2030 1), 11 8 104 13,222 2030 1,222,369 14,616 1,236,984 

S 395,3 18 , 94,616 , 489,934 , 19,194,932 S 4,367,751 S 23,562,683 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


SCHEDULE OF PROPRI ETARY FUN DS 


BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE - CONTINUED 

June 30,2011 


Waler end Sewer TMB f 2010 Bond 

P[ms;illilt 

2012 $ 61 ,150 


20 13 ",000 

2014 65,000 

20 15 67,000 


2016 69,000 

20 17 71,000 

2018 73,000 

20 19 75,000 

2020 77,000 

202 1 79,000 

2022 82,000 

2023 84,000 

2024 86,000 

2025 89,000 

2026 91,000 

2027 94,000 

2028 97,000 

2029 100,000 

2030 102,000 


103 1 105,000 


S 1,631.150 

!n.!grn 

$ 	 45,776 


43,987 


42, 142 

40,255 


38310 

36,308 

34,249 


32,1 32 


29,959 


27,728 

25 ,42 5 

23,052 


20,621 

18, 11 8 


15,544 

12,899 


10, 167 

7,350 


4,462 


1.502 

, T0I31 

106,926 

107,987 
107,1 42 


107,255 


107,3 10 

107,308 


107,249 


107, 132 


106,95 9 


106,728 

107,425 


107,052 


106,621 

107, 11 8 

106,544 


106,899 

107,167 

107,350 


106,462 

106,502 


S 509,983 $ 2, 141,133 

107 




CIT Y OF LEBANON , TENNESSEE 


SCHEDULE OF ADDIT10NS AND RETIREM ENTS TO UTILITY PLANT 


June 30, 201 1 


I3nl::mce Balance 
June 30, 2010 Additi ons Retirements June 30, 2011 

Department ofNatua l Gas : 
Land and Improvements $ 584,868.36 $ $ $ 584,868_36 
Buildmgs 1,645,569.10 24,918.03 1,670,487.13 

Equipmenl 1,2)0,144.40 62.666. 54 1,272,8 10 .94 
Transmission and Distribution 2 1.425,634.17 , 24,866.2 t6.03 

1,349.878.93 
$ 1,437,463.50 $ 

22,775,5 13 .10 
$ 26,303,679.53 

Oeparlment of Water and Sewer: 
Land and Improvl!ments $ \ ,549,0 1 \.68 $ 106,107.20 $ $ 1,655 ,118.88 

BUildings 29,317,163.00 1,61 3,930. 13 30,931,093.13 

Equipment 2.488 ,9 52.50 97,707 .50 2,586,660.00 

Improvements Other Than Bui ldings 76,4 37,038.46 13,385 ,228 .59 89,822,267.05 
$ 109,792, 165.64 $ 15,202,973.42 $ $ 124,995, 139.06 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TIi:NNESSEE 


SCHEDULE OF TAXES RECEIVAB(.E 


June 30, 2011 

Genera l Fund 

Unco ll ected Taxes: 

Deferred 201 1 
Vouchers on Hand 

2010 
2009 
2008 
2007 
2006 
2005 
2004 
2003 
2002 
2001 

$ 

$ 

3,054,715 

143,127 
58,528 

1,691 
662 
967 

2.876 
4,555 
4,636 
5,3 11 
4,494 

3,28 1,562 

·NOTE 

All delinquent taxes through 2009 Tax year have been filed wi th th e Clerk 
and Master. 
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CITY OF LEBANON T E NNESSEE 
SCH EDULE OF CHANG ES IN TAXES RECEIVAB LE 

Year Ended Jun e 30,20] 1 

Prop eny Tax Nel 
ReceivabJe Anticipa ted Abatements Receivable 

Tax B alance Propert y Tax Current Year and Allowance for Balance 
Year June 30, 20 10 Lev ied Lev y Adjustments Coll ections Unco llectibles June 30, 201 I 

20ll $ 3,054,715 $ 3,05 4,7 15 

201 0 $ 2,892, l36 $ 117,852 $ (5,560) $ 2,872,42 1 143, 127 
2009 199, 143 ( 1,405) 142,020 58,528 
2008 29,5 59 ( 117) 27,985 1,69 1 
2007 1,457 795 662 
2006 1,094 (9 11 ) 1,038 967 
2005 2,983 107 2,876 
2004 4,673 11 8 4,555 
2003 4,637 4,636 
2002 5,31 1 5,3 11 
2001 4,495 I 4,4 94 

$ 3,145 ,4 88 $ - $ 3,054,715 $ f2,43 3) $ 172,065 $ - $ 3,281,562 
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CITY OF LEBANON TENNESSEE 


SCHEDULE OF TA,X RATES AND ASSESSMENTS 

June 30, 2011 

Rate per $1 00 of Total Assessed 
Assessed Valuation Va luation 

20 11 $ 0.346 $ 9 19,804,744 

2010 0.33 5 926,190,622 

2009 0.335 915,361,693 

2008 0.335 886,874,986 

2007 0.370 769,870,65 1 

2006 0.440 750,646,700 

2005 0.440 646 ,600,481 

2004 0.440 518,930,553 

2003 0.440 502,424,19 1 

2002 0.440 475 ,669,670 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


SCHEDULE OF NATURAL GAS RATES 


UNAUDITED 


Year Ended June 30, 2011 


ll'ere were 676 1 metered customers billed durin g the month of June, 20 11. The policy of the 
C ity requires thilt nil customers be metered. 


NiltU(a! Gas rates in effect al June 30, 201 1 are as follows: 


1) Resident ial 

Minimum 
First 1,000 Cubic Fcel 
All Over 1,000 Cubic Feel 

2) Commercial 
Customer Charge 
First 10,000 Cubic Fcet 
All Over 10,000 C ubic Feet 

2) Multiple Dwellings- L.H.A. 
Minim um 
Fi rst 1,000 Cubic Feet 
All Over 1,000 Cubic Feel 

4) 	(nrcrrupti ble 
Demand Charge 
First 3,500,000 Cubic Feet 
All Over 3,500,000 Cubic Feet 
Trnnsport Fee 

5) 	I ndustrial 
Customer Charge 
First 100,000 Cubic Feet 
All Over 100,000 Cubic Feet 

lnside 
C;ty 

$5.00 

$8.95 
59.17/1000 

520.00 
$ 10.07 

$8.7911000 

$5.00 
$8.95 

$9.17/1000 

$750.00 

$2.061 1000 
$1.74/3500 
Va riab le 

$100.00 

$9.2211000 

$8.37/100MCF 

Outside 
City 

$5 .00 
$10.55 

$ 10.81 / 1000 

$20.00 

$ 11.93 
$10.34/ 1000 

$750.00 

$2.4611 000 
$2.061 1000 

$100.00 

$ 10.8711000 

$9.811J00MCF 

Number of miles of the Distribution System of Lines- 236 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

SClfEDULE OF WATER AND SEWER RATES 

UNAUDITED 

Year Ended June 30, 2011 

There were 10,305 rnelered water customers and 9,923 stwercuslomers billed during June, 20t 1. The 

policy of the City requires thaI all warcr customers be me'ercd and that sewerage charges be bi lled 
10 each \valer cuSlOmer who has sewer se rvice available_ 

Water ~ nd Sewer rates inelTecl at June 30, 2011 , art as fol1ow.'O: 

Inside Ci!X Q llIside Citl 
First 200 CF $8.49 $ 12.73 
Next S()() CF S4.48 Pcr 100 535." $6.68 Per 100 $S3.44 
Next 3,000 Cf $4.34 Per 100 51 30.20 $6.52 Per \ 00 $ 195.60 
Nexl 8,000 CF $3.93 Pcr 100 $3 14 .40 $5 .90 Per 100 $472.00 

Nex' 17,000 CF $2.44 Per 100 $4 14.80 $3.67 Per 100 $623 ,'0 
Total 29,000 cr $903 .73 5\,357.67 

All over 29,000 CF- No max for Commercial and Residential, no R'l.1X for water and max of $60 for sewer. 

Inside Ci~ O Ulside Cit~ 

Fir-a 1,496 GA S8 .49 $ 12.73 
NcxI 7,48 1 GA S4.4 8 Per 1000 $33.5 1 $6,68 Per 1000 $49.97 

Nex t 29,922 GA $4 .34 Pcr 1000 $129 .85 $6.52 Per 1000 $ 195.09 
Next 89,766 GA $3 .93 Per 1000 5352.78 $5.90 j>er JOOO $529.62 

Next 2 16,935 GA $2.44 Per 1000 $529. 32 $3.67 Per !OOO $796. 1 ) 

Total 2)6,935 GA $1,053.95 S 1,583.56 

A I! over 2 16,935 GA· There is no max for wa ler fo r Residemiall nside and OUlside City and a max o f $60 for sew! 
Residential Inside and $90 for sewer for Residential Outside City. 

Sewer fa le same as water ra te. 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE 

JUDe 30, 2011 

Tconessee Municipal League Risk Management Pool: 

Policv #TML0556-10 
General Liability and 
Law Enforcement Liability Bodily Injury - $300,000 per person 

Bodily Injury - $700,000 per occurrence 
Property Damage - $ 100,000 per OCCWTence 

Other Loss - $2,000,000 per OCCUJTence 

Medical - $1,000 per person 
$10,000 per accident 

Fire - $100.000 per OCCWTence 
Impounded Property - $100,000 per occurrence 
Non-Monetal)' Defense - $50,000 per occurrence 

Errors or Omissions 	 $2,000,000 per occurrence 
AuLomobile Liability 	 Bodily Inju!)' - $300,000 per person 

Bodily lojury - $700,000 per Qccunence 
Property Damage - $100,000 per occulTence 
Other Loss - $2,000,000 per occurrence 
Medical- $1,000 per person 

$10,000 per accident 

Automotive Physical Damage Comprehensive - $500 deductib le 


Collision - $1,000 deductible 

Policv #TMP7383-10 

Blanket Limit $117,128,532 per occurrence 
Bmldings $116,1 69,268 
Electronic Data Processing $ 215,914 
Mobile Equipment $ 743,350 
Equipment Breakdown $11 6,912,618 
Flood $ 1,000,000 each occun·ence and annual aggregate 
Earthquake $ 1,500,000 each occurrence and annual aggregate 
Other A utomatic Coverages Various 
Employee Dishonesty $100,000 Finance Comminee $500,000 
Crime $ 100,000 per loss 

TML: 

Policy #TWC-0565- 1 0 	 Workers Compensation 

Bodily Injury by Accident $1,000,000 

Bodily Injury by Disease $[,000,0001$1,000,000 
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CITY OF LEBAi'lON, TENNESSEE 


SCHEDULE OF SALARlES AND FIDELITY 

BONDS OF PRlNCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICIALS 


UNAUDITED 


June 30, 2011 

Commissioner of Finance 
and Revenue- Russell Lee 

Bond 

$100,000 

Sal,ry 

$77,293 

Commissioner of Publ ic Works-
JeffBaines $ 100,000 $8 1,099 

Purch asing Agent- Lisa Lane $100,000 $48,568 

General Emp loyee Fidelity Bond $100,000 

Tile fideli ty bond coverage is carried with TML Risk Management Pool. 
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CITY Of LEB ANON, TENN ESS EE 

SCHEDU LE or STATE GRANT ACTfVITY 


Year Ended June .10, 20 I I 

NR OR DEFERRED AIR OR DEFERRED 
GRANTORJPROGRAM GRANT NUMBER AI JUNE 30, 2010 RECEIPTS DISBURSEMENTS AT JUNE 30. 20 1 I 

Tennessee Depanmem of Transpo naliQn 99-55 5-11 99-04 S 4.090.07 S 4,090.07 I $ 

Aeronautics DivIsion 
Airport Maintenance 2009/20 I 0 

Tenne ss ee Depa rtment ofTra nsport!'1tion 99-S55 ­1206..()4 1[ ,5 %.40 13,000.00 1,403.6 1 
Acronau t ic~ DiviSion 
Airport Maintenance 20 I 0/20 11 

Tennessee De}nl rt men l of Tmllspor1al ion 95 -5 55-0440·04 4,502,60 4.502.60 
Aeronautics Divis ion 
SpIll Prevention 

Termessee Ocpar1 melll of Transponation 95 -555 -0135-04 (7,722.60) (7,7n.60) 

Aeronaut ics Division 
Airport Acc~ Road _Construction 

Tcnne>s~ Depanmenr ofTral1sponarion 95-555·0739-04 103 .00 103.00 
Aerona u1i cs Di viSion 
Eastside Ta.~lway 

TenneS$ee Depa rtme nt of Transpor1 at lon 95-555-01 3&-04 11,500.00 11,500.00 
Aeronautics Division 
WestSide Hangar 

Tennessee Dcpal1menl o f Transpon3tion 95 ·555-0[40-04 2,000.00 18.641.75 48,591.03 31.949.28 
Aeronautics Divisi on. 
New Terminal Study 

Tennessee Depa rtmem of TT~nsport3 tion 95-5$5-0729-04 10,38500 11.346.50 961.50 
AcrOll31l tie;; DiVI sion 
Securi ty Ca meras 

T{'"nne ssce DepJnmenl of Ec onomic and 92,530.00 25 .1 18.75 499,094.48 566,505.73 
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CITY OF LEOANON. TENNESSEE 

SCH EDULI:: OF STATE GRANT ACTIV ITY 


YC,lt Ended JUlle 30, 20 11 

QRANTOR/PROG RAM 

Community Development 
HDPGranl 

Pennobtl 

Tennessee Department orEnvironmcn! 
lind Consel'Vation 

Slate "Revolving Fund loan 
Wasl ...·atcr Tl"("a tnlC'nl Plant Inlprovemc:nlS 

Tennessee Department of Environment 
and Conservation 

Stale RevolVing Fund Loan 
Water Treatmenll'\ant Improvements 

Tennessee Department of En vironmen t 
and Conservalion 

Dnnkins WAter Revolving Fund Loon 
Upsi :r.e Water Main 

TctulC'sscC Depanment of Environmcnl 
and Consel">lat ion 

Drinking Water Re volving f lJlld [.oan 

Upsize Water Maill 

Tennessee Commission on Aging 
St~te Senior Center 

Tennessee Emergency Man~gemcnt 
Agency 

Flood Dan mge 

AIR OR DEFERRED 

GRANT NUMBER AT JUNE 3Q.JQlQ RECEI PTS 

DWSRf OS-080 26,036.55 44,215.70 

DWSRf 08-079 [ ,650,440. 16 

CWS RF 08-220 

CWS RF 08-222 2 [ U 68.41 495,629.71 

2011-81 33 ,000.00 

FEMA- I909-DR-TN 16,547.66 

DISBURSEMENTS 
AIR OR DEFERRED 

AT JUNE 30, 201 1 

IS, 179, 15 

1,853,31 5.49 207,875 .33 

284.061.30 

33 ,000.00 

16.54 7.66 

Total Slale Gran t Arti vity s 340,002 ,44 S 2,318,048 .2 0 S 2.786.74 1.2 I $ 808,695.45 
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CITY O f LEBANON. TENN ESSEE 


SCHEDULE OF TRANSFERS 


Year Ended June 30, 20 11 

Governmental Flmds 
O tlier Nonmajo( 

Major Governmental Funds 
T ransfers Fund State Srrect Payment in Lieu Str eet Airport 
From General Aid of S idewalks Improvements Operations Total 

Transfers 

To 
Govenunental Funds: 

Major Funds: 
General $ - $ - $ - S 230,000 $ - S 230,000 

Nonmajor Funds: 

Stormwater 132,;50 )32,750 

Floyd Family Life Center 200 ,000 200,000 
1992 G.O. Bond 
Sinking 208,443 208,443 

2008 G.O. Refund ing 
Bond Sinking 339 ,828 339,828 

2003 G.O. Bond 
Sinking 464,088 464,088 

2004 G.O. Bond 

S inking 19 1,882 191 ,882 

2008 G. O. Dond 

Sinking 146,620 146,620 

Airpon Capital 
Projects 25,000 3,71 3 28,713 

Airport OperallOJlS 
Community Park 
Capital Proj ects 60,000 75,000 22,000 157,000 

Total $ 1,768,6 10 $ 75,000 $ 22,000 $ 230,000 $ 3,7 \3 S 2,099,323 

118 



CITY OF UGANON, TENNESSE E 


GENF.RAL REVENUES OY SOURCI:: 

YEARS ENOffi JUNE 30. 


R~wU(s 	 """ 
'hU1; 

!lnlalld Pt t$Orlll\y , J,OJ I,S1? J,I99, ISoI 

Busineu Tu 923.464 599,8Q8 
Wholts:ille Btc, 861.109 198,371 

SakI Tn 7.1S9.586 7.056.~& 

C.ble TV F'a nch'se Fee 11 8.4 63 260,348 
Hotel ~nd Motel T,,~ 204,001 187.494 
liquor Tn 254.308 224,374 

13,292,511 12.026.211 
T~~ EQul~~ len\$: 

1VA T3~ Rep~cemcm 280.0IS 2n.130 
280.015 21J.7J() 

Federal. SI~le . nd Rc&il)ll ~ 1 

ApponioAIMnU and Grant). 
SoIru Tn 1,6<11,252 1.579,38 1 

I ncom~ Tn 223. 2"20 301.737 

Street and T."",ponati<U'l F~r.d 51 ,15~ B.lS I 
l·h,hwayGr:r nLI . nd Contr.tcu 115.090 101.6H 

Bec' Tu 12,944 12.296 
AIroIloIIC [k ,"'eflIt~ Tn 1$3.071 159.361 

Co<pOl"~1<: E .• ciloC TI1 :n.l75 31.713 

UOSA Gr,,,t I.'" 
Pol~ ~nd fi~ Sabry Supplemtllt ~9,400 60,000 

Ll.EUC; Gnnu 
CQPS/JAG erants 2ll.21 7 168,7SS 

Ffderul AmI Sr,zure Fund 

r"~r,,hl~'. GranL 18,053 1,'85 
TruGn,t( 

O.EA. GrallL 17,SOS 16.558 

FloodGnnl 1" ,S4S 

H'lh V"ibi t.ry OfanL 6.502 

Or~ni l~ ))ry, Tl$k Force 28.827 

Ttlcc"mmllnlc~uons 2.001 tou 
SULt lI us T~., 

2.600.~ 1 g 2.50).Bl 

Finci and COSI5 659.671 581. 184 

Renl· A,rpo rt F~ ci\triel 

R~nu from O,lie. CHy ~p."merrl5 16,104- 16, 1()4 

R.nt • Othc.r 27.244 17,180 

liighw3y and Sirce l CtruSts 26.405 51,128 

Inte'n! <JU IS 54.722 

P. nnllS ~n.J Lrcu'$(' lSS.6Il1i S4S.102 

C.ml:lCry InconLe 6(;.275 59.359 

Pa,k and 1t« 'U11ot'l lt'lfomc 3!,270 30.260 
IIIiC'esl ~I\(f P~\Lyon Tuulnd Lice~ 1$,802) (51.617) 

1.hICClla""'OIiS 267.726 5SU") 

FIIUOt'lfing Souleel 17,978 

I.S84,091 1,83&.44) 

, 11,; 57,2·<2 , )M9217S 

W 

, ~ .945,205 

8()4 ,5~ 

8 1 ~.S64 

7.592.161 
217,47~ 

20Ul3 
n7.636 

12,SM.401 

238,12) 

2J8,713 

1,634.136 
4 19,9l!1 

52.847 

105.420 

12.942 
160,306 
26,6)2 

SUOO 

11.29 1 

48,815 

'8.205 
18.046 

25.316 

),124 

2.62(,.06) 

567,00$ 

16. 1Q4 
26.471 

42.B2 

17,579 

J~.610 

59.4\11 

28,4lS 
61,)(8 

300,219 

1,"loUO) 

, P ,IS'.'88 

, 2,757,709 , 1.S?I,5S6 
339,409 1)4 ,S66 
306,335 769,11 11 

5.474,110 S,4-I4.~96 

232.462 195.4$1 
~SO.97 1 ISS.S}I 
265.836 245.327 

13.126.831 12.676. 9% 

182.4 12 

182.4 \2 

1,577.868 L563,294 
316.502 n~.0!il7 

47.795 1. 8.299 
112.952 	 1~.l91 

11 ,912 ) L749 
LS1,99S 	 150.270 
)0.657 13.5H 

58,200 H.7oo 
m 2".181 

7,156 

5.865 
47.138 

3,000 
16.666 1),043 

44,357 63."60 

2,798 3,'" 
556.063 507.198 

2.916.220 2,818.554 

692.199 641.297 

16.104 16. 104 
27.728 27.224 
53.081 37,.72 

123.619 153.327 
55'),783 cm,'" 

6S,619 66.159 

27,990 21,')79 

"".458 51."56 
250,061 400.113 

12.002 ' ,000 
1,172,644 2,036,131 

, 18,179.668 , 17.714,10) 
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C ITY Or- LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

GENER.A L GO VERNMENTAL EX PENDITURES I3Y FUNCT!ON 

YEA RS END ED JUNE 30, 

Mayl'lr and C~u'\cil I 
1Jill 

182.324 , -!79MO S -2)),682 , -250,321) S 
l<m 

22B,J92 
C'l~ AHomey/Judicia! 163,579 17 !,41 8 \ 70,44 \ 171,164 157,500 
Financial AdminlSlrlu ion 144.722 151,655 169,4 21 192.l0!.l 163,01:t 
Meier Rei de r< 8,2 ')4 95,784 ]02,065 n,n9 
!:AC ComllliUt>; '" '" !6,34'1 18,2M J).703 
"~~()Unli ng 211,434 22 1,!.I87 228,811 2 J4,355 2 18,07 1 
Spec;l l Cel'su. 65 ,7) 6 
Flrmen Markel 9S.124 
CUj lomer Btll in!; 35,506 37,495 4!,932 ~8 , 609 41,306 
Purchulllg 52,957 H,679 SJ,~3) 56,0!>!/. 5~ , 13 3 
CGmpIIler Equ, pll>cnl 166,805 168,306 17 1,577 193.090 169,752 
Public Worb 176,426 165,465 2 10,1 77 209,548 213,91 9 
Wa..,hoUit 40,011 39,70 2 39,653 40,844 38,669 
Ptnonn~ 1 83,460 94,469 144,651 141,159 ) 67 ,7~4 

Ge nen.1 Maintenance 23S,083 2 13 ,7$4 285,24 5 278,449 292,079 
Pohcc 7,382.04 2 7,188,197 7,125,09 1 7,307,155 6,579,199 
Fir~ 3,964,6 14 3 ,0 ~ 9, 89 9 3,1 ] 3,)37 2,893,359 U%,767 
Buikling InSI'('clioo 1(i7,S61 187,4 4(> 2)4,4 19 288,1;63 244,662 
Buikl.ng M3'n!cncn~., 74,41 9 n030 104,111 110,074 104,128 
S l,~ct \,073,900 937,903 1.222 ,150 \ ,742,4 63 ] ,258,481 
Anima l Conuol 101.0~1 103,J 56 90,978 8 1.408 7 1 .~93 

Eng in euin~ 276,289 ,2 69 ,5,)4 389,374 399,182 3~I ,O I 4 

Gara);c 232,379 237,852 256,626 272.1 96 21&,639 
CelTlC1cry 6$,79() 89,634 136,641 133.016 144,157 
Recre:;lion 623,883 570,094 690,695 700.651 6%,202 
A,1JlO'I Mainlcoiuce/Capllall'roJcct$ 50 
Spectal E"~m\ 3, 169 18, 125 27,790 41 ,033 40,670 
Due, 26 9, n 9 262,1 % 3 10,028 3 19,684 367, \% 
Communi1>' P~rk 81,S3 1 85,838 79,&52 93,066 ~1,79'l 

Rcg;onll T ' '''' iXlr.l llon Authonly 25,000 10,000 20,000 19,2 50 42,470 

Traffic MaiIl1CI1<!.'\CC 394,180 245.558 248,466 533,OS2 428,2 16 

Arch,vesIMuscu '\l 13,264 40,276 45,316 42,652 

Public S~f" l l ' t ~2,684 207,4 28 204,462 2 06,43 ~ 206.044 
Officel'ool 6,526 1J,46S 8.03i 
Grana ~nd ,nnlnbulions 
Tot;;l \ 8.penlhw rcs , 16,383,604 S 

1!.290 
15,083,\ 57 , 11,290 

16,292,093 
13,062, 11, 194,720 , 13,302 

15 ,706.168 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

Veal's Ended June 30, 

20 1\ 2010 2009 2008 2007 
Total Tax Levy $ 3,105,286 $ 3,073,773 $ 2,97 1,08 1 $2,840,956 $2,78 1,682 

Current Tax Collections $ 2,808,439 $ 2,745,438 $ 2,735 ,942 $2,659,690 $2,273,13 1 

Pe rcent of Levy collected 90.44% 89.32% 92.09% 93.62% 71.82% 

Delinquent Tax Co llec tions $ 33 1,954 $ 282,703 $ 236,888 $ 158,582 $ 418,238 

Total Tax Collections $ 3, 140,393 $ 3,028, 141 $ 2,972,830 $ 2,8 18,272 $ 2,692,3 69 

Total Collections as a 
Percent of Current Levy J01. 13% 98 .5 2% 100.06% 99.20% 96. 72% 

Outstanding Delinquent Taxes $ 226 ,347 $ 255, 152 $ 209,297 $ 214,534 $ 191 ,240 

Outstanding Delinquent Taxes 
as a Percent of Current Levy 7.31% 8.30% 7.04% 7. 55% 6.87% 
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CITY OF LE BANON, TENNESSEE 

ASS ESSE D AND ESTIMATED VALUE OF T AXA BLE PROPERTY 

Years Ended Jun e 30, 

2011 20 10 2009 2008 2007 
Real Property: 

Assessed Value $ 805,416,685 $ 810,363,355 $ 800,223,085 $ 773,465,244 $ 668, 184,190 
Estimated Actual Value $ 2,545,928,209 $ 2,566,690,900 $ 2,539,537,900 $ 2,448,7 19,000 $ 2, 105,249,200 

Personal Property: 
Assessed Value $ 78,441 ,570 $ 81,3 71 ,887 $ 82,827,390 $ 8 1,099 ,503 $ 72,020,720 
Esti mated Actual Value $ 247,804,051 $ 271 ,241,268 $ 276,092,91 J S 270,333 ,257 $ 263,430,3 76 

Public Utility Property: 
Assessed Value $ 35,946,489 $ 34,455,380 $ 32,310,239 $ 32,310,239 $ 29,664,762 
Estimated Acrual Va lue $ 35,946,489 $ 34,455,380 $ 32 ,310,239 $ 32,3 10,239 $ 29,664,762 

Total: 
Assessed Value $ 919,804,744 $ 926,190,622 $ 9 15 ,3 60,714 $ 886,874,986 $ 769,869,672 
Estimated Acrual Value $ 2,829,678,749 $ 2,872,387,548 $ 2,847,94 1,050 $ 2,75 1,362 ,496 $ 2,398,344,338 

Rati o of Total Assessed Value to Total 
Estimated Actual Value 32 .51 % 32.24% 32. 14% 32.23% 32.1 0% 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


PROPERTY TAX RATES AND LEVIES - ALL OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS 


Last Five Fiscal Years 

Tax Rates 

Fisca l 
Year 

2007 
2008 
2009 
20 10 
2011 

Tax 
Year 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 

City 
$ 0.370 
$ 0.370 
$ 0.335 
$ 0.335 
$ 0.335 

County 
$2.48/$2.87 
$2.48/$2.87 

$2.4327/$2.8227 
$2.4327/$2.8227 
$2.4327/$2 .8227 

2007 2006 
2008 2007 
2009 2008 
2010 2009 
20 t 1 2010 

Tax Levies 
City 

$ 2,671,923 
$ 2,739,029 
$ 2,862,842 
$ 2,958,3 50 
$ 2,987,434 

Count y 
$ 57,379,915 
$ 6 t ,892,586 
$ 67,477,438 
$ 70,566,211 
$ 72,1 15,351 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


MlSCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL DATA 

June 30, 2011 

Date o flncorporation-1 819 

Date First Charter Adopted- J\lOe 28, 19 11 

Dale Present Charter Adopted- 1993 

Form of Government- Mayor and Council 

Area- Square Miles 
20 11- 39.3 

Paved Streets- 186 Mi les 

S idewalks- 34 Miles 

Sani tary Sewer Lines- 258 Mi les 

Fire Protection: 
Num ber of Fire Stations- 3 
Number of Emp loyees- 41 

Police Protection: 
Number of Employees- 94 
Vehicular Patro l Units- J 10 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 

MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL DATA 

June 30, 2011 

Elections: 

Number o f Registered VOiers- 15 ,0 17 
Num ber of Votes Cast-
Last General Elect ion- 10,)05 

Lasl Municip<l \ Election- 10,1 05 


Percentage of Registered Voters Voting 

Last Genera l Election- 67% 

List Mu nicipal Electi on- 67% 

Populatioo: 
2011 26, 190 

Gas System: 
Number of Consumers- 6,76 1 
Cubic Feel Bi lled fo r the 
Year- 1,2 19,525,785 

Oistlibut io n System- 236 Mi les 
of Li nes 

Water System: 
Num ber o f Consumers- 10,305 

C ubic Feet Bi lied for the 
Year- 624, 158,533 

Distribution System- 226 

miles of Water Mains 


Waler Treatment P lant 

Capaci ty- 12,000,000 


Gallons Per Day 


12 5 
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CITY OF LEBANON, TENNESSEE 


MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL DATA 


J une 30, 2011 

Sewer Sys tem: 
Number of Users- 9.923 
Sewer Plant Capacity­
10,000,000 Ga ll ons Per Day 

Number of Employees- 402 

Principal Taxpayers Type of Business 

Commerce Farms Distribution 
Lebanon HMA Hea lthcare 
Middle Tennessee Electric Membership Corp Electric Co-op 
Cracker Ban"et Restauran t 
Termcssee Services Corp Auto Auction 

Knight Leas ing Company Manufactu ring 
Duke Really (Ozburn Hessey Logistics) Real Estate Trust 
CATO Industrial Development Real Estate T11.lst 
Gensco Inc Distribllt iotl 

Eastgate Djstr ibution Di stribution 
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City of Lebanon 

Schedule of Unaccounted For \Vater 


June 30, 20J 1 


(All omOl/nts i t! gallolls) 

A. Water Trea ted and Pu rch ased : 
B. Water Pum ped (potable) 2,072 ,52),000 
C. Wa ter Purchased o 
D Total W::lter Treated ~nd Purchased 

(Sum Lines Band C) 
E. Accounted for Waler : 
F. Water Sold 1,445, 163,5 71 
G. Metered ror Consumption o 
H. Fire Deparl men t(s) Usage: 322 ,893 

1. Flushing 3,395,859 
J. Tank Cleaning/Filli ng 
K. Sueel Cleani ng 22 ,500 
L. Bulk Sales 1,J70,902 
M. Water Bill Adj ustments 26,989,626 

N. T otal Accou nted for W ater 1 ,477,265,351 
(Sum Lmes F thTU .Nf) 

o. Unacco unted fOr Water 595,257,649 
(Line D minus Li ne N) 

P. Percent Un accounted for 'Yater 29% 

(Line 0 divided by Line D limes 100) 

Q. O,her (expl aIn) 

All amounts included In this schedule are supported by the documentation on fil e al the wale r system. if no 

support is on Ji le fo r a line item or if Ihe line item IS not app licable, a "0" is shown. 
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FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 




FEDERAL GRA NTOR 
FEDERA L PASS THROUGH GRANTOR 
ernA II PROGRAM TITLE 

MAJOR ]'ROG RAMS 
66.468 Envuonmental PrOLel:Lion Agency 

T\1 Dep,ntlLlcut or E llv i ronn~nt and Conscrvauon 
Drinking Water State Revoh'ing funds 

16.71 0 Depart men t of Justice 
N/A 
Coll1 illunit)' Ori,'u ted Pol icLng S"lviceg 

I OTAL MAJOR PROG RAMS 

NON-MAJOR PROGR,\M,) 
66.468 Euvironmental PrOLection Age(\(y 

TN Dcpar1mcIlI of Elwironmeru and COI1~ervat iol1 

Orin],:!"!; Warer Stare Revol\ ing funds 

20.106 Departmeru or Tr.msportntion 

m Depanrncm orTnnsponal ion 

Airport Improvements - Acccss Road 


20.106 	OcpanlTlCnt or Trall5.por13uon 
TN Department orTr.l!1sponation 
Alrpoft improvements - New TertIlUlJ] Sf\ody 

16.804 Depanll1ent of Justice 

NIA 

2009 JAG 281 1 ARM 


16.738 Dcparl rnCIlI or JUSHn: 
NIA 

2007 JAG 0398 


I&.738 	DCPJ lt", ~n l of Ju~l jee 


NIA 


CITY OF LFOANON. TE NNESSrF. 

SCHEDULEm ]'E DERAL AWA RDS 


Year Ended June 30, 2011 

AIR OR DEFERRED 
GRANT NU MB ER June ,10, 2010 

DWF08-079 s i 

201 0UMWXOJOO 

AIR OR DEF ERRED 
RECEIPTS plSnURSEMENTS June 30, 2011 

1.375,3 11.99 S 1.548534.53 S 173,222 54 

33,937.46 179,12511 145,18&.25 

1.409,24945 1.727,660.24 

DWF 08-080 $ 21,696.27 $ 36 ,844.9G S 15.148.69 

1)5-555-0\35-04 (7,n2 GO) (1 ,72'1.60) 

95,555-0140-04 1,00000 18,64 1.75 48.~91.03 

l009,SB-B9-287I (29,90355) 1.541.61 

200i· DJ-BX-OJ93 8,10 1.4 ) 5,32254 (2,77& .89) 

lOI0-0J · BX-0432 2l,5GS 00 23 .54500 

318.410.79 

31 .949.28 

(2&,l60.94) 

(20.00) 
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FEDERAL GRANTO R 

FEDERA L PASS T HROUGH GRANTOR 

Q:QA.i PROGRAM TITL E 
20 10 JAG 04 32 

16 iJg Deparul\cllt of Justice 
N/A 

2009 JAO 08 80 

\6607 Department ofJustice 
t-</A 

2007 Bti ll e! ProofVes\ 

9704.1 FEMA 

t\//\ 
A!:5 istam:e \0 Firer.~h\e TS 

97.036 FEMA 
Tenncs5<."e Emergency M:ln:lSCnrellt Agency 
Flood Damage 

93 044 	Department of Health & Human Sen.·Ices 
G rea!cT Nashville RegioM! Coune!! 

SpeCl31 ['rograms for tht Aging 

93043 	Departlllent of Healdl & Human $er.-ices 

Grt~ter Nashville Regional Councl! 

Sp<~ial Prograllls for the Asing 

TOTAL NONMAJQR PHOGRA MS 

TOTA L FEDERAL AWARDS 

CITY OF LEBANON. TENNESSEE 
SCH EDULE or FEDER.......l AWARDS 

Year Enckd .Tu nc 30. 201 I 

AIR OR DEFERRED 

NTN ER June 30. 20 !0 RECfJJ'TS 

2009·DJ· BX·0880 	 ~(dOOOO 

1007·13U ·BX·070J 7Z 	 I,P) .O I 

EI'.\W·2010·FO·0J21 I 	 18.053 .00 

FEMA· 1909·DR·TN 	 16,547.66 

2011·SI 	 J9.400.00 

20 11 · 8 1 	 3,000 00 

DISBURS EMENTS 

46.JOO.00 

1,37501 

18,053 .0U 

16.54766 

19.-1 ()().OO 

3.00000 

AIR OR DEFERRED 

June ;0. 20 11 


(5 , 828.4~ 181.327.32 190.724 ! I 356834 

s (5,828.45) 5 1.590,516.77 S 1,918.384.35 5: 321.979. 13 

NOT E A· BASIS or PRESENTA1 10 N 
11le ilC"«Jmpanying s<: htd" le of fcdernl awards includes the federal gl1l nt activity orlh~ CIty of Lcba!lon, 1 ennt:SSl::e, and is pr~(ed on the S,11nC ba,is 
of ac countin~ as Ihe (,Iy of L('oonon, TC"nnC5sce'"s basic oll3nc I;)1 Stalements. T he infonnatiOIl ill Ih ls sehc-dllie is prC"sentcd !fi 3ccordJIlC"c wil h OMB 

C i rcll '~r A·133 "Audits of St~te>. Local GovernnlentS ~Ild NOIl · J>ro f,t Organi~l\lions.'· 
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE SECTION 




IDYF IDempsey Vantrease & Follis PLLC 


REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 


AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 


GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 


The Honorable Mayor, the Board of Aldennen, 
and th e Commissioner of Finance clOd Revenue of 
Lebanon, Tennessee and the Direc tor o f 
of Municipal Audit, Slate of Tennessee 

We have audited the fi nancial statements of the govemm enlal activities, the business-type activiti es, 
the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund , the aggreg • .lte remaining fund 
information and the budgetary comparison schedule for the General r und of the City of Lebanon, 
Termessee as of and for the year ended Jlme 30, 20 11 which collectively comprise the City's bas ic 
financial statements, and have issued om report thereon dated Febnlary 22, 2012. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptro ller General of the United States . 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
Management o f the City of Lebanon, Tennessee is responsible for establishi ng and maintaining 
effecti ve internal control over financial reportin g. In planning and perfo rming our audit , we 
considered the Ci ty o f Lebanon. Tennessee's intemal control over fin ancial reporting as a basis for 
designing our aUdi ting procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financia l 
statements bu t not for the pu rpose o f expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of 
Lebanon, Tennessee's internal control over financi al report ing. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effec ti veness of rhe City of Lebanon, Termessee's internal contml over financial 
rep0l1ing. 

A deficiency ill internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the nOlm al course of perfonning their ass igned fu nctions, to prevent 
or detect and correct misstatements on a ti mely basi s. A materia! weakness is a deficiency, or 
combination of de fic ienc ies, in intemal conlro l such thai there IS a reasonable possibil it y Olat a 
material misstatement of the entity 's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
COITected on a ti mely baSIS. 

Our consideration of inlemal control over fi nancial.reporting was for the lim ited purpose desclibc<.l 
in the first paragrapb of thi s section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in ilJ temaJ 
control that might be deficiencies, significant de ficiencies or materi al weaknesses. We did not 
identify any defiCiencies in internal control over financial report ing that we conSIder to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. 
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Compliance alld Other Maners 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Lebanon, Te1U1essee's fmancia l 
statements are free of material misstatement, we perfonned tests of its compliance with cenai n 
provisions of laws, regu lat ions, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could 
have a direct and material effect on the detennination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objec tive of our audit and, 
accordingly, we do ilot express such an opinion. The resu lts of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters th aI arc required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards . 

We noted certain matters that we reported 10 Ihe management of the City of Lebanon, Tennessee in 
a separate letter dated Feb0.lary 22, 20 12. 

This report is intended SOlely for the in.fonnation and use o f management, City Council, others 
within tJle entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is nolo intended to be 
and should not be used by anyone other than Ihese specified part ies. 

~1 -UCV>v~1M2<' ,rf$o--U:'o r'U.c. 
Lebanon, TerUlessee 
February 22 , 2012 
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IDYFIDempsey Vantrease & Follis PLLC 


REPORT ON COMPLI ANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS 

APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 


OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A·l33 


To the Honorable Mayor, the Board of Aldermen, 
and the Commissioner of Finance and Revenue of 
Lebanon, TelUlessee and Ihe Direclo r o f Municipal 
Audil . State of Tennessee 

Compliance 

We have audi ted the Ci ty of Lebanon, Tennessee 's compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in Ihe U. S. Office of Managemeot and Budget (OMB) Circular A- l 33 
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and materia l effect on each of the City of Lebanon 
Tennessee's major fede ral programs for rhe year ended June 30, 201 1. The City of Lebanon, 
Tennessee's major federal programs are idemified in the summary of auditor's results sec tion of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questi oned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, 
regulat ions, contracts , and grants appucable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of 
the Ci ty of Lebanon, Tennessee's management. Our responsibility is to ex press an opinion on the Cily of 
Lebanon, TelUlessee 's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United Stales of America; the standards appli cabJe to financi al audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, iss Ll ed by the Comptroller Genera l o f the United States ; and OMS Circular A~ 133, Audits of 
SUItes, Local Governmenls, alld Non -Profit Organ izations. Those standards and OMS Ci rcul ar A~ 13 3 

requi re that we plan and perfolm the aud it to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and materi al effect 
on a maj or fede raJ program occurred. An audIt includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
City of Lebanon, Tennessee's compli ance wlth those requirements ,md perfonning slIch other 
procedures as we comidered necessary in the c ircumstances. We believe that our audi t provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audi t does not prov ide a Jega l detenn inat ion on the City of 
Lebanon, Tennessee's comphance with those requlTements. 

In our oplOion, the City of Lebanon, Tennessee, complied, in allroateri al respects, with the requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct ti nct material effect on each of its major federal programs for 
the year ended June 30, 2011. 

lnternal Contro l Over Compliance 

Management of the City of Lebanon, Tennessee, is respo nsible for estab li shing and maintain ing 
effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulatIOns, contracts, and 
grants applicable to fed eral programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of 
Lebanon, TelUlessee 's interna l control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and 
materia l e ffeci on a major federal program in o rder to dctennine the auditing procedures fo r the purpose 
of expressing our opimon on compliance Clnd to test and repo rt on intem al control over compliance in 
accordance with OMB Circular A-1 33, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectlveness of internal control over compliance. Accordlll gly, we do no t express an op inion on the 
effect lveness of the Clly of Lebanon , T elUlessee's intern al control over compli ance. 

132 
724 W~t Marn Street· lebanon. Tennessee 37087 


P 615-444.4125 F 615-444-2639 www.dvf·pllc.com 


http:www.dvf�pllc.com


A deficiency in internal control over compliance exisls whcn the design or operation of a conlrol over 
compliance does not allow management or emp loyees, in the normal course o f perfoll11ing (heir as signed 
funct ions, to prevent, o r detec t and cOITec t, noncompliance wi th a type of compliance req uirement o f a 
federal program on a timely b~sis. A rnalerial weakness in internal control over complial1ce is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal contro l over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibilit y Inal material no ncompliance with a type of comp liance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and con·ected, on a timel y basis. 

O Uf consideration of internal control over compliance was for [he limited purpose desclibed in the first 
paragraph of thi s section an<.l was not designed to identify all deficiencies in interna l control over 
compliance that might be deficiencies, s ignificant de ficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not 
idenlify any deficiencies in inlemaJ control over compliance that we consider to be materia l weaknesses, 
as defined above. 

This repon is intended solely for the infonnati on and use of management, City Council , others wilhin 
the entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is no t intended to be and should not 
be used by anyone o ther than these specified part ies. 

~iJa~OA.{ r~~ !'LLC 
Lebanon, Tennessee 
February 22, 201 2 
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CITY OF LEBANON 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 


Year Ended Juue 30, 2011 


Section 1 - Summary of Auditor's Results 

finandal Statements 
Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified 
Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weakness(es) identifted? 
Significant Deficiency(ies) identified 
not considered 10 be materi al we:lknesses? _ yes Xnone reported 

Noncompliance malena! to financial statements 
noted? _yes Xno 

Federal Awards 
In temal Control over major programs: 

M::lterial wcak.ness(es) identified? JesXno 
Significant Deficiency(i es) ideotified 

nol considered to be material weaknesses? _ yes -Knone reported 

Type of auditor's report issued on compl iance 
for major programs: Unqualified 

Any audit findings disc losed thal arc required 
(0 be reported in accordance with 
Circular A-133, Section .5 1OCa)? 

Identification of maj or programs: 

CFDA Numberfs ) Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
66468 EnvirOlunenlai Proleclion Agency-- Drinking Water State Revolving Funds 

Dollar threshold used 10 distinguiSh 
between Type A and Type B programs: $300.000 

Audit qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes_no 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 
No matters were reported, 

Section HI - Federal Award FiDdings and Questioned Costs 
No matters were reported . 
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